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Consolidated half-year report PS 2008

{In accordance with § 86, section 2 of the Decree of the Minister of Finance dated October 19, 2005
- Journal of Laws No 209, point 1744)

for issuers of securities involved in production, construction, trade or services activities

For the first half of 2008 comprising the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
Containing the censolidated financial statements according to International Financial Reporting Standards in PLN.

publication date: 14 October 2008

KGHM Polska Miedz Spdika Akcyjna

(name of the issuer)

KGHM Polska Miedz 5.A.

{name of issuer in brief)

Metals industry
(Issuer branch title per the Warsaw Stock Exchange)

59 301 LUBIN
{postal code) (city)
M. Sklodowskiej - Curie 48
(street) {number}

(48 76) 74 78 200 %{o 48 76) 74 78 500

(telephone) 6(’, (11384 5y (fax)
IR@BZ.KGHM.pl %p - ?3;-0%6 www.kghm.pl
{e-mail) % /d 2 % (website address)
692-000-00-13 2% 2 390021764
(NIP) 2 - (REGON})
%
Ernst & Young Audit Sp. z o.0.
(Entity entitled to audit ﬁnaﬁzial statements)
in '000 PLN in '000 EUR
half-year 2008 half-year 2007 half-year 2008 half-year 2007
SELECTED FINANCIAL ITEMS L Jomuary 2008 to | 1 Jamuary 2007 to | 1 January 2008 to | 1 January 2007 to
30 June 2008 30 June 2007 30 June 2008 30 June 2007
I. Sales 6 750 769 6 457 899 1941 215 1 680 585
I1. Operating profit 1963 628 2 126 559 564 650 552 554
I11. Profit before income tax 2 091 440 2233777 601 403 580413
V. Profit for the period 1719 159 1 825 641 494 352 474 365
v fggfifafr‘:nih;ngi;iz‘: tf;’g‘:jg'e to shareholders 1719410 1825334 494 424 474 285
I\;It.el:;csnz‘lt for the period attributable to minority (251) 307 (72) 80
VII. Number of shares issued 200 000 000 200 000 600 200 000 000 200 000 000
VII. Earnings per ordinary share (in PLN/EUR) B.60 9.13 2.47 2.37
IX. Net cash generated from operating activities 1267 023 1813 154 364 338 471 120
X. Net cash used in investing activities {602 891) (559 488) (173 364) (145 374)
:;i\l:li;tegash used infgenerated from financing (23 039) 21 320 (6 625) 5 540
XII. Total net cash flow 641 093 1274 986 184 349 331 286
At At At At
30 June 2008 31 December 2007 30 June 2008 31 December 2007

XIII. Non-current assets 8021312 7 932 257 2 391423 2214 477
XIV. Current assets 6843 420 5570 957 2 040 254 1 555 265
XV, Non-current assets held for sale 550 184 164 51
XVI. Total assets 14 865 282 13 503 398 4 431 841 3769793
XVIL. Non-current liabilities 1616133 1710812 481 824 477 614
XVIIL. Current llabilities 3832782 2290977 1142 681 639 580
XIX. Equity 9416 367 9 501 609 2 807 336 2 652 599
XX. Minority interest 47 296 47 621 14 101 13 295

This report is a direct translation from the original Polish version. In the event of differences resulting

from the translatlon, reference should be made to the official Polish version.

Polish Financial Supervision Authority
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Translation of auditors’ review report originally issued in Polish

Independent Auditors’ Review Report on the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements
for the six-month period ended 30 June 2008

To the Shareholders and Supervisory Board of KGHM Polska Miedz S.A.

1. We have reviewed the attached consolidated financial statements of the KGHM Polska Miedz S.A,

Group (“the Group™), for which the parent company is KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. (*the Company’,
“the parent company’) located in Lubin, at M. Skiodowskie)-Curie Street 48, including:

« the interim consolidated balance sheet as at 30 June 2008 with total assets amounting to
14,865,282 thousand zlotys,

« the interim consolidated income statement for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
with a net profit amounting to 1,719,159 thousand zlotys,

« the interim consolidated statement of changes in equity for the period from | January 2008 to
30 June 2008 with a net decrease of equity amounting to 85,242 thousand zlotys,

« the interim consolidated cash flow statement for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June
2008 with a net cash inflow amounting to 641,093 thousand zlotys and

+ the interim explanatory notes

(‘the attached interim consolidated financial statements’).

. The truth and fairness' of the attached interim consolidated financial statements prepared in

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards applicable to interim financial
reporting as adopted by the European Union (‘IAS 34’) and the proper maintenance of the
consolidation documentation are the responsibility of the Company’s Management Board. Our
responsibility is to issue a report on these financial statements based on our review.

. We conducted our review in accordance with the provisions of the law binding in Poland and

auditing standards issued by the National Council of Statutory Auditors (‘Standards’). These
Standards require that we plan and perform our review in such a way as to obtain moderate
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The review was
mainly based on applying analytical procedures to the financial data, review of documentation
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the interim consolidated financial statements and
discussions with the management of the Company as well as its employees. The scope of work’ of
a review differs significantly from an audit of financial statements, the objective of which is to
express an opinion on the truth and fairness® of the financial statements. Review provides less
assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit of the attached interim consolidated
financial statements and, accordingly, do not express an audit opinion.

Translation of the following expression in Polish language: “prawidlowosé, rzetelnosé ijasnosé”

[n Polish language two expressions are used (“zakres i metoda ') that in English language translation are
covered by one expression “the scope of work”

Transiation of the following expression in Polish language: “prawidlowo, rzetelnic i jasno”

ERNST & YOUNG W POLSCE JEST CZLONKIEM GLOBALNEJ PRAKTYKI ERNST & YQUNG
Sad Rejonowy dia m.st. Warszawy w Warszawie, X)l Wydzial Gospodarczy Krajowego Rejestru Sadowege, KRS: 0000006468
NIP 526-020-79-76. Kapitat zakladowy: 5 210 500 z1
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Translation of auditors’ review report originally issued in Polish

l 4. The Company’s consolidated financial statements for the period from 1 January 2007 to 30 June
2007 were subject to our review and we issued a qualified review report, dated 18 October 2007,
including an emphasis of matter on these consolidated financial statements. Qualifications related
to deferred tax and potential impairment of assets in one of the subsidiaries. Emphasis of matter
I related to hyperinflationary revaluation of share capital in accordance with 1AS 29. Above
mentioned issues do not impact on the attached interim consolidated financial statements for the

period from 1| January 2008 to 3¢ June 2008.
l 5. Our review did not reveal the need to make material changes for the attached interim consolidated
financial statements to present truly and fairly® in all material respects the financial position of the
I Group as at 30 June 2008 and the financial result, for the six months ended 30 June 2008 in

accordance with 1AS 34.

| . on behalf of
Ernst & Young Audit Sp. z o.0.
Rondo ONZ 1, 00-124 Warsaw

I Registration No. 130

l Marek Musiat Jacek Hryniuk
Certified Auditor Certified Auditor
Registration No. 90036/7272 Registration No. 9262/6958

Warsaw, 7 October 2008

*  Translation of the following expression in Polish language: “rzetelny, prawidiowy i jasmy”
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KGHM POLSKA MIEDZ S.A.

DECLARATION BY THE MANAGEMENT
BOARD ON THE ACCURACY OF THE
PREPARED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Lubin, October 2008




DECLARATION BY THE MANAGEMENT BOARD OF KGHM POLSKA MIEDZ S.A. ON THE
ACCURACY OF THE PREPARED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

According to our best judgement the consolidated half-year financial statements and the
comparative data have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles currently in force,
and give a true, fair and clear view of the material and financial position of the KGHM Polska Miedz
S.A. Group and the financial result of the Group. The half-year report on the activities of the Group
presents a true picture of the development and achievements, as well as the condition, of the
KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. Group, including a description of the basic risks and threats.

Signatures

Signatures of all Members of the Management Board

Date First, Last name Position/Function Signature
President
7 October 2008 Mirostaw Krutin res!
of the Management Board
/4
r
I Vice President
7 October 2008 Herbert Wirth
of the Management Board M ANANAS Y
s Ps
L~

Vice President

7 October 2008 Maciej Tyb
acie) Tybura of the Management Bodrd




KGHM POLSKA MIEDZ S.A.

DECLARATION BY THE MANAGEMENT
BOARD REGARDING THE ENTITY
ENTITLED TO AUDIT FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

Lubin, October 2008



DECLARATION BY THE MANAGEMENT BOARD OF KGHM POLSKA MIEDZ S.A. REGARDING
THE ENTITY ENTITLED TO AUDIT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The entity entitled to audit financial statements, and which has reviewed the consolidated half-year
financial statements, was selected in accordance with legal provisions. This entity, as well as the
certified auditors who have carried out this review, have met the conditions for issuing an impartial
and independent report on their review, in accordance with appropriate Polish legal provisions.

Signatures

Signatures of all Members of the Management Board

Date First, Last name Position/Function Signature

President

7 October 2008 Mirostaw Kruti
ctober irostaw krutin of the Management Board

/
I Vice President
7 Oct H Wirth
October 2008 erbert Wirt of the Management Board ’Q s W

Vice President
7 October 2008 Maciej Tybura ice Fresiden <
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for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
(amounts In tables in thousand PLN, unless otherwlse stated}
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for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
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{amounts In tables in thousand PLN, unless otherwlise stated)

Consolidated balance sheet

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Investment property
Investments in asscciates
Deferred tax assets
Avallable-for-sale financial assets
Held-to-maturity investments
Derlvative financial instruments
Trade and other recelvables

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other recelvables
Current corporate tax recelvables
Available-for-sale financial assets
Derivative financial instruments
Cash and cash equivalents

Non-current assets held for sale
TOTAL ASSETS

Equity and liabilities
EQUITY

Equity attributable to shareholders of the Parent Entity

Share capital
Other reserves
Retained earnings

Minority interest
TOTAL EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Trade and cther payables

Borrowings and finance lease liabilities
Derivative financlal instruments

Deferred tax llabilities

Liabilities due to employee benefits
Provisiens for other liabilities and charges

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Borrowings and finance lease liabilitles
Current corporate tax liabilities
Derlvative financial instruments

Liabllities due tc employee benefits
Provisiens for other liabilities and charges

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

At
Note 30 June 2008 31 December 2007
6 6 744 233 6 614 352
7 118 047 119 231
8 16 517 16 517
9 659 760 690 096
22 319 174 320 506
10 44 759 47 155
i1 57 292 43 934
12 8 154 33 395
13 53 376 47 071
8021 312 7 932 257
14 1862 653 1 744 495
13 1411543 925 367
1 669 7377
10 100 623 -
12 16 429 81622
15 3450 503 2812 096
6 843 420 5 570 957
25 550 184
14 865 282 13 503 398
16 2 000 000 2 000 000
17 8791 13118
7 360 280 7 440 870
9 369 071 9 453 988
47 296 47 621
9 416 367 9 501 609
19 31 497 24 762
20 69 756 162 909
12 - 3 087
22 34 282 29 804
23 944 331 919 923
24 536 267 570 327
1616 133 1710812
19 3438 566 1 646 406
20 195 165 113 201
30 159 343 377
12 61 14 335
23 79 643 77 402
24 89 188 96 256
3832782 2290 977
5 448 915 4 001 789
14 865 282 13 503 398
The notes presented on pages 7 to 88 represent an Integral part of these financial statements
Translation from the original Polish version 3




for the period fr
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om 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008

{amounts in tables in thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated)

Consolidated income statement

Sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling costs
Administrative expenses
Other operating Income
Other operating costs
Operating profit

Finance costs - net

Share of profits of associates accounted for using the

equity method

Profit before iIncome tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the period
attributabie to:

shareholders of the Parent Entity

minority interest

Earnings per share attributable to the
shareholders of the Parent Entity for the half-
year period {PLN per share)

- basic

- diluted

For the period

Note from 1 Yanuary 2008 from 1 January 2007
to 30 June 2008 to 30 June 2007

27 6 750 769 6 467 899
28 (4 054 068) {3 639 149}
2 696 701 2 828 750
28 (113 216) {95 652)
28 (347 739) (344 774)
30 314135 1073 207
31 (586 253) {1334 972)
1963 628 2126 559
32 (24 712) {15 212)
35 152 524 122 430
2091 440 2233777
36 (372 281) (408 136)
1719 159 1 825 641
1719 410 1825334
(251) 307
1719 159 1 825 641

37
8.60 9.13
8.60 9.13

The notes presented on pages 7 to 88 represent an integral part of these financial statements

Transiation from the original Polish version 4
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for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008

{amounts in tables in thousand PLN, unless otherwlse stated)

Consolidated staterment of changes in equity

Note

At 1 January 2007 as previously stated

Prior period errors

At 1 January 2007

Impact of cash flow hedging valuation 34.1.9

Fair value losses on available-for-sale
financlal assets

Deferred tax 22

Total income/{expenses) recognised
directly in equity

Profit for the period
Total recognised income/(expenses)

Dividend for 2006
Transactions with minority interest

At 30 June 2007

At 1 January 2008

Impact of cash flow hedging valuation 34.1.9

Fair value losses on available-for-sale
financial assets

Deferred tax 22

Total income/(expenses) recognised
directly in equity

Profit for the perlod
Total recognised income/{expenses)

Dividend for 2007 38
At 30 June 2008

Attributable to shareholders

of the Parent Entity

Attributable
to minority  Total equity
Share Other Retained interest
capital reserves earnings
2 0C0 000 (431 161) 6 648 338 44 725 8 262 402
- - 251 473 37 251 510
2 000 OOC (431 161) 6 900 311 44 762 8513912
- 698 586 - - 698 586
- (1845) - - (1 845)
- {137 452) - - (137 452)
- 559 289 - - 559 289
- - 1825334 307 1 825 641
- 559 189 1825 334 307 2384 930
- - (3 394 000) - (3 394 000)
- - - 1531 1531
2 000 000 128 128 5331 645 46 600 7 506 373
2 000 000 13118 7 440 870 47 621 9 501 609
- (2 095) - - {2 095)
- (2073) - - (2 073)
- (159) - - (159)
- (4 327) - - (4 327)
- - 1719410 (251) 1719 159
- (4327) 1719 410 {(251) 1714832
{1 800 000} {74) (1 BOO 074)
2 000 000 8 791 7 360 280 47 296 9 416 367
The notes presented on pages 7 to 88 represent an Integral part of these financlal statements
Translation from the original Polish version 5
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Consolidated cash flow statement

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit for the period

Adjustments to profit for the period

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible

assets

Proceeds from sale of investment property
Purchase of held-to-maturity investments

Proceeds from sale of held-to-maturity investments
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets

Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale financial assets

Purchase of held-to-maturity investments financed from the resources of

Mine Closure Fund

Proceeds from sale of held-to-maturity investments financed from the

resources of Mine Closure Fund

Proceeds from repayments of loans
Interest received

Dividends received

Other investment expenses

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flow from financing activities
Expenses cannected with transactions with minority interest
Proceeds from loans and borrowings
Repayments of loans and borrowings
Payments of liabilities due to finance leases
Interest paid

Dividends paid

Net cash used in/generated from financing activities

Total net cash flow

Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents
Movements in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

including restricted cash and cash equlvalents

The notes presented on pages 7 to B8 represent an integral part of these financial statements

Translation from the original Polish version

e R
for the perlod from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
{amounts in tables In thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated)

Note

39

39

15
15

For the period

from 1 January 2008
to 30 June 2008

from 1 January 2007
to 30 June 2007

1719159 1825 641
222 005 583 297
(674 141) (595 784)
1267 023 1813 154
(572 611) (613 530)
8 660 11 012
- 35 924
(64 844) (202 797)
64 844 175 038
(100 005) (200 000)
151 61 254
(13 361) (32 152)
B} 22 096
- 250
753 471
91410 203 167
(17 888) (20 221)
(602 891) (559 488)
- (464)
30158 55562
(45 733) (25 716)
{836) (4 194)
(6 604) (3 868)
(24) -
{23 039) 21320
641 093 1274 986
(2 686) (16 132)
638 407 1258 854
2812 096 2321131
3 450 503 3579 985
1682 2171

6
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for the pericd from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
(amounts In tables in thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated}

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
prepared for the first half of 2008

1. General information

Name, registered office, business activities

KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. (the “Parent Entity™) with its reglistered office in Lubin at ul. M.Sktodowskiej-Curie 48 is a stock
company registered at the Wroctaw Fabryczna Regional Court, Section IX (Economic} In the Nattonal Court Register, entry
no. KRS 23302, operating on the territory of the Republic of Poland. The Parent Entity was Issued with tax identification
number (NIP) 692-000-00-13 and statistical REGON number 390021764.

KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. has a multl-divisional organisational structure, which comprises Its Head Office and 10 Divisions:
3 mines (Lubin Mine, Polkowice-Sleroszowice Mine, Rudna Mine), 3 smelters (Glogdw Smelter, Legnica Smelter, the
Cedynla Wire Rod Plant), Ore Enrichment Plant, Taillngs Plant, Mine-Smelter Emergency Rescue Unlt and Data Center. The
composition of the Group was presented in Note 5.

The shares of KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. are listed on the Stock Exchange in Warsaw and - In the form of GDRs (global
depository receipts) - on the London Stock Exchange (LSE). According to the classification of the Stock Exchange In
Warsaw, KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. is classified under the "metals Industry” sector.

The principal activities of the Group comprise:

mining of non-ferrous metals ore,

excavation of gravel and sand,

production of copper, precious and non-ferrous metals,

production of salt,

casting of light and non-ferrous metals,

forging, pressing, stamping and roll forming of metal - powder metallurgy,
waste management,

wholesale based on direct or contractual payments,

warehousing and storage of goods,

holding management activities,

geaological and exploratory activities,

general construction activities with respect to mining and production facilities,
generation and distribution of electricity, steam and hot water, production of gas and distribution of gaseous fuels
through a supply network,

. professional rescue services,

. scheduled and non-scheduled air transport, and

. telecommunicaticn and IT activities.

Activities involving the exploitation of copper ore, salt deposits and common minerals are carried out based on licenses
held by KGHM Polska Mledz S.A., which were issued by the Minister of Environmental Protectlon, Natural Resources and
Farestry in the years 1993-2004.

The business activities of the Group also include:
production of goods from copper and preclous metals,
underground censtruction services,

production of machinery and mining equipment,
energy production,

telecommunication services,

transport services, and

activities in the areas of research, analysis and design.

Period of operation of the Group

KGHM Polska Mied: S.A. has been conducting its business since 12 September 1991. The Parent Entity and subsidiaries
have an unlimited period of operation.

The legal antecedent of KGHM Polska Mledz S.A. was the State-owned enterprise Kombinat Gérniczo-Hutniczy Miedzt In
Lubin transformed into a State-owned joint stock company In accordance with principles set forth in the law dated 13 July
1990 on the privatisation of State-owned enterprises.

Composition of the Management Board of the Parent Entity

Buring the period from 1 January 2008 to 17 January 2008, the composition of the Management Board of the Parent Entity
and segregation of duties were as follows:

- Krzysztof Skéra President of the Management Board

- Ireneusz Reszczyiski 1 Vice President of the Management Board (Sales)

- Marek Fusinski Vice President of the Management Board {Flnance)

- Stanistaw Kot Vice President of the Management Board {Production}

- Dariusz Kaskdw Vice President of the Management Board {Development).

On 17 January 2008, the Supervisory Board recalled Krzysztof Skéra from the function of President of the Management
Board and Dariusz Kaskdw from the function of Vice President of the Management Board and decided that the
Management Board of KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. shall be comprised of three Members, The Supervisory Board has
appeinted Ireneusz Reszezyriski, 1 Vice President of the Management Board of KGHM Polska Miedf S.A. as the acting
President of the Management Board of KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. until the President of the Management Board |s appointed.

On 17 April 2008 the Supervisory Board of the Company appolnted Mirostaw Krutin to the position of President of the
Management Board as of 23 April 2008.

Transiation from the original Polish version 7



for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
(amounts in tables In thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated}

1. General information (continuation)

On 23 April 2008 the Supervisory Board recalled from the position of Member of the Management Board - Vice President of
the Management Board: Marek Fusiriski, Stanistaw Kot and Ireneusz Reszczyriskl.

Simultaneously, the Supervisory Board has appolnted Herbert Wirth to the position of Member of the Management Board -
[ Vice President of the Management Board (Development) and Maciej Tybura to the position of Member of the
Management Board - Vice President of the Management Board (Finance).

As at the date of authorisatlon of these financlial statements for Issue, the composition of the Management Board and
segregation of duties were as follows:

- Mirostaw Krutin President of the Management Board
- Herbert wirth I Vice President of the Management Board {Development)
- Maciej Tybura Vice President of the Management Board (Finance)

Authorisation of the financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for Issue and signed by the Management Board of the Parent Entity on 7
October 2008.

Going concern assumption

These financial statements were prepared under the assumpticn that Group companles will continue as going concerns in
the foreseeable future. As at the date of authorisatlon of these financlal statements, there are no circumstances that would
indicate a threat to the going concern assumption by the Group companies.

In order to fully understand the flnancial positlon and the results of the activities of the Group, these consolidated financial
statements should be read jointly with the separate half-year financial statements of KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. for the
pericd ended 30 June 2008. These financiat statements Is avallable on the webslite of the Company www.kghm.pl.

2. Main accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparing financial statements

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards
approved by the European Union using the same principles for the current and comparative periods.

These financlal statements have been prepared on the historical cost basls (adjusted for the effects of hyperinflation in
respect of property, plant and equipment and equity), except for avallable-for-sale financial assets, derivative Instruments
and investment property, which have been measured at fair value.

The carrying amount of recognised hedged assets and liabilities Is adjusted for the changes in fair value attributable to the
hedged risk.

Standards and interpretations in force applied In the Group as of 1 January 2008

IFRIC 11 "IFRS 2 - Gr and Tr hare T ions”
Application of this interpretation has no effect on the financial statements of the Group.

IFRIC 12 “Sery ion ments”
Application of this interpretation has no effect on the financial statements of the Group.

4" - Liml ned B Mini ing R i ion”
Application of this interpretation has no effect on the financial statements of the Group.

IFRIC 12 and IFRIC 14 had not been approved by the European Union by the publication date of these financlal
statements.

In these censolidated financial statements any standard or interpretation prior to Its coming into force and approval by the
European Unlon has not been applled.

Standards and Interpretations published by 30 June 2008 which did not come into force by the publication
date of these financial statements:

1 “Presentati f Financl ments”

The amended IAS 1 was published by the International Accounting Standards Board in September 2007. It refers to the
presentation of financial statements. The amended standard implements a new element of the financial statements called
the statement of comprehensive Income, where all items of income and expenses should be presented, including those,
which so far have been recognised in equity. In addition, changes apply also to presentation of the statement of changes
in equity, presentation of dividends and comparative information, if changes in accounting policies are applied
retrospectively, The revisions include changes in the titles of some of the key items of the financial statements, however,
companies will be entitled to retain their current terminclogy. The amended standard becomes effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009.

Transiation from the original Polish version 8
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for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
{amounts in tables in thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated)

2. Main accounting policies (continuation)

2.1 Basis of preparing financial statements (continuation)

1A “Borrowin "

The amended IAS 23 was published by the Internationa! Accounting Standards Board on 29 March 2007, This standard
relates to the accounting treatment of borrowing costs incurred in connection with a quallfying asset. The amended IAS 23
removes the benchmark treatment that requires that borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or loss and are
capitalised. Although this change will affect the Group, it Is believed that its Impact on the financial statements will be
immaterlal. The amended standard becomes pperative for perlods beginning on or after 1 January 2009,

IFRS 3 "Busipess_Combinations”

The amended IFRS 3 was Issued by the International Accounting Standards Board on 10 January 2008 and replaces the
currently binding IFRS 3. The amended Standard is connected with the completion of the second phase of the process of
converging international and American appreaches to business combinations, carried out by the IASB together with the
American Financlal Accounting Standards Board. The amended Standard glves more detailed guidance for application of
the purchase method for business combinations. The Standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2009 and will be applied to the accounting for business combinations effected after this date.

IAS 27 ¢ i rate Financial Stat nts”

The amended IAS 27 was published by the International Accounting Standards Board on 10 lanvary 2008 and replaces the
currently binding IAS 27. Implementation of this standard relates to the completion of the second phase of the process of
converging International and American approaches to business combinatlons, carded out by the IASB together with the
American Flnancial Accounting Standards Board. IAS 27 requires the recognition of changes in the share held in a
subsidiary as an equity transaction. For this reason such a change does not affect goodwlll, and there Is no recognition of
gains or losses. The amended standard also changes the manner of recognising losses incurred by a subsidiary, exceeding
the value of the investment, as well as the manner of recognising loss of control over the subsidiary. The amended
Standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009. As these changes are to be applied
prospectively, they will affect future acquisitions and transactions with minority interest.

FR: h re- nt”
The amended IFRS 2 was published by the IASB on 17 January 2008. Amendments to IFRS 2 relates to vesting conditlons
to cash and other assets or equity Instruments of the entity as part of the share based payment transaction. Changes in
this Standard become effective for periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 and will not have any effect on the financial
statements of the Group.

Amen Financial In ments: Presentation”

The amended IAS 32 was published by the International Accountlng Standards Board (IASB) on 14 February 2008. The
amendments related to the specific type of financlal instruments, which are similar to ordinary equity instruments, but
allow their holder to present them for redemptlon by Issuer if certain, Indicated in the Standard, circumstances
materlalised. To date, In accordance with IAS 32, this type instruments were classified as financial liabilities. The
amended IAS 32 requires that such instruments are not classified as llabllities but rather as equity. Standard amendments
become effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 and wlll not have any effect on the financial
statements of the Group.

R "First-tim | Internatignal ial R i " and 7. "Consolidated and
n¢l ments”

On 22 May 2008 the Internatlional Accounting Standards Board issued amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 27 as the
conclusion of an exposure draft titled ,Cost of an Investment In a Subsidlary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate”. The
amendments address the recognition of investments in a subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities or associates in the
separate financial statements, and are applicable to speciflc (as described in the standard) types of group reorganisation,
and change the definitlon of initial cost. The amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 27 will be in effect for periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2009. The amendments will be applicable for future equity investments.

IERIC 13 "Customer Loyalty Programmes”

On 28 June 2007, the International Accounting Standards Board published Interpretation 13 Customer Loyalty
Programmes. This interpretation addresses the method of accounting for payments related to the sale of goods or services
Included in customer loyalty programmes. This interpretation becomes effective for perlods beginning on or after 1 July
2008, although earlier application is recommended. The only company In the Group which has a customer loyalty
programme is Telefonia Dialog S.A. This company will apply IFRIC 13 upon Its acceptance by the European Union. Analysis
of the Impact of applying IFRIC 13 on the financial statements indicates that its impact will be insignificant.

FRIC 15 “Agrt r nstruction of Real Estate”

On 3 July 2008 the International Accounting Standards Board issued interpretation 15 "Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate”. This Interpretation addresses real estate developers (both directly and threugh sub-contractors) and
standardises the accounting of revenues from the sale of real estate unlts (such as apartments or houses) prior to transfer
of the risk and benefits associated with the construction of the glven property.

This Interpretation will be in effect for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009, and will not affect the financial
statements of the Group,
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for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
{amounts in tables in thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated)

2. Main accounting policies (continuation)

2.1 Basis of preparing financial statements (continuation)

IFRIC 16 “Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation”

On 3 July 2008 the International Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation 16 “Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation”. This interpretation addresses the issue of entities which hedge their net investment in a foreign
operation, and provides guidance and clarification on when, and in what manner, such hedges may be made. The main
decision eliminates the possibility of applying hedge accounting to exchange differences between the functional currency of
the foreign operation and the presentaticn currency of the parent entity's censolidated financial statements. This
interpretation will be in effect for perlods beginning on or after 1 October 2008, and will not affect the financial statements
of the Group.

"Improvemen nternational Financial R in andards” 2008

On 22 May 2008 the International Accounting Standards Board issued the first Standard published under the IASB's
annual improvements process, Improvements to IFRS 2008, This is a collection of amendments and minor corrections
which are needed, but which are not so urgent or important as to require a separate draft, Altogether they include 35
amendments, of which 15 may cause changes in presentatton, recognition or measurement, while the remaining 20 are
terminological or editorial changes which have no or minimal affect on accounting. Each change has an individual effective
date, although most wilt come into effect for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009, with earlier, retrospective
adopticn permitted. Adoption of the amended and improved Standards will not significantly affect the financial statements
of the Group,

o

"Eligible H Items” (an amendmen IA “Financial Instruments: Recognition and M n
On 31 July 2008 the International Accounting Standards Board issued an amendment to IAS 39 "“Eligible Hedged Items”.
This amendment clarifies the principles for qualification as well as the conditions which a financial position must meet to be
qualified as hedged. The changes introduced clarify how the existing principles underlying hedge accounting should be
applied In two particular situations, and in particular in a situation of (1) a one-sided risk in a hedged item (i.e. changes in
the cash flows or fair value of a hedged item above or below a specified price or cther variable), and (2} changes in
inflation representing a portion of the cash flow of a financial hedged item. The introduction of Application Guidance was
necessary due to the diversity of solutions being practiced in this regard. This amendment, which requires retrospective
application, will be in effect for periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009, and will not affect the financial statements of the
Group. *

Standards and Interpretations published by 30 June 2008 which had been adopted by the European Union by
the publication date of these financial statements:

IFRS 8 "Qperating segments”

IFRS 8, Operating segments, was published by the Internationa! Accounting Standards Board on 30 November 2006, and
replaces IAS 14, Segment Reporting and becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009. This
standard introduces a management appreach to segment reporting, and undertines the necessity to disclose indicators and
other measures used to meonitor and evaluate activities to enable the users of the financial statements to evaluate the
nature and financial results of various forms of activity carried cut by the Group. The Group will apply IFRS 8 beginning
with the financial statements published from 1 lanuary 2009, and will include in them informational disclosures in
accordance with the management approach.

2.2 Accounting policies
2.2.1 Property, plant and equipment

The following are considered to be items of property, plant and equipment:

- assets held by the entity for use In production, supply of goods and services or for administrative purposes,
- assets which are expected to be used during more than one year,

- assets which are expected to generate future economic benefits that will flow to the entity, and

- assets, the value of which can be measured rellably.

Upen inltlal recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost.

Borrowing costs incurred for the purchase or construction of an item of property, plant and equipment are not recognised
in the cost. Foreign exchange differences arising from foreign currency liabilities, related to the purchase or construction of
an item of property, ptant and equipment, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Upen initial recegnition, in the costs of property, plant and equipment, the anticipated costs of future assets’ dismantling
and removal and the cost of restoring the sites on which they are located, the obligation for which an entity incurs either
when the item is installed or as a consequence of having used the item for purposes other than to produce Inventeries are
Included. In particular, in the initial cost of items of property, ptant and equipment, discounted decommissioning costs of
assets relating to underground mining, as well as of other facillties which, in accordance with binding laws, must be
liquidated upon the conclusicn of actlvities are included.
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for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
(amounts in tables in thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated)

2. Main accounting policies {continuation)
2.2 Accounting policies {continuation)
2.2.1 Property, plant and equipment (continuation)

Mine decommissioning costs recognised In the inltial cost of an item of property, plant and equipment are depreciated in
the same manner as the item of property, plant and equipment to which they relate, beginning from the moment an asset
Is brought into use, throughout the period set out In the asset group decommissioning plan within the schedule of mine
decommissioning.

The decommissioning costs of other Facilities recognised in their initial cost are amortised beginning from the mement an
item of property, plant and equipment is brought inte use, throughout the period of use and in accordance with the
method used for the depreciation of those items of property, plant and equipment to which they have been assigned.

Property, plant and equipment acquired before 31 December 1996 and brought Into use after this date, for which
expenditures were incurred to the end of 1996, were restated to account for the effects of hyperinflation in accordance
with IAS 29, "Financial reporting in hyperinfiationary economies”.

As at the balance sheet date, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditures on items of property, plant and equipment (for example to increase the usefulness of an item,
for spare parts or renovation) are recognised In the carrying amount of a given item only if it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other expenditures on repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

items of property, plant and equipment (excluding land) are depreciated using the straight-line method over their
antlcipated useful life. The residual value and useful life of an asset and the method of depreciation applied to items of
property, plant and equipment are reviewed at least at the end of each financial year.

The useful lives, and therefore the depreciation rates of items of property, plant and equipment used in the production of
copper, are adapted {o the plans for the closure of operations.

For individual groups of assets, the following useful lives have been adopted:

- Buildings and civil engineering objects: 25-60 years,

- Machines and equipment: 4-15 years,

- Mator vehicles: 3-14 years,

- Other - the useful life is set individually for specific items of property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation begins when an item of property, plant and equipment is available for use. Depreciation ceases at the earlier
of the date that the asset is classified as held for sale (or included as part of a disposal group which is classified as held for
sale) in accordance with IFRS 5 "Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations” or when it is derecognised
upen dispasal or retirement.

The basis for the calculation of depreciation is the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment less its residual value.

The individual significant parts of an ltem of property, plant and equipment (components), whose useful lives are different
from the useful life of the given asset as a whole and whose cost Is significant in comparison to the cost of the item of
property, plant and equipment as a whole, are depreclated separately, applying depreciation rates reflecting their
anticipated useful lives.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down to its recoverable amount, if the carrying amount of the asset {or a cash-
generating unit to which it belongs) is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

The asset’s carrylng amount Includes costs of necessary regufar major averhauls, including for the purpose of certification.

Specialised spare parts with a significant Initial cost and an anticipated useful life of more than 1 year are recognised as an
item of property, plant and equipment. Spare parts and servicing equipment whose use is restricted to only certain items
of property, plant and equipment are recoegnised in a similar manner. Other spare parts and servicing-related equipment
with an insignificant cost are recognised as inventories and accounted for in the income statement at the moment they are
used.

Fixed asset is derecognised when it is sold, decommissioned or If no future econamic benefits are expected to be derived
from its use or disposal.

2.2.2 Intangible assets

Intangible assets include identifiable non-monetary assets without physicalt substance, i.e.:
- development costs,

- goodwill,

- software,

- acquired concessions, patents, llcenses,

- other intangible assets, and

- intangible assets not yet available for use (under construction).
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for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
{amounts in tables in thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated)

2. Main accounting policies (continuation)
2.2 Accounting policies {continuation)

2.2,2 Intangible assets (coentinuation)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisition of an entity over the fair value of the Group's Interests in the
identiflable net assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of the acquisition, or of the acgquired asscciate at the date of
the acqulsition of the investment. Goodwill on acquisitions of a subsidiary is recognised in intangible assets. Goodwill on
acquisition of investments in associates is included In the carrying amount of such investment.

Goodwill Is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Testing for impairment is performed and any potential impairment loss is recognised in accordance with the policies
described in note 2.2.10 “"Impairment of non-financial assets”.

The carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entlty which was disposed of enters into determination of the galn or loss
on disposal of subsidiaries and associates.

Development costs i

The entities of the Group carries out development projects which are primarily aimed at reducing copper preduction costs,
increasing the production capacity of smelters and mines, improving the technical parameters of manufactured products,
improving copper production technology.

An intangible asset arising from development |s recognised if the entity can demonstrate:

a) the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale,
b} the intention to complete the intanglible asset and use or sell it,

£} its ability to use or sell the intangible asset, ‘
d} the manner in which the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits,

e) the availabllity of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and use or selt the
intangible asset, and ‘

f) its ability to measure reliably the expenditures attributable to the intangible asset that have been incurred during its
development.

Internally generated costs of development projects recognised as an item of intangible assets is the sum of expenditure ‘
Incurred from the date when the intangible asset arising from development first meets the criteria for recognition. X

Capitalised development costs are recognised as an intangible asset not available for use and are not amortised until the
moment when the given intangible asset is completed and the decision has been taken to implement it. Such intangible
assets are, however, tested annually for impairment. The ameaunt of the impairment is recognised in the profit or loss.

Internally generated Intangible assets are amortised using the stralght-line method over the period of their anticipated
use,

Research expenditure Is recognised as an expense as Incurred.
Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets are measured at cost at initial recognition.

Any borrowing costs incurred for a qualifying intangible asset are recognised in the income statement In the period In
which they are incurred. Exchange differences which arise from liabilities in a foreign currency which are related to the
acquisition or construction of an item of Intangible assets are recognised in profit or loss in the peried in which they are
Incurred.

At the balance sheet date intangible assets are measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
Impairment losses.

Intangible assets (excluding geodwill and intangible assets not yet available for use) are amortised using the straight-line
methad over their anticipated useful lives, which are as follows for the specific types of intangible assets:

- Software - 2-8 years,

- Licenses for computer software - 2 - 5 years,

- Rights to geological infermation - 50 years,

- Acquired property rights — over a useful life set separately for individual property rights.

The amortisation method and the amaortisation rate of intangible assets are subject to review at each balance sheet date.
As in the case of goodwill, intangible assets not yet available for use (under construction) are not amortised, but are

tested annually for impairment. Any potential impairment joss is recognised in the income statement.
There are no intangible assets In the Group with an indefinite useful life.
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for the period—from l-J'anuary 26-08 to-jb-jﬁne 2008
{amounts in tables in thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated)

2. Main accounting policies {continuation)

2.2 Accounting policies (continuation)

2.2.3 Investment property

Investment property is property which the Group treats as a source of income from rentals, or for capital appreciation, or
both. Investment property also includes property held under an operating lease agreement, as long as it would otherwise
meet the definition of investment property.

Investment property (other than that held under an operating lease agreement) Is initially measured at cost. Transactlon
costs are included in the initial measurement.

The initial cost of the right to use an Investment property {a property interest) held under a lease is recognised at the
lower of the fair value of the property and the present value of the minfmum lease payments.

On subsequent balance sheet dates Investment property is measured at fair value. Any gain or loss arising from a change
In the fair vatue of the investment property affects net profit or loss for the perlod In which it arises.

Investment property is derecognised on disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal.

2.2.4 Investments in subsidiaries and associates

a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statements of KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A, are those entities which the Group has the
power to govern in terms of their financial and operating policies in order to achieve benefits from their activities. Such
control is exercised through ownership of the majority of the total number of votes in the governing bodies of these
entities, i.e. in their management and supervisory boards. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are also considered when assessing whether the Group controls a given entity.

The purchase method is used to account for the acquisition of subsidlaries by the Group.

The carrying amount of Investments held by the Parent Entity in each subsidlary is eliminated, along with the respective
portion of equity of each subsidlary. The excess of the carrying amount of the investment over the fair value of the
Group’s interest In the identifiable net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. The excess of the fair value of the Group’s
interest in the net assets acquired aver the cost of acquisition is recognised directly in the income statement.

The cost of an acquisitien is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity Instruments issued and llabllities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Identiflable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilltles assumed in a business combination are measured at their fair values at the
acqulsition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income, expenses and unrealised gains recognised in assets are eliminated.
Unreallsed losses are also eliminated, unless the transaction provides evidence of the Impairment of the asset transferred.
Minority interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are recognised as a separate item of equity.

Consolidation of subsidiaries Is discontinued from the date on which control ceases.

The Group treats transactions with mincrity interest as transactions with third parties external to the Group. Disposals to
minority interest result in gains and losses for the Group that are recorded in the income statement. Purchases from
minarity Interest give rise to goodwill, belng the difference between any conslderation paid and the Group’s Interest in the
carrying amount of the net assets acquired.

b) Assoclates

Investments in associates, l.e. entities over which the Group has significant influence but does not control, and In which it
participates in setting both the financial and operating policies of the entity, are accounted for using the equity method in
the consolidated financial statements.

These investments are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s net investment in an associate includes goodwill, as set at
the date of acquisition, less any accumulated impairment losses.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profits or losses of associates is recognised In its profit or loss, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other equity is recognised in the respective item of the equity. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements in equity are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds Its interest in the asscciate, the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses,
uniess it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The interest in an associate Is the carrylng amount of the Investment in the associate under the equity method together
with any long-term interests that, In substance, form part of the investor’'s net Investment in the associate.
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(amounts in tables in thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated)

2. Main accounting policies {continuation)

2.2 Accounting policies {continuation)

2.2.5 Financial Instruments

2.2.5.1 Classification of financial instruments

Financial instruments are classified into one of the following categories:

. financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss,

. loans and receivables,

. held-to-rmaturity investrments,

. available-for-sale financlal assets,

. financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss,
. other financial Jiabilities,

. derivative hedging instruments.

Financial instruments are classified based on their characteristics and the purpose for which they were acquired.
Classification is made upon initial recognition of the financial asset or liability. Classificaticn of derivatives depends on their
purpese and on whether they qualify for hedge accounting according to the requirements of IAS 39. Derivatives are
classified as hedging instruments or as instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Carrying value of cash flows with a maturity period of more than 12 months of the balance sheet date is classified as non-
current asset or non-current liability. Carrying value of cash flows falling due within 12 months of the balance sheet date is
classified as current asset or current liabllity.

The following principles for the classification of financial assets and liabilities to the above specified categories were
adopted:

This category includes financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading and financial assets and liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss at their initial recegnition.

A financial asset is classified to this category if It is acquired principally for the purpose of selling In the near term or if it is
designated by the Group upon initlal recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. A financial asset or financial llability
may be designated by the Group when initially recognised as at fair value through profit or loss only, if:

a) such classification eliminates or significantly reduces any inconsistency In respect of measurement or recognition
(also defined as “an accounting mismatch”), that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising gains or losses using different basis; or

b} a group of financial instruments is managed properly and the performance of the group |s evaluated on the fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy.

Available-for-sale financial assets and liabilities include derivative Instruments, unless they have been designated as
hedging instruments.

Assets and liabillties in this category are classified as current {current liabilities), if they are expected to be realised within
12 months from the balance sheet date.

Loans and receivables {L&R)

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted on an
actlve market. They arise when the Group transfers monetary resources, delivers goods or services directly to the client,
and does not Intend to classify these receivables to financlal assets measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and receivables are classified as current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the balance
sheet date. Loans and receivables with maturlties greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date are classified as
nan-current assets. Loans and recelvables are Included in trade and other receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents are classified as loans and receivables. Cash and cash eguivalents are a separate position in the
balance sheet.

Held-to-m \'i ts (HtM

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities

that the Group has the positive intention and ability to held to maturity, except for assets classified as measured at fair
value through profit or loss or available for sale, as well as financlal assets meeting the definition of loans and receivables.
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(amounts in tables in thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated)

2. Main accounting policies (continuation)
2.2 Accounting policles (continuation)
2.2.5. Financial Instruments (continuation)

2.2.5.1 Classification of financial instruments (continuation)

-fer-sale financiatl ts (AfS

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are either designated as 'available-for-sale’ or
not classified to any of the other categories. This category primarily includes financial assets which do not have a fixed
maturity date and which do not meet the criteria for being Included in the category of financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss, as well as financial assets which were acquired on a secondary market and which have a fixed
maturity date, but which the Group does not intend and is not able to hold until maturity.

Available-for-sale financial assets are included in non-current assets unless the Group Intends to dispose of the investment
withln 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities included in this category are those that were not classified at their initial recognition as measured at falr
value through profit or loss.

Hedaging instruments (HI)

Derivative instruments designated and qualifying for hedge accounting are classified into a separate category called:
Hedging instruments”. The Group presents as ,hedging instruments” the entire fair value of a transaction, even if the
Group excludes part of change in fair value of the instrument from the effectiveness measurement.

2.2,5.2 Initial measurement and derecognition of financial instruments

Transactions respecting the purchase and sale of Investments, Including regular way purchases cr sales, are recognised at
the trade date, initially at fair value plus transaction costs, with the exception of financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value through profit or loss, which are initially recognised at fair value.

Investments are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of their ownership. Where substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership have not been transferred, financial instruments are derecognised when the
Group loses control over a given asset,

2.2.5.3 Measurement at the balance sheet date

Ei ial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or lo =for-
i cial assets and hedging instruments

Available-for-sale financlal assets, fimancial assets and financial liabllities measured at falr value through profit or loss and
hedging instruments are subsequently measured at fair value. Avallable-for-sale financlal assets, the fair value of which
cannot be determined in a reliable manner and which do net have a fixed maturity date are carried at cost.

Gains and losses on financial assets which are classified as financial assets measured at falr value through profit or loss
are recognised In the income statement in the period in which they arise.

Gains and losses on financial assets which are classified as available-for-sale are recognised in equity, except for
impairment losses and exchange gains/losses on monetary assets and interest calculated using the effective interest rate

method. When available-for-sate financial assets are derecognised, the total cumulative gains and losses which had been
recognised in equity are recognised in the income statement as gains and losses.

The disposal of investments of the same type but with a different cost basis is accounted for using the FIFO method.

Loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity Investments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method.

Other financial liabilities

After initial recognition, the Group measures all financial liabilities, apart from those classified as at fair value through
profit or loss, at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method except for:
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for the perled from 1 Januvary 2008 to 30 June 2008
(amounts in tables in thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated)

2. Main accounting policies (continuation)
2.2 Accounting policies (continuation)
2.2.5 Financial Instruments {continuation)

2.2.5.3 Measurement at the balance sheet date (continuation)

. financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition (when the
centinuing involvement approach applies),

If the transfer of financial assets does not qualify them for derecognition because the Group retained virtually
all of the risks and rewards associated with ownership of the transferred asset, then the Group continues to
fully recognise the transferred asset and simultaneously recognises a financial liability in the amount of the
payment received. In subsequent periods, the Group recognises all revenues received from the transferred
asset and all expenditures incurred in respect of the financial liability;

. financial guarantee agreements, measured at the higher of:
o the amount determined in accordance with note 2.2,15 Provislons, or

o the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation reccgnised according
to International Accounting Standard No 18 Revenue.

2.2.5.4 Fair value

Fair value is considered to be the purchase price of a financial instrument or, in case of liabilities, the sales price of an
instrument, unless there are any indicators that a financial instrument was not purchased at fair value.

Al the balance sheet date, the fair value of financial instruments, for which an active market exists, is established based
on the current bid/ask prices, If the market for a financial Instrument Is not active {and in relation to non-quoted
securities), the Group establishes fair value using appropriate vatuation techniques. Valuation techniques used include
comparison with recent arm’s length market transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties, If available, reference to
the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing
models and other valuation technigues/models which are commonly used by market participants, adjusted to the
characteristics and parameters of the fair valued financial instrument and the situation of the issuer.

Estimated fair value reflects the amount reccverable or payable to close out an outstanding position at the balance sheet
date. Where possible, transactions are fair valued based on market prices. In the case of purchase or sale of commeodity
forwards, fair value was estimated based on forwards prices for the maturity dates of specific transactions. In case of
copper, the officlal LME closing prices and volatility estimates as at the balance sheet date are obtained from the Reuters
news service. For silver and goeld, the LBM fixing price at the balance sheet date is used. In the case of volatility and silver
and gold forward rates, quotations given by Banks/Brokers are used. Currency Interest rates and currency volatility ratios
obtained from Reuters are used. Forwards and swaps on copper market are priced based on forward market curve. Silver
and currency forward prices are calculated based on fixing and respective interest rates. Levy approximation to Black-
Scholes model Is used for Asian options pricing on commodity markets, whereas standard German-Kohlhagen model is
used for currency of European option pricing.

The fair value of unguoted debt securities is established as the present value of future cash flows resulting from those
instruments, discounted using the current interest rate.

The fair value of participation units held in open-end cash investment funds is determined based on the valuations quoted
by those funds. Fair value of participation units held in close-end investment funds is measured based on the analysis of
Information Included in the financia! statements of the funds,

The falr values of financial instruments held by the Group are determined based solely an market prices or on valuatlon
techniques which use as input data only observable market variables from active markets.

2.2.5.5 Impairment of financial assets

At each balance sheet date an assessment is made of whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. The following are considered significant objective indicators (evidence of impairment):
significant financial difficulty of the debtor, legal action being taken against the debtor, the disappearance of an active
market for a given financial instrument, the occurrence of significant unfavourable changes in the economic, lega! or
market enwvironment of the issuer of a financial instrument, and the prolonged decrease of the fair value of a financial
Instrument below it's amortised cost.

If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss that had been recognised directly in
equity — catculated as the difference between the acquisition cast and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognised in profit or less.
Impairment losses on equity instruments recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. The reversal
of impairment losses on debt financlal instruments Is recegnised in profit or loss if, in a pericd subsequent to the period of
the recognition of the impairment loss, the fair value of these Instruments increased due to events occurring after the
recognition of the impairment, loss,
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for the périod from 1 Jarﬁ.lary VZOOBV‘EO'Z;}b'J'Une 2008
(amounts in tables in thousand PLN, unless ctherwise stated)

2. Main accounting policies {(continuation)
2.2 Accounting policies {continuation)
2.2.5 Financlal Instruments (continuation)

2.2.5.5 Impairment of financial assets (continuation)

If evidence of potential impairment of loans and recelvables or of held-to-maturity investments measured at amortised
cost exist, the amount of the impairment loss Is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at the initial recagnition for fixed interest rate assets, and the effective interest rate computed at the last
revaluation for floating interest rate assets). Any impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. The carrying amount of
financial assets is determined by using a separate account for Impairment losses {credit losses).

Loans and receivables, as well as held-to-maturity investments which are measured at amortised cost, are individually
tested for impairment at each balance sheet date. Receivables, against which no impairment allowance was made, but for
which the possibility of impairment exists due to their specific credit risk (related for example to the type of activity or
structure of the clients) are tested for impairment as a group (assets’ portfolio).

An impairment allowance is reversed, if in subsequent periods the impairment is reduced, and this reduction may be
attributed to events occurring after recognition of the impairment, allowance. The reversal of an impairment allowance is
recognised In profit or loss.

2.2.5.6 Embedded derivatives

Initial recognition of derivatives

Embedded derivatives are separated from host contracts and accounted for separately as at the date of transaction, if all of
the following conditions are met:

. the hybrid {combined) instrument not measured at fair value, with changes In fair value recognised In other
operating income or other operating costs,

. the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the economic
characteristics and risks of the host contract, and

] a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative.

Re-assessment of contracts for possible bifurcation of embedded instruments Is made whenever there Is a significant change
to the contract that significantly modifies cash flows arising from the contract.

These criterta in particular are deerned as being met for contracts involving metals sales or the purchase of copper-hearing
materials, in which prices are set after the date of sale or purchase. In such cases the Greup accounts for the embedded
derivative instrument separately from the host sale/purchase contract. From the moment of bifurcation, the embedded
derivative instrument Is measured at fair value at each balance sheet date. From the date of bifurcaticn, the embedded
derivative instrument is classified as a financial asset or liability measured at fair value through profit or loss, Any change
in the balance of the embedded derivative instrument is accounted for as an adjustment respectively of revenues from
sales or costs of sales.

2.2.5.7 Hedge accounting

Hedging, for accounting purpeses, involves proportional offsetting of the effects of changes in the fair value or cash flows
arising from a hedging instrument and a linked hedged item. The types of hedges include fair value hedges, cash flow
hedges and hedges of net investment in foreign operations. Financial assets which are not derlvative financial instruments,
or financlal liabilities which are not derivative financia! Instruments, may be designated as hedging instruments only for
the currency risk hedging relationships.

The Group does not recognise either fair value hedges or hedges of net investment in foreign operaticens. Hedging
instruments are designated as cash flow hedges.

Derivatives u i flow hedges
In a cash flow hedge, a derivative used as a hedging instrument is an instrument which:

. hedges the exposure to volatility of cash flows which is attributable to a particular type of risk associated with a
recognised asset or llability, or a highly probable forecast transaction, and
. will affect reported profit or loss.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge are recognised as a
separate item of equity, to the extent to which the change in fair value represents an effective hedge of the associated
hedged item. The portion which is ineffective is recognised in the income statement as other operating income or costs.
Gains or losses arising from the hedging Instrument in cash flow hedges are reclassified inte profit or loss in the same
pericd or periods In which the hedged item affects profit or loss.
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for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
{amounts in tables in thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated)

2. Main accounting policies (continuation)
2.2 Accounting policies (continuation)
2.2.5 Financial Instruments (continuation)

2.2.5.7 Hedge accounting (continuation)

Hedge effectiveness is the degree to which changes in the cash flows of the hedged Item that are attributable to the
hedged risk are offset by changes in the cash flows of the hedging instruments.
If the hedged firm commitment or forecast future transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial
asset or non-financial liability In the balance sheet, then, at the time the item is recognised, all associated gains and losses
are included In the initial cost or other carrying amount of the asset or liabllity.

Hedge accounting includes the use of forecasted cash flow hedges. The designated hedges relate to the future transactions
forecasted as assumed In the Sales Plan for a given year. These plans are prepared based on the production capacities for
a glven peried. The Group estimates that the probability of these transactions occurring is very high, as from historical
point of view, sales were always realised at the levels assumed in Sales Plans.

When entering intc hedging transactlons, the Group documents the relationship between hedging instruments and the
hedged items, as well as the objective of entering into a particutar transaction. The Group also documents its assessment,
both at the date of Inception of the hedge as well as on an on-going basis, of whether the derivative instruments used in
hedge relationships are and will be highly effective in offsetting changes in the cash flows of the hedged items.

Discontinuation of hedge accounting

Derivative instruments cease to be accounted for as hedging instruments when they expire or are sold, terminated or
settled, or when the Group revokes its designation of a given instrument as a hedging Instrument. The Group may
designate a new hedging relationship for a given derivative, change the intended use of the derivative, or designate It to
hedge another type of risk. In such case, for cash flow hedges, gains or losses which arose In the periods in which the
hedge was effective are retained in equity untll the hedged item affects profit or loss.

If the hedge of a firm commitrment or forecast future transaction ceases to exist, because the hedged item no longer meets
the definition of a firm commitment, or because it Is probable that the forecast transactlon will nat occur, then the net gain
or loss recognised In equity Is immediately transferred to the income statement.

2.2.6 Inventories

Inventories consist of the following items:
- materials,

- semi-products and work in progress,
- finished goods, and

- goods for resale.

Inventory additions are measured in accordance with the following principles:
- materials and goods for resale - at cost,

- finished goods, semi-products - at actual manufacturing cost,

- work in progress - based on valuation of the work-in-progress inventories.

Inventory disposals are measured in accordance with the following principles:

- materials and goods for resale - at average cost based on the weighted average cost of a given item,

- finished goods and semi-products - by way of valuating the difference between inventories closing balance and the
value of any additions, and giving due regard to the opening balance.

Inventories are measured in accordance with the following principles:

- materials and goods for resale — at average cost as set for inventory disposal,

- finished goods, semi-products and work in progress - based on cumulative actual manufacturing costs and giving
due regard to the opening balance.

At the balance sheet date inventories are measured, using the above-mentioned policies, but not higher than the net

realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.2.7 Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value. After initial recognition, trade receivables are measured at

amaortised cost using the effective interest rate, less allowance for impairment, while trade receivables with the maturity
period of up to 12 months from the receivable origination date are not discounted.
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for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
(@mounts in tables in thousand PLN, unless otherwlse stated)

2. Main accounting policies {continuation)
2.2 Accounting policies (continuation)

2.2.7 Trade and other receivables (continuation)

Impairment allowances on trade recelvables are recognised when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect all amounts due. The amount of the impairment allowance is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.

The amount of the impairment allowance Is recognised in the income statement.

Receivables not representing financial assets are recognised Initially at their nominal value and measured at the balance
sheet date at the amount due,

Receivables with a maturity period of over 12 months from the balance sheet date are classifled as non-current assets.
Current assets Include receivables with a maturity pericd of up to 12 months from the balance sheet date.

Recognised as recelvables are:

« trade receivables - these are receivables which arise from the principal operating activitles of the Group
+« other receivables, including:
- loans granted,
- other financial receivables, l.e. receivables meeting the definition of flnancial assets,
- other non-financial recelvables, Including advances for dellverles and fixed assets, assets under construction,
Intanglble assets, shares, recelvables from employees, If they are settled other than by cash payment; and
- prepayments.

2.2,8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and in bank accounts, a vista deposits, other safe current investments
with original maturities of three months or less from the date of their placement, acquisition or Issuance and with high
liguidity. Cash and cash equivalents also Iinclude Interest on cash equivalents.

2.2.9 Non-current assets (or dispesal groups) held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for sale, if their carrying amount is to be recovered
principally through sale transactions rather than through continuing use, under condition that they are available for
immediate sale in thelr present condition subject only to terms that are customary for sales of such assets (or disposal
groups) and their sale must be highly probable.

Before the initlal classification of assets (or disposal groups) as held for sale, the carrying amount of the asset is measured
In accordance with applicable standards.

At the moment of reclassification these assets are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell.

2.2.10 Impalrment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets not yet available for use, are not amortlsed, but are tested annually for impalrment.

A depreclable asset is tested for impairment whenever an event or change In circumstances Indicates that its carrylng
amount may not be recoverable. A Impairment loss Is recognised as the amount of the carrying value of the given asset
which exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of two amounts: fair value less costs to sell,
and value In use.

For the purpose of impairment assessment, assets are grouped at the lowest level at which they generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets (cash-generating unlts). Cash-generating units are determined
separately each time an Impairment test Is to be performed.

If an Impalrment test Indicates that the recoverable amount (l.e. the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and
its value in use) of a given asset or cash-generating unit is lower than Its carrying amount, an impalrment loss is
recognised as the difference between the recoverable amount and the carrying amount of a given asset or cash-generating
unit, Any impalrment loss is initially atlocated to goodwlll, If any, The remaining amecunt of the impairment is allocated te
assets within the cash-generating units proportionally to their share of the carrying amount of the entire unit. If such
allocation Is made, the carrying amount of the asset may not be lower than the highest of the following amounts: fair
value less costs to sell, value in use and zero.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Non-financlal non-current assets, other than goodwlll, for which an impairment loss was recognised in prior periods, are

tested at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of the passibility that an impairment loss
may be reversed.
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for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
{amounts in tables in thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated)

2. Main accounting policies (continuation)
2.2 Accounting policies {continuation)
2.2.11 Equity

Equity consists of:
1. Share capltal.
2. Other reserves, which consist of;
- revaluation reserve set at the fair value of the cash flow hedging instruments in the portion reflecting an effective
hedge, and adjusted by deferred tax, and
- revaluation reserve for the re-measurement of financial assets classified as avaifable-for-sale to fair value, adjusted
by deferred tax.
3. Retained earnings, composed of;
- undistributed profit or unabsorbed losses from previous years,
- reserve capital created in accordance with the Cede of Commercial Companies,
- reserve capital created and used in accordance with the Statutes,
- profit ar loss for the pericd.

2.2.12 Liabilities

Liabillties are present obligations of the Group arising from past events, the settlement of which Is expected to result in an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits.

Liabilities comprise:

- liabilities arising from bank loans, other loans {borrowings) and finance lease liabilities,
- trade payables,

- other financial liabilitles, and

- other non-financial liabilities.

Current trade payables are recognised in the balance sheet at their nominal value. The carrying amount of these liabilities
reflects the approximate amount representing the level of amortised cost, calculated using the effective Interest rate.
Current trade payables are not discounted.

Liabilities not classifled as financial liabilities are measured at the amount due.

2.2.13 Accrued expenses

Accrued expenses are due and payable liabilities arising from goods received or services performed, for which the payment
has not yet been made, an invoice has not been received or a formal agreement reached with the supplier, including
amounts due to employees.

Accruals include:

- remuneration and the related surcharges paid on a one-off basis, relating to annuat pericds,
- accrued costs of local fees and taxes,

- short-term accruals for unused annual leave.

2.2.14 Deferred income

Deferred income Includes mainly monetary resources received to finance the acquisition or manufacture of assets under
construction or development work, which are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the
depreciation of the assets financed by these resources.

The value of fixed assets, assets under construction and intangible assets acquired for free as grants, is accounted for in
accardance with this Policy, point 2.2.24 Government grants.

2.2.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, such
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are recegnised, in particular, in respect of the following:

- future costs of mine decommissioning after the conclusion of mining activities, costs of decommissioning of
technological facilities in the copper smelters and other facilities {jointly; decommissioning costs) in cases where the
law provides for the obligaticn to dismantle and remove such assets after the conclusion of mining activities and to
restore the sites to their original condition,

- the effects of court proceedings and of disputed issues,

- guarantees granted.

Provisions are recognised in an amount representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount of the provision shall
be the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.

The provision for future decommissioning costs of mines and other faciities is recognised based on the estimated expected
costs of decommissioning of such facilities and of restoring the sites to their original condition. Estimation of this provision
is based on specially-prepared studies using ore exploitation forecasts (for mining facilities), and technical-economic
expertise prepared either by specialist external firms or within the Parent Entity. Provisions are reviewed at the balance
sheet date.
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for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
{amounts in tables in thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated)

2. Main accounting policies (continuation)

2.2 Accounting policies (continuation)

2.2.15 Provisions (continuation)

The amount of provisions set at 1 January 2004, i.e, at the transition date for application of IFRS for the purposes of
preparing the consolidated financial statements, recognised In the cost of property, plant and equipment, was calculated
based on the optional exemption set out in IFRS 1,  First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards”.

Beginning from 1 January 2004, all changes arising from changes in the amount of provisions are recognised in
accordance with IFRIC 1.

In accordance with IAS 1, ,Presentation of Financial Statements” provisions are presented in the balance sheet as either
current or non-current.

2.2.16 Employee benefits

The Group pays retirement benefits due to one-off retirement-disability rights, coal equlvalent payments and jubilee
bonuses according to the Collective Labour Agreements.

The amount of the liability due to these benefits is equal to the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
balance sheet date, and reflect actuarial gains and losses and the costs of past employment. The value of defined benefit
obligations is estimated at the balance sheet date by independent actuaries using the Projected Unit Credit Methed. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting estimated future cash cutflow using the
interest rates on treasury bonds expressed in the currency of future benefit payment, with maturities similar to those of
the liabilities due to be paid. According to IAS 19, the discount rate should be based on the market yields of highly liquid
commercial bonds with low risk. Should there be no developed market for such bonds, and such a situation does exist in
Poland, the interest rate on government bonds at the balance sheet date should be applled.

Actuarlal galns and losses increase or decrease costs recognised in the income statement in the period in which they
arose.

Costs of past employment related to defined benefit plans are accounted for in the income statement systematicatly, using
the straight-line method, over the period until the benefits become vested.

The Parent Entity participates in an Employee Retirement Plan. With respect to this Plan, the Parent Entity has no legal or
constructive obligation to pay any employee benefits if the related insurance firm does not have sufficient assets to cover
its obligations in respect of the Plan particlpants after their period of employment,

2.2.17 Income taxes (including deferred tax)

Income taxes In the income statement comprise: current tax and deferred tax.
Current income tax Is calculated in accordance with current tax laws.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates {(and laws) that are expected to apply to the perlod when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted on the balance
sheet date.

Deferred tax liabillty is recognised for all taxable temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements. This liability is not discounted.

Deferred tax asset Is recognised for all deductible temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financlal statements. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that It is probable that
taxable profit will be avaitable against which the deductible temporary differences and carry-forward of unused tax losses
can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are recognised irrespective of the period in which their realisation is to
occur.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of an asset or

liability in a transaction that:

- is not a business combinatlon, and

- at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit. Deferred tax llability is likewlse
not recognised on temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of goodwiil.

Deferred tax Is recognised in the income statermnent for a given perlod, untess the deferred tax:

- arises from transactions or events which are directly recognised in equity - in which case the deferred tax Is also
recognised in the appropriate equity item, or

- arises from a business combination - in which case the deferred tax affects goodwill or the excess of Interest in the fair
value of net assets over the cost of acquisition.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the entities of the Group have a legally enforceable right to set

off current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and iIf the deferred tax assets and deferred tax llabilities relate to
Income taxes levled by the same taxation authority.
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2. Main accounting policies (continuation)

2.2 Accounting policies (continuation)

2.2.18 Contingent items and other off-balance sheet items

Contingent liabllities are:

a) possible obligations that arise from past events and whose exlstence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity, or

b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

- it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settie the obligation,
or

- the amount of the obligation (liability) cannot be measured with sufficient reliablkity.

The contingent liabllities include, among others:

- guarantees and promissory notes issued for the benefit of third-parties in connection with contracts,

- liabilities due to compensation for damages arising in the course of business activities, resulting from matters which
remain unresolved,

- cenditionally-suspended penalties for economic use of natural environment,

- liabilities arising from Implementatlon contracts, calculated based on future outcome, and

- other contingent liabilitles arising from the contracts.

Other off-balance sheet liabllities Include, among others:

- liabllitles towards the State Treasury due to perpetual usufruct of land,

- liabllitles towards local government entities due to payments in respect of perpetual usufruct of land acquired for a
fee on a secondary market, expressed in the total amount of future minimum payments arising from contracts,

- liabilities towards other entitles due to payments arlsing from noen-cancellable operating lease contracts, expressed In
the total amount of future minimum payments arlsing from the contract.

2.2.19 Revenues

Revenues from sales are recognised at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, less VAT, rebates and
discounts. In the case of sales for which the price is set after the date of recognition of a given sale, revenues are
accounted for based on the forward prices from the date of sale. Revenues from sales which are recognised at such an
amount are adjusted at each balance sheet date by any change in the fair value of embedded derivative instruments,
which are separated from the host sales contract in accordance with point 2.2.5.6. Sales revenues are adjusted for the
galn or loss from the settlement of derivative Instruments hedging future cash flows, in accordance with the general
principle that the portion of galn or loss on a derivative hedging instrument that is determined to be an effective hedge Is
recognised in the same item of income statement in which the gain or loss on the hedged item is recognised at the
moment when the hedged item affects profit or loss.

Recognised In sales revenues are revenues arising from ordinary operating actlvitles of the Group, l.e. revenues from sales
of products, services, goods for resale and materials, reflecting any rebates granted and any other decreases in selling
prices.

In addition, revenue for the given reporting period which affects the financial result of the period includes

other operating income and gains, which are Indirectly related to the activities carried out, in particular:

- Income and gains from investments,

- gains from the measurement and realisation of trading derivative instruments and the ineffectlve portion of gains
from the reallsation and re-measurement to fair vatue of derivative hedging instruments,

- foreign exchange gains, with the exception of exchange differences arising on liabillties representing sources of
finance for the Group's actlvities,

- reversal of impairment losses on held-to—-maturity investments, available-for-sale financlal assets, and !oans,

- release of unused provislons, previously charged to other operating costs, and

- gains on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets,

finance income, representing primarily Income related to financing of the activitles of the Group, Including:

- net foreign exchange gains arlsing exclusively on llabilities from sources of flnancing of the Group’s activities (loans,
bank loans, bonds, finance leases etc.),

- gains eon reallsation and re-measurement to fair value of derlvative hedging Instruments used to hedge llabllities
financing the Group's activitles.

Revenues from le_of pr ds f nd m coqnl Wi

- the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods for resale, finished
goods and materials,

- the Group has ceased to have a continued involvement In the management of goods for resale, finished goods and
materials sold to the extent usually assoclated with Inventory management function, and does no lenger exercise
effective control over those items,

- the amount of revenue can be measured in a reliable manner,

- It is probable that the economic benefits assoclated with the transaction will flow to the Group, and

- the costs Incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Translation from the orlginal Polish version 22




for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
{amounts In tables in thousand PLN, unless ctherwise stated)
2. Main accounting policies {(continuation)
2.2 Accounting policles (continuation)

2.2.19 Revenues (continuation)

Reven T le of services are J wi

- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably,

- it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group,

- the stage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date ¢an be measured rellably, and

- the costs connected with the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.
Interest income is recognised on an accruals basis, using the effective Interest method.

Income from dividends is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment Is established.

2,2.20 Costs

The Group recognises as costs any probable decrease, in the reporting period, of economic benefits of a reliably-
determined amount, in the form of a decrease in the value of assets, or an Increase of provislons and liabllities, which lead
to a decrease In equity or an increase In negative equity in a manner other than the withdrawal of funds by its
shareholders or owners.

Costs are recognised in profit or loss based on the direct relation between costs incurred and specific income achieved, i.e.
applying the matching principle, through prepayments and accruals. In the case of purchases of copper-bearing materials
for which the price is set after the date of recegnition of a glven purchase, inventories are accounted for at the expected
purchase price on the date of recognition of the inventories. Cost of sales at the balance sheet date |s adjusted at each
balance sheet date by any change In the fair value of embedded derivative Instruments, which are separated from the host
purchase contract in accordance with peint 2.2.5.6.

Costs are accounted for both by type and by the cost centres, and are reported in the Income statement using the costs by
function (cost of sales) format as the primary cost reporting format.

The total cost of products, goods for resale and materials sold (cost of sales) comprises:
- the manufacturing cost of products sold,

- the cost of goods for resale and materials sold,

- selling costs, and

- administratlve expenses.

In addition, costs for the given reporting period which affect the financial result of the period include:

other operating costs and losses, indirectly connected with operating actlvitles, including in particular:

- losses on financial Investments,

- losses from the measurement and realisation of traded derlvative instruments and the ineffective portion of losses
arising from the realisation and re-measurement to fair value of derivative hedging instruments,

- forelgn exchange losses, with the exception of exchange differences arising on llabilities representing sources of
finance for the Group's activities,

- impairment losses on held-to-maturity Investments, available-for-sate flnancial assets, loans and other investments,

- provislons recognised for contested issues, penalties, compensation and other costs indirectly related to operating
activities,

- donations granted,

- losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intanglble assets,

and also flnance costs related to financing of the activities of the Group, including In particular:

- overdraft Interest,

- interest on short- and long-term loans, credits and other sources of finance, including discounted llabllities,

- net foreign exchange losses arising on liabilities from sources of financing of the Group’s activitles,

- changes in the level of provisions arlsing from the approach of the time to settle the obligatlon (the so-called
unwinding of the discount effect).

2.2.21 Foreign currency transactions and the measurement of items denominated in foreign currencies

Functional and presentation currency

Items included In the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Group operates, l.e. In the functional currency. The financlal statements are presented in the Polish zloty (PLN), which
is the functional and presentation currency of the Group.

Transactions and balances

At the moment of initial recognition, foreign currency transactions are translated into the functienal currency:

- at the buy or sell exchange rate applied by the bank in which the transaction occurs, In the case of the sale or
purchase of currencles and the payment of receivables or liabilities,

- at the average exchange rate set for a glven currency by the NBP (Naticnal Bank of Poland) prevalling on the date of
the transactlon. The exchange rate prevalling on the date of the transaction is the average NBP rate announced on
the last working day proceeding the transaction day.
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2. Main accounting policies {continuation)
2.2 Accounting policies (continuation)

2.2,.21 Foreign currency transactions and the measurement of items denominated in foreign currencies
(continuation)

At each balance sheet date:

- foreign currency monetary items are translated at the closing rate prevalling on that date, i.e, the average exchange
rate set for a given currency by the NBP,

- non-monetary items measured at historical cost In a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate (l.e.
average exchange rate set for a given currency by the NBP)} prevailing on the transaction date, and

- non-monetary items measured at fair value In a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate (i.e. average
exchange rate set for a given currency by the NBP) at the date when the falr value was determined.

Foreign exchange gains or losses arising on the settlement of a foreign currency transaction, or on the measurement and
transiation of foreign currency monetary assets and liabilitles (other than derivatives) denominated in a foreign currency,
are recognised in profit or loss. Foreign exchange gains or losses arising on the measurement and translation of foreign
currency derivatives, are recognised in profit or loss as a re-measurement to fair value provided they do not represent
the change in the fair value of the effectlve cash flow hedge or a hedge in a2 net Investment in a foreign operation. In
such a case they are recognised in equity, in accordance with hedge accounting principles.

Forelgn exchange gains or losses arising on non-monetary items, such as equity instruments measured at fair value
through profit or loss, are recognised as an element of changes in fair value, Exchange differences arising on non-
monetary ltems, such as equlty instruments classifled as available- for-sale financlal assets, are recognised in revaluation
reserve at fair value.

2.2.22 Borrowing costs

Borrowlng costs {i.e. costs which include Interest and cother costs incurred by an entity due to the borrowing of monetary
itens) are recegnised in the costs of the period In which they are incurred.

2.2.23 Leases

A lease Is classified as a finance lease if it transfers to the lessee substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of assets. The leased asset |s capltalised at the inception of the lease at an amount equal to the fair value of the
leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments.

A depreciable asset acquired in a flnance lease is depreclated over the shorter of its useful life and the lease term.

Where the substantial part of the risks and rewards incldenta! to ownership of an asset |s retained by the lessor, the lease
contract is classified as an operating lease.

2,2.24 Government grants

Monetary government grants for financing assets are presented in the balance sheet as deferred income.

Government grants are not recognised until there is a reasonable assurance that the entity will comply with the conditions
attaching to them, and that the grants will be recelved.

Monetary government grants are recognised systematically as income over the periods necessary to match them with the
related costs which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis. They are not credited directly to equity.

A government grant that becomes recelvable as compensation for expenses or losses already Incurred or for the purpose
of glving immedi|ate financlal support to the entity with no future related costs Is recognlised as Income of the period in
which it becomes receivable, together with disclosure of this fact,

Grants related to income are presented as income, separately from the related costs which the grants are intended to
cempensate. Grants are recognised as income regardless of whether they were received in the form of cash or as a
decrease of liabilities.

Non-monetary grants are recognised in the accounts in their fair value.
The principles of utilisation of CQ; are presented in note 2, point 2.2.26.

2.2.25 Segment reporting

The activities of the Group are arranged by business segment, i.e. a distinguishable component of the activities of the
Group that is engaged in providing products or services, and that is subject to risks and returns that are different from
those of other business segments.

Geographical segments are identlfied in the consolidated financial statements as a distinguishable component of the

activities of the Group that is engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic environment, and
that Is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of components operating in other economic environments.

Transiation from the original Polish version 24




as adopled DY tNE curopcan vnion
for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
{amounts in tables In thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated}

2. Main accounting policies (continuation)
2.2 Accounting policies (continuation)

2.2,25 Segment reporting {continuation)

Three business segments have been Identifled for internal reporting purposes:

Segment I - copper, precious metals, other smelter products - extraction, the processing of copper and precious metals,
the production of non-ferrous metals, copper trade and copper promotlon;

Segment II - telecommunlcations and IT services - the provision of telecommunicatlons services, telecommunications, IT
services;

Segment II1 - other sectors, comprising the actlvitles of Group subsidlaries which are not encompassed by segments [
and II.

2.2.26 Emisslon rights

The entities of the Group participate In a program to limit emisslons of carbon dioxide based on the Kyoto protocols of 11
December 1997, which commlt government bodies, including those in Poland, to control and reduce emissions of
greenhouse gases. Based on signed agreements the goal was established to reduce the emissions of carbon dioxide to a
specified level. As a result, the Polish government allocates emisslon allowances in an amount covering the permitted
carbon dioxide emission limlt. Emission rights are granted in accordance with the National Ptan for Allocating Proprietary
Rights for the emission of carbon dioxide, which is developed for each subsequent setttement period.

At inception, proprietary emisslon rights received without cost from the government and any assoclated non-monetary
government subsidies (accounted for as deferred income) are measured at fair value. Purchased proprietary rights are
measured at cost. Proprietary rights represent an Intangible asset. At the balance sheet date, these rights are measured at
cost less any impalrment. Proprietary rights recelved without cost are accounted for In the amount of the difference
between the fair value of the rights received and the amount of the associated deferred income,

Subsidies are settled simultaneocusly with the redemptlion* of proprletary emission rights. The Group applies the principle
of net liabilities to granted proprietary emission rights. In accordance with this principle a provision is recognised when
actual emissions exceed the amount of rights allotted and actually held. Such liabilities are accounted for at the fair value
of the proprietary emission rights which the given entity Is to redeem, plus any eventua! costs or penalties due to a deficit
of the proprietary emisslon rights necessary to resolve this deficit. A provision is created to cover the product
manufacturing cost. This provision is released at the moment of redemption of the proprietary emission rights purchased
by the entity for the purpose of meeting Its obligations. Proprietary emission rights are settled based on the principle ,first
tn-first out” {FIFO).

* redemption means the deciston to redeem the proprietary emission rights issued by the President of the Energy
Regulatery Office based on information on emlssions provided by an Installatlon’s owner,

2.2.27 Earnings per share
Earnings per share for each pericd are calculated by dividing the profit for the given pericd attributable to the shareholders
of the Parent Entity by an average weighted number of shares in that period.

2.2.28 Cash flow statement

Cash flows from operating activitles are presented using the Indirect method.

2.2.29 Capital management

The Group manages Its capital In order to maintain the capacity to continue its operations, including the realisation of
planned investments, in a manner enabling it to generate returns for the shareholders and beneflts to other stakeholders.

In accordance with a market practice, the effective use of capital is menitored, among others, based on:

1. The equity ratio, calculated as the relation of net tangible assets (equity less intangible assets) to tetal assets, and

2. The ratie showing the relatlenship of borrowings and finance lease liabilities to EBITDA. EBITDA is operating profit
plus depreciation and amortisatlon.
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3. Important estimates

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Classification and measurement of financial instruments

In accordance with the guldelines of IAS 39 relating to the classiflcation of non-derivative financial instruments with fixed
or determinable payments, these assets are classifled as held-to-maturlty investments. In making this judgement, the
intended use and possibllity of holding such investments to maturity are evaluated.

Should the Group fail to hold such instruments t¢ maturity, apart from the situation described in IAS 39, It would have to
reclassify all such assets recognised in this group as available-for-sale. In such a situation, the reclassified investments
would be measured at fair value, and not at amortised cost.

At each balance sheet date the Group analyses significance of the impact of blfurcated embedded derivative instruments
on the financial statements. Following this analysis, the Group determined that bifurcation of these instruments at 30 June
2008 will not have a significant impact on the financlal statements.

Estimation of provisions

1. Provisions for future employee benefits - retirement or disabllity benefits, jubilee bonuses and post-employment coal
equivalent payments are estimated using actuarlal metheds. A change in the financial factors belng the basis for
estimation, i.e.

- anincrease in the discount rate by 1% and an increase by 1 % In the coal price and wages increase rate would cause
an increase in the provision by PLN 4 066 thousand,

- a decrease in the discount rate by 1% and an increase by 1 % In the coal price and wages increase rate would cause
an increase in the provision by PLN 247 021 thousand,

- anincrease in the discount rate by 1% and a decrease by 1 % in the coal price and wages increase rate would cause
a decrease In the provision by PLN 171 075 thousand,

- a decrease In the discount rate by 1% and a decrease by 1 % In the coal price and wages increase rate would cause
a decrease In the provision by PLN 4 102 thousand.

2. Provislons for decommissioning costs of mines and other facilities.

These provisions represent the equivalent of the estimated future decommissloning costs of mines and other facilities,
discounted to present value. Revaluatlon of these provisions at the balance sheet date is affected by the following
Indicators:

a) the index of changes In prices In the construction-assembly sector published by Main Statlistical Office (GUS),

b) the real discount rate calculated based on the nominal percentage rate and on the rate of inflation {a quotient of
the nominal rate and Inflaticn), where:

- the nominal percentage rate is based on 3M WIBOR published by the Reuters news service on the last day of the
month in which the provision is measured, plus an average margin applied to bank leans drawn by the Parent
Entity

- the rate of Inflation Is determined for the last 12 months (current to base period), based on the data published by
GUS.

If the real discount rate used to estimate the amount of the provisicns for decommissioning costs of mines and other
facilities decreased by 1%, the carrying amount of the provisions for decommissloning costs would be PLN 165 975
thousand higher.

3. Other non-current provisions ~ they are estimated using parameters applied to measurement of provisions for
employee benefits.

Deferred tax assets/liabllitles

The deferred tax assets/liabilitles are measured using the tax rates which are expected to apply at the moment when the
asset Is realised or the llabllity is settled, based on tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

The probability of realising deferred tax assets Is considered certain.

Presentation

The Group recognises Income and costs related to financial investments under other operating activities in the income
statement on the grounds that these activities (in particular investments In the telecom sector) are connected with the
operating activities of the Group. Detailed principles of recognition of income and costs have been described in Note 2
point 2.2.19 and 2.2.20.
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4. Composition of the KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. Group - subsidiarles

KGHM Polska Miedz S.A., as a Parent Entity of the Group, fully conselidated 25 subsidlarles In the current perlod.

% of share % of voting

Entity Head office Scope of activities capital held rights held
KGHM CUPRUM Spétka z 0.0. - CBR Wroctaw  R&D activities 100 100
KGHM Polish Copper Ltd. London copper trading 100 100
"MIEDZIOWE CENTRUM ZDROWIA" S.A, Lubin medical services 100 100
KGHM Ecoren S.A. Lubin productlon of other products from non- 100 100
metallic mineral resources
"Energetyka" sp. z 0.0. Lubin generation, distribution and sale of 100 100
electricity and heat
CBJl sp. z 0.0. Lubin technical research and analyses 100 100
KGHM Kupferhandelsges m.b.H. Vienna copper trading 100 100
POL-MIEDZ-TRANS Sp. z 0.0. Lubin transportation services 100 100
DIALOG S.A. Wroclaw  telecommunlcations services, 100 100
telecommunications, IT and information
services
KGHM CONGO S.P.R.L. Lubumbashi ore extraction services 99.98 99.98
KGHM Metraco S.A. Legnica trade, agency and representative services 100 100
"Zagiebie" Lubin SSA Lubin participation in and organisation of 100 100
professional sporting events
INTERFERIE S.A. Lubin tourlsm, hotel and spa services 65.67 65.67
PeBeKa S.A. Lubin underground and mining constructicn, 100 100
construction of tunnels
DFM ZANAM - LEGMET Sp. 2 0.0. Polkowice repair and manufacture of machinery 100 100
INOVA Spétka z 0.0. Lubin Inspections and control of machinery, R&D 100 100
work
DKE Spétka z o.0. Olawa collection of municipal and industrial 50.33 50.33
waste, processing, storage and utilisation
of waste
WFP Hefra 5.A, Warsaw production and sale of rust-proof, sliver- 97.52 97.52

plated and semi-sliver-plated table
settings, from man-made materlals and
ceramics, finished and semi-finished
products and services

Walcownia Metali Niezelaznych Gliwice production of sheeting B84.37 84.37

spdika z 0.0.

PHP "MERCUS™ sp. z 0.0. Polkowice trade, production of bundled electrical 100 100
cables

PHU "tubinpex” Sp. z 0.q. Lubin retail trade in food items, catering services 100 100

WM "LABEDY" S.A. Gliwice production of non-ferrous metals, products 88.92 88.92
from non-ferrous metals, services

AVISTA MEDIA sp. 2 0. 0. Wroctaw  design, Implementation and servicing of 100 100
IPTV systems (interactive television)

Vivid.pl S.A. Warsaw internet shop 100 100

KGHM Letia S5.A. Legnica promotion of innovation 94.95 94.95

In the reporting period there were no changes in the structure of the KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. Group.
On 13 May 2008 the Management Board of the Parent Entity resolved to undertake actions almed at liquidating the company

KGHM Polish Copper Ltd. Various scenarios are currently being considered for concluding the activities of KGHM Polish Copper
Ltd.
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5. Information on business segments

REVENUE

External sales
Inter-segment sales
Total revenue

RESULT

Segment result

Unallocated expenses of Group as a
whole

Operating profit

Finance cost - net

Share of profit of associates

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the period

OTHER INFORMATION

Segment assets

Investments in entities accounted for
using the equity method

Unallocated assets of Group as a whole

Total consolidated assets

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabliities of Group as a
whole

Total consolidated liabilities

Capital expenditures

Depreciation of property, plant and
eguipment

Amortisation of intangible assets
Impalrment of property, plant and
equipment and Intangible assets
recognised in income statement

Other non-cash expenses, of which:
- provisions recognised

for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008

Copper and
precious metals, Telecom and

Consolidated

other smelter IT services Other Eliminations amount
products
6091 087 278 179 381 503 - 6 750 769
47 827 1759 763 548 (813 134) -
6 138 914 279 938 1145051 (813 134) 6 750 769
2 439 357 15 056 54 076 (197 122} 2 311 367
- - - - {347 739)
- - - - 1963 628
- - - - (24 712)
- 152 044 480 - 152 524
- - - - 2 091 440
- - - - (372 281)
- - - - 1719 159
At 30 June 2008
Copper and

precious metals, Telecom and

Consolidated

other smelter IT services Other Eliminations amount
products
11 238 737 1202 887 1437 551 (408 127} 13471 048
- 656 849 2911 - 659 760
- - - - 734 474
- - - - 14 865 282
2619178 54 945 429 5590 (209 342) 2 894 371
- - - - 2 554 544
- - - - 5 448 915
for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008

389 480 35 469 89 145 (14 307) 499 787
230 954 53460 39 688 {5997) 318 105
5766 3829 2379 342 12 316
- 2 456 - - 2 456
15 767 5945 15 060 {2 586) 34 186
5124 5 309 14 637 - 25070
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5. Information on business segments (continuation)

REVENUE

External sales
Inter-segment sales
Total revenue

RESULT
Segment result

Unallocated expenses of Group as a
whole

Operating profit

Finance cost - net

Share of profit of assoclates
Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the period

OTHER INFORMATION
Segment assets

Investments in entities accounted for
using the equity method

Unallocated assets of Group as a whole

Total consolidated assets

Segment liabllities

Unallocated llabilitles of Group as a
whole

Total consolidated liabilities

Capital expenditures

Depreciation of property, plant and
egulpment

Amortisation of intangible assets

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets
recognised In income statement
Other non-cash expenses, of which:
- provisions recognised

for the period from 1 January 2007 to 30 June 2007

Copper and

precious metals, Telecom and

Consolidated

other smelter IT services Other Eliminations amount
products
5957 047 240 895 269 957 - 6 467 899
65 510 2 086 706 755 (774 351) -
6 022 357 242 981 976 712 (774 351) 6 467 899
2553 126 43 617 77 B55 (203 264) 2471 334
- - - - (344 775)
- - - - 2126 559
- - - - (15 212}
- 121 926 504 - 122 430
- - - - 2233777
- - - - (408 136)
- - - - 1 825 641
At 31 December 2007
Copper and

precious metals, Telecom and

Consolidated

The principles of distinguishing of segments are described in note 2 point 2.2.25

to the Group.

other smeiter IT services Other Eliminations amount
products
10 029 650 1215920 1 364 612 (451 750) 12 158 432
- 687 665 2431 - 690 096
- - - - 654 870
- - - - 13 503 398
2 587 78B4 69 253 362 468 {223 071) 2 796 434
- - - - 1 205 355
- - - - 4 001 789
for the period from 1 January 2007 to 30 June 2007
307 164 60 833 77736 (3 925) 441 808
202 318 45 624 35817 (S 958) 277 801
5 546 2508 2 265 367 11 086
7 19 - - 26
26 220 536 1858 2 629 31243
16 672 37 855 - 17 564
Inter-segment transactions are entered into under normal market cenditions which also apply in relations with parties external
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5. Information on business segments (continuation)

Information on geographical segments

Revenue for the period

from 1 January from 1 January
2008 to

2007 to

Total assets at

31 December

30 June 2008

Capital expenditures
for the peried

from 1 January from 1 January

2008 to

2007 to

30 June 2008 30 June 2007 2007 30 June 2008 30 June 2007
Poland 2 599 316 2821483 14 741 272 13 410 736 499 577 441 761
Germany 728 037 1107 437 - - - -
France 392 884 49 248 - - - -
United Kingdom 308 082 311051 98 740 68 925 - 12
Czech Republic 478 720 587 131 - - - -
Austria 123 367 153 750 19 433 16 379 5 -
Hungary 103 887 833 - - - -
China 687 981 438 783 - - - -
Other countries 1328 495 998 183 5 837 7 358 205 35
TOTAL: 6 750 769 6 467 899 14 865 282 13 503 398 499 787 441 808

The geographical breakdown of revenues from sales reflects the locatlon of end cllents. The breakdown of total assets reflects
their geographical distribution. The breakdown of total capital expenditures reflects the distribution of assets.

6. Property, plant and equipment

Land

Buildings and constructions
Technical equipment and machinery
Motor vehicles

Other fixed assets

Assets under construction

Total

At

30 June 2008 31 December 2007
20222 20 237
3221876 3208 274
2512909 2475477
132 674 129 056
56 894 52994
799 658 728 314
6 744 233 6 614 352
30
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Changes in property, plant and equipment in the period from 1 January 2007 to 30 June 2008

At 1 January 2007

Gross carTying amount

Accumulated depreciation

Impairment losses

Net carrying amount

Changes in the 1st half of 2007
Settlement of assets under construction

Settlement of assets under constructicn -
other (leases, warehouse acceptance,
without effect)

Direct purchases
Internally-procuced

Reclassification from non-current assets
classified as held for sale or
included in a dispasal group

Disposal
Danations and no-cost transfers

Scrapping/decommissioning or write-off

Reclassification to non-current
assets classified as held for sale or inclusion
in a disposal group

Other changes

Change in amount of provisions far costs of
decommissioning

Transfer between groups
Depreciation

Decrease in accumulated depreciation due to

scrapping, sale and other
Impairment losses

Utilisation of impalrment losses
At 30 June 2007

Gross carrying amount
Accumulated depreciation
Impairment losses

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2007

Gross carrying amount
Accumulated depreciation
Impalrment losses

Net carrying amount

Changes in 2007

Settlement of assets under construction

Settlement of assets under censtruction —
cther (leases, warehouse acceptance,
without effect)

Direct purchases
Internally-produced

Reclassification from nen-current assets
classified as held for sale or
included in a disposal group

Disposal
Donaticns and no-cost transfers
Scrapping/decommissioning or write-off

Reclassification to non-current
assets classified as held for sale or inclusion
in a disposat group

Cther changes

Change in amount of provisions for costs of
decommissioning

Transfer between groups
Depreciation

Decrease in accumulated depreciation due to

scrapping, sale and other
Impairment fosses

Reversal of impairment losses
Utilisation of impairment losses
At 31 December 2007

Gross carrying amount
Accumulated depreciation
Impairment losses

Net catrylng amount

Tachnical
Buildings and " Motor Other fixed Assets under
Note Land N equipment and Tota)
constructions machinery vehicles assets construction

17 B16 6931 032 5626 398 301731 142 156 683779 13702 912
- (3728 788) (3435 164) (190 479) (93 827) - (7448 258)
- {116 875} (55 028) (119} (14) (30 332) (202 368)
17 816 3 085 369 2 136 206 111133 48 315 653 447 6 D52 286
100 53013 333 351 19 515 3145 (409 124) -
- - - . - (1 744) (1 744)
- 10 221 § 015 1022 209 414 782 436 131
- - - - - 2 507 2 507
- - - 454 - - 454
(4 504) (9 465) (2 155) (3 210) . (19 334)
- {175) - - - - (179)
(43) (5128) (63 586) (597) {719) (5) (70 088)
- {3 458) - (263) - - (3759)
- - {6} (22) <] {1371) (1393
- 58 227 - - - - 58 227
- (19 14 . - - -
28 - (85 B15) (175 103) (11 745) (5138) - {277 801)
- 9602 66 744 2570 3747 - 82 663
28, 1 - - (7 - - (19) (26)
- 59 2050 o6 - 1% 2224
17 873 7039172 5894 711 319 685 143 469 688 824 14 103 734
- (3 805 001) (3 543 523) {199 654) (95 218} - (7 843 396)
- (116 B16) (52 585) {23) {14} (30 332) (200 170}
17 873 3117 355 2 298 203 120 008 48 237 638 492 6 260 168
17 81§ 6931 032 5626 398 301731 142 156 683779 13702912
- (3728 788) {3 435 164) {190 479) (93 827} - (7 448 258)
- {116 B75) (55 028) (129) (14} (30 332) (202 368)
17 816 3 085 369 2136 206 111133 48 315 653 447 & 052 286
3446 219 845 715 568 34 576 10953 (584 388) -
N - - - - {17 618} (17 618)
- 13 499 15 313 3781 & 961 1051 991 1 091 545
- - - - - 5 688 5688
- - - 454 - - 454
(981) (5 226) (17 931) (5 311) (3 504) - (32 953)
- (179) (2) (176) 5 (s} (353)
{44) (15 245) (192 537) {3 599) (5170) (9} (216 704)
- {4 125) (63) . 27 - (4 215)
- 6 751 (891) 4 047 (223) 9 835 19 519
- £4 850 - - - - 64 850
- 1287 {1 287} - - . -
- (173 347) (367 533} (23 988) (11 414) - (576 282)
- 14 445 189 091 8 043 7093 - 218672
- (203) {3 773) - - (5178) {9 154)
- - 2 - - 2111 2114
- 553 3412 96 1 12 440 16 503
20 237 7 212 48% 6 144 468 335 503 151 155 749 373 14 613 125
- (3 887 690) (3 613 606} (206 424) (98 148) - (7 805 B68)
. (116 525) {55 385) {23) (13) {20 959) (192 905)
20 237 3208 274 2475 477 129 056 52 994 728 314 6 6514 352
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for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
(amounts In tables in thousand PLN, unless ctherwise stated)

6. Property, plant and equipment (continuation)

Changes in the 1st half of 2008
Settlement of assets under construction

Settfement of assets under construction =
other (leases, warehouse atceptance,
without effect)

Direct purchases

Internally-produced

Reclassification from non-current assets
classified as held for sale or

included in a disposat group

Disposal

Donations and no-cost transfers
Scrapping/decommissioning or write-off
Reclassification to non-current

assets classified as held for sale or inclusion
in a disposal group

Other changes

Change in amount of provisions for costs of
decommissioning

Transfer between groups

Depreciation

Decrease in accumulated depreciation due o
scrapping, sale and other

Impairment losses
Reversal of impairment losses
Utilisatlon of impairment, losses

At 30 June 2008

Gross carying amount
Accumulated depreciation
Impairment losses

Net carrying amount

- 129 822 263 760 9 461 8060 (411 103) -

- . - - (73) (73)

- B42 4 459 1 346 2184 479 077 487 908

- - - - - 2525 2 525

- 629 63 27 - 719

(15} {6 095) (1312) (1653} (112) - (9187)

- (18 792) (104 134) (5 606} (2 815) - (131 347)

- - - (2 634) . (2 534)

{5 259) (2 365) 6231 (577) 4 007 2037

(32 551) - - ) - (32 551)

- (852) 852 - - - -

28 - (83 148) (216 545) (12 664} (5748) - (318 105)
14 768 100 183 9 181 3735 - 127 867

28, 31 (12 410} (44) (854) (3 349) (16 657)
28,30 - 14 015 - - - 166 14 181
- 223 4 881 - - 94 5 198

20222 7 280 233 6 305 791 342 648 157 922 823706 14930522

- (3 956 070) (3729968) {209 907} {100 161) - {7996 106}

- (102 287) (62 514) (67} (B67) (24 048) (190 183}

20 222 3221876 2512909 132 674 56 894 799658 6744233

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment are mainly in respect of the subsidiary Dialeg S.A., in which KGHM Polska
MiedZ owns 100% of the shares. At 30 June 2008 impairment of property, plant and equipment in Dialeg S.A. recognised based
on tests for impairment carried out in 2005 and recognised in the years 2006-2008 due to the withdrawal of MGW and DECT
radio equipment from use, and the write-off of project documentation without realisation, amounted to PLN 183 524 thousand
(at 31 December 2007, PLN 185 950 thousand).

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment used in production or in the provision of services was recegnised in the Income
statement as a cost of sales in the amount of PLN 301 169 thousand (at 30 June 2007, PLN 260 733 thousand). Depreciation of
other property, plant and equipment was recognised in administrative expenses In the amount of PLN 11 406 thousand (at 30

June 2007, PLN 11 953 thousand) and

PLN 5 115 thousand).

The KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. Group as a lessee uses the following items of property, plant and equipment under

finance lease agreements

30 June 2008

At

31 December 2007

Groups of property,

plant and equipment Igst;igfi‘;z: Accumulated  Net carrying Igai:;iatlaﬁgzg Accumulated  Net carrying
finance lease depreciation amount finance laase depreciation amount

Technical equipment 1720 678 1042 11 987 10 895 1092

and machinery

Motor vehicles 11 052 911 10 141 4 737 629 4108

Total 12772 1 589 11 183 16 724 11524 5 200

Transiation from the original Polish version
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for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
{amounts in tables in thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated)

6. Property, plant and equipment {continuation)

KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. Group as a lessor leased out the following property, plant and equipment based on
operating lease agreements

At
30 June 2008 31 December 2007
Cost Depreciation Accumulated Net carrying Cost Depreciation Accumulated Net carrying
for the period depreciation amount for the period depreciation amount

Land 1 855 - - 1855 1855 - - 1855
Buildings and 29 467 339 17 340 12127 31093 678 17893 13 200
constructions
Technical equipment
and machinery 25 768 712 10730 15038 26 659 1390 11 390 15 269
Motor vehicles - - - - 19 - 19 -
Other property, plant
and equipment 607 17 542 65 558 25 505 53
Tatal 57 697 1 068 28 612 29 085 60 184 29093 29 807 30 377

Amount of collateral for the repayment of liabilities of the KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. Group established on property, plant and
equipment was presented in note 21 Collateral for the repayment of liabilitles.

Amount of compensation from parties external to the Group, recognised in profit or loss, with respect to property,
plant and equipment which has been lost or impaired

For the period
from 1 January 2008 from 1 January 2007
to 30 June 2008 to 30 June 2007

Amount of compensation recognised in profit or loss 1078 412

Major investment projects recognised at 30 June 2008 under assets under construction

Construction of the SW-4 shaft 171 916
Glogow Gleboki — Przemystowy 152 837
Mining reglon infrastructural development 88 232
Pyrometallurgy modernisation 44 352
Investments in power and communications facilities 37 034
Modernisation of a stadium 32 704
Modernisation of a tailings hydrotransport installation including the direct pumping of tailings 27 767
Medernisation of steam and water boilers 22 936
Conveyor belt and pipeline transport Investments 22 046
Purchase of mining machinery 20 804
Shafts and primary equipment 14 442
Total 635 070

Major investment projects recognised at 31 December 2007 under assets under construction

Constructlon of the SW-4 shaft 153 475
Glogdw Gieboki — Przemystowy 115 496
Mining regicn infrastructural development 77701
Investments in power and communications facilltles 40 807
Construction of office building 32583
Pyrometallurgy modernisation 32 159
Conformatory work 27 128
Conveyor belt and plpeline transport investments 19 320
Modernisation of steam and water boilers 17 881
Construction of the R-XI shaft 16 842
Shafts and primary equipment 14 023
Modernisation of a tailings hydrotransport installation including the direct pumpling of tallings 13 393
Modernisation of a stadium 10 807
Purchase of mining machinery 10 667
Total 582 282
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for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
(amounts in tables in thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated)

6. Property, plant and equipment {continuation}

Capital commitments at the balance sheet date but not recognised in the balance sheet

At
30 June 2008 31 December 2007
For the acquisition of property, plant and equipment 662 370 454 100
For the acquisition of intangible assets 31150 10 835
Total capital commitments: . 693 520 464 935

Perpetual usufruct of land

At 30 June 2008, the Group entltles used land under perpetual usufruct rights comprising a total area of 6 121 ha (at 31
December 2007: 6 053 ha).

At
30 June 2008 31 December 2007
(ha) (ha)
KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. 5742 5741
Subsidiaries of the Group 379 312

Some Group entities received perpetual usufruct rights free of charge based on laws In force. The land held under perpetual
usufruct comprises industrial terrain related to the principal activitles of the Group, which also include protective zones in which
environmental quality standards have been transgressed due to the activities carried out by the Group.

Due to the nature of the use of the above-mentioned land, the Parent Entity has not determined a fair vatue for these perpetual
usufruct rights at 30 June 2008.

Total value of future minimum fees due to perpetual At

usufruct of land 30 June 2008 31 December 2007
under one year 7627 7130
From one to five years 30 598 28 535
Over five years 469 103 437 063
Total: 507 328 472 728

For the period

from 1 January 2008 from 1 January 2007
to 30 June 2008 to 30 June 2007

Value of fees due to perpetual usufruct of land 6 742 6 361

Fees due to perpetual usufruct of land recognised in
profit or loss

Off-balance sheet liabilities of the Group due to the perpetual usufruct of land were estimated on the basis of annual fee rates
resulting from the recent administrative decisions and the useful life of the land subject to this right.

7. Intangible assets

At
30 June 2008 31 December 2007
Development costs 3399 1 354
Goodwill 2918 2918
Software 23 459 22 137
Acquired concessions, patents, licenses 22 119 16 657
Other intangible assets 40 981 42 195
Intangible assets not yet available for use 25171 33970
Total 118 047 119 231
Transfation from the original Polish version 34
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7. Intangible assets {continuation)

Changes in intangible assets in the period from 1 January 2007 to 30 June 2008:

Acquired Gther Intangible
Note Development Goodwill Software concessions, intangible asse_ts not yet Total
costs patents, assets available for
licenses use
At 1 January 2007
Gross carrying amount 17 276 2 981 80 905 44 758 47 831 37 811 231 562
Accumulated amartisation (12 732) - (55 921) (27 012) (6 066) - (101 731)
Impairment losses - {402) (3415) - - - (3 817)
Net carrying amount 4 544 2579 21 569 17 746 41 765 37 811 126 014
Changes in the 1st half of 2007
Transfer from intangible assets not
yet available for usg B B 3225 937 . {6 162) )
Direct purchases - - 348 151 1136 4042 5677
Other changes - 338 - - - 4412 4 750
Disposals (481) - (10) (6} (26) - {523)
Liguidation or write-off - - {293) - {1 424) - (1717}
Amortisation 28 {1 635) - (3 963) (4 161) (1327) - (11 086)
Decrease in accumulated amortisation
due to liquidation, sale and other 336 . 30 5 699 i 1342
At 30 June 2007
(Gross carrying amount 16 795 3 319 86 175 45 840 47 517 40 103 239 749
Accumulated amaortisation (14 031) - (59 583) (31 167) {6 694) - (111 4758)
Impairment losses - {402) {3 415) - - - (3 817)
Net carrying amount 2 764 2917 23177 14 673 40 823 40 103 124 457
At 1 January 2007
Gross carrying amount 17 276 2 981 80 905 44 758 47 831 37 811 231 562
Accumulated amaortisation (12 732) - (55 921) {27 012} {6 066) - {101 731}
Impairment losses - {402) (3 415) - - - {3 817)
Net carrying amount 4 544 2579 21 569 17 746 41 765 37 811 126 014
Changes in 2007
Transfer from intangible assets not
yet available for use? 44 i 6972 6242 B (13 258) i
Direct purchases a5 - 1134 301 4 569 20 733 26 832
Other changes - 339 (4} - {(37) (10 500) (10 202}
Disposals (481) - 13 (6} {201) - {675)
Liquidation or write-off (737) - {2 214) (2 621) {2571) - (8 143)
Amontisation (3 118) - (7 539) (7 632) (2 975) - (21 264)
Decrease in accumulated amertisation
due to liquidation, sale and other 1074 B 2016 2627 1-645 B 7362
Impairment losses (67) - - - - (816) (883)
Utilisation of impairment losses - - 190 - - - 190
At 31 December 2007
Gross carrying amount 16 197 3320 86 806 48 674 49 591 34 786 239 374
Accumulated amaortisation {14 776} - (61 444} (32017 (7 396) - {115 633)
Impairment losses (67) (402} {3 225} - - {816) (4 510}
Net carrying amount 1 354 2918 22137 16 657 42 195 33 970 119 231
Changes in the 1st half of 2008
I;i';f:ﬁ;;‘l’g‘f;?tjgg'ble assets not 3 597 - 5 282 9 435 - (18 314) -
Direct purchases - - 240 814 1135 9 690 11 879
Other changes (95) - {1 069) 1164 37 (175) (138)
Disposals - - - - (1181) - (1181)
Liquidation or write-off (242) - (1 246) (3 (1 806) - (3297)
Amortisation 28 (1 462) - {3922) (5 446) (1 486) - (12 316)
Decrease in accumulated amortisation
due to liguidatien, sale and other 247 B 1 586 (111 2087 - 3809
Impairment losses 28 - - - (391) - - (391)
Reversal of impairment losses 28 - - 411 - - - 411
Utilisation of impairment losses - - 40 - - - 40
At 30 June 2008
Gross carrying amount 19 457 3320 90 013 60 084 47 776 25 987 245 637
Accumulated amortisation (15 991) - (63 780) (37 574) (6 795) - {124 140)
Impairment losses (67) {402} (2 774) (391) - (816) (4 450}
Net carrying amount 3 399 2918 23 459 22119 40 981 25171 118 D47

Transliation from the original Polish version
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for the period from 1 January 2008 to 20 june 2008
{amounts in tables in thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated)

7. Intangible assets (continuation)

At 30 June 2008, the most significant item of intangible assets of the KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. Group is the documentation of
geological Information on the "Glogdw Gileboki” deposit, included under other intangible assets, with a carrying amount of PLN 29
706 thousand (at 31 December 2007: PLN 30 025 thousand) and the established mining rights for extracting copper ore from the
"Gtogdw Gleboki® deposit with a carrylng amount of PLN 4 037 thousand (at 31 December 2007: PLN 4 080 thousand). The
remaining amortisation period of both items of intangible assets is 46 years.

By the Decree of the Council of Ministers dated 27 December 2005 (Journal of Laws no. 264/2005 item 2206) the Polish
government allocated emlssion rights to the specific eligible business entities.

The planned allocatlon of rights to emit CO; in the years 2008-2012 which was developed based on a draft Decree on the
acceptance of the National Rights Allocation Plan amounts to 486 196 tonnes annually.
At 30 June 2008 this project had not yet been approved by the European Commisslon.

The amaortisation of Intangible assets utilised in the production or in the providing of services was recognised as a cost of sales in
the Income statement: PLN 9 775 thousand (at 30 June 2007: PLN 7 896 thousand). The amortisation of other intangible assets
was recognised in administrative expenses: PLN 1 555 thousand (at 30 June 2007: PLN 2 068 thousand) and selling costs: PLN
986 thousand (at 30 June 2007: PLN 1 122 thousand).

8. Investment property

For the period

from 1 January

from 1 January from 1 January

2007
Note 2008 2007
to 30 June 2008  '© 31 December ., 54 5une 2007
007
Beginning of financial period 16 517 18 853 18 853
Changes during the financlal period - (2 336) (6 036)
- re-measurement to falr value 31 - (2 336) (6 036)
End of financial period 16 517 16 517 12 817

At 30 June 2008, investment property with a value of PLN 16 517 thousand is based on the measurement carried out by a
valuer at 31 December 2007.

The measurement of investment property {land) located in Lubin was carried out by an independent, professlonally-qualified
valuer, holding valid authorisation to perform such valuation, and was estimated using a comparative approach, by the method
of comparing pairs. Selection of the approach and method was based on principles set forth in the act on property management
and the decree of the Councll of Ministers regarding the principles of preperty valuatlon and the princlples and manner of
preparing a valuation survey. Market data was used by the valuer to perform this valuation.
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9. Investments in associates

Beginning of financlal period
Share of profits of assoclates

do dUuPLCU Uy LG LUFLpCAn Wi
for the pericd from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
{amounts in tables In thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated)

from 1 January

For the period

from 1 January

from 1 January

Changes in equity due to payment of dividend for

the prior and current financial year
Other changes

End of financial period

Interests held by the Group In associates

Country of
incorporation

At 31 December 2007
Polkomtel S.A.
MINOVA-KSANTE Spdtka z 0.0.

At 30 June 2008
Polkomtel S.A.
MINOVA-KSANTE Spétka z 0.0.

Poland
Poland

Poland
Poland

2007
Note 2008 2007
to 30 June 2008 to 31 ;J:‘;:;mber to 30 June 2007
690 096 690 074 690 074
35 152 524 265 093 122 430
(182 860) (265 092) (203 167)
- 21 17
659 760 690 096 609 354
Profit for the Interest
Assets Liabilities Sales period held (%)
8453 373 4946 435 7 799 020 1 358 676 19.61
9 740 1635 16 760 3 006 30.00
B 463113 4 948 070 7 815 780 1361 682
8 268 748 4 918 951 4117 743 775 393 19.61
11 741 2 037 B 412 1599 30.00
8 280 489 4 920 598 4 126 155 776 992

Polkomtel S.A., in which KGHM Polska Mledz S.A. owns a 19.61% interest, is an assoclate which is accounted for using the
equity method. The determination of significant influence is based on the fact that, in accordance with the shareholders
agreement and the statutes of Polkomtel S.A,, KGHM Polska Miedz S.A., through its representative on the Supervisory Board,
has influence on resolutions related to the operating strategy of Polkomte! S.A., which in turn affects its operating and financial
policies, The questlon of a possible increase of the Interest in Polkomtel 5.A. was described in Note 42.

10. Available-for-sale financial assets

Non-current available-for-sale financial assets

- shares in unlisted companies

- shares in listed companies

- treasury bonds

- share in the AIG investment fund
- other

Current available-for-sale financial assets

- participation units in the specialist open-end investment fund KBC

GAMMA SFIO

Total available-for-sale financial assets:

11. Held-to-maturity investments

Non-current held-to-maturity investments

- debt securities
- other securities
Total held-to-maturity investments:

Note At
30 June 2008 31 Decembher 2007
44 759 47 155
24 174 23952
9 460 9 455
3154 3076
7 964 10 665
7 7
100 623 -
100 623 -
33.1 145 382 47 155
Note At
30 June 2008 31 December 2007
57 252 43 934
57 254 43 893
38 41
331 57 292 43 934
37
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for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
{amounts in tables in thousand PLN, untess otherwise stated)

11. Held-to-maturity Investments {continuation)

The Parent Entity is required by the Law on Geology and Mining, dated 4 February 1994 (Journal of Laws No. 228 item 1947
dated 14 November 2005) and the Decree of the Minister of the Economy of 24 June 2002 regarding the specific principles for
the creation and functioning of mine closure funds (Yournal of Laws No. 108, item 951) to accumulate monetary resources In a
separate bank account called the Mine Clasure Fund (MCF) to cover future decommissloning costs of mines and other facilities.
As these funds will only be utilised in future periods, the Parent Entity has determined that, despite the fact that they are not
invested in long-term financial instruments, they are In fact restricted from being used to settle liabilities within at least twelve
maonths from the balance sheet date (IAS 1 para. 57 d.) and therefore it is more appropriate to present them under non-current
assets.

Management of the MCF assets primarily involves their investment in short-term bank deposits or debt securities with a
maturity of up to 1 year from the date of acquisition. Consequently, the change in this item shows the balance resulting from
closures of accounts and disposals of securities versus acquisitions of securities and the opening of accounts, at the balance
sheet date. MCF assets at the balance sheet date were mainly invested in commercial papers with an amortised cost of PLN 57
561 thousand.

The value of interest on commercial papers calculated using the effective interest rate amounted at the balance sheet date to
PLN 532 thousand. This interest, as accrued interest, was not recognised at the balance sheet date, as the value of the Fund
could not be increased by non-monetary assets.

Information on the fair value of held-to-maturity investments by class of financial instrument was presented in Note 33.2.

12. Derivative financial instruments

At
Note 30 June 2008 31 December 2007

Non-current assets, of which: 8 154 33 395
hedging instruments 8 154 30 308
trade instruments - 3087
Current assets, of which: 16 429 B1 622
hedging instruments 15 665 68 075
trade instruments 764 13 547
Total assets: 331 24 583 115017

Non-current liabilities, of which: - 3 087
trade instruments - 3087
Current liabilities, of which: 61 14 335
hedging Instruments - 964
trade instruments 61 13 371
Total liabilities: 33.1 61 17 422

Transactions involving derivative financlal instruments made on the metals market are settled on the second working day of the
month following the month in which the average settlement price was determined. This means that transactions involving
derivatives made in June 2008 were settled on 2 July 2008. As at the balance sheet date, these transactions were re-measured
to fair value and recognised under trade and other receivables as receivables due to unsettled derivatives, or under trade and
other liabilities as liabllities arising from unsettled derivative financial instruments. For details, see Note 34.1.8.

Translation from the original Polish version 38
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as adopted by the European Unlon
for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
{(amounts in tables In thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated)

13. Trade and other recelvables

At
Note 30 June 2008 31 December 2007

Non-current trade and other receivables
Trade receivables 10 862 11 767
?::E::amctsretained (collateral) due to long-term construction 18 428 10 963
Deposits 15405 15 405
QOther financial receivables 1461 1692
Impairment allowances 34356 (10 313} (11 013)
Total loans and financial receivables, net: 331 35 843 28 814
Qther non-financial receivables 173 59
Prepayments, of which: 17 360 18 198

- perpetual usufruct of land 15 830 15 996
Impairment allowances - -
Total non-financial receivables, net 17 533 18 257
Non-current trade and other receivables, net: 53 376 47 071
Current trade and other recelvables
Trade receivables 1047 237 738 067
Receivabies due to unsettled derlvative Instruments 34.1.8 517 8 877
Loans granted 307 307
Other financial receivables 127 889 45 570
Impalrment allowances 34.3.6 (46 259) (48 839)
Total loans and financial receivabies, net 33.1 1129 691 743 982
Other nen-financlal receivables, Including: 237 396 238 501

- taxes and other charge 194 495 201 BSS
Prepayments 89 B85S 17 114
Impairment allowances (45 429) (74 230)
Total non-financial receivables, net 281 852 181 385
Current trade and other recelvables, net 1411543 925 367
Total non-current and current trade and other 1464 919 972 438

receivables, net

Impairment allowances on non-financial receivables

For the period
from 1 January

from 1 January 2007 from 1 January
2008 to 31 December 2007

te 30 June 2008 2007 to 30 June 2007
Impairment allowances at the beginning of the period 74 230 31889 31 889
Impairment allowances recognised in profit or loss 170 42 564 11 363
Impairment allowances reversed through profit or loss (4 434) {129) (118)
Impairment allowances utillsed during the period (24 542) (96) (1)
Impairment allowances charged to costs of legal proceedings 8 11 5
Reversaf of impalrment allowances charged to costs of legal (3) (9) 2
proceedings
Impairment allowances at the end of the period 45 429 74 230 43 136
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14, Inventorles

At
. Note 30 June 2008 31 December 2007
Materials 329 289 189 292
Semi-finished products and work in progress 1155 576 1177 498
Finished products 324 706 335 226
Goods for resale 53 082 42 479
Total carrying amount of inventories 1862 653 1 744 495

For the period

. frem 1 January 2008 from 1 January 2007
Write-down of Inventories in the financial period to 3¢ June 2008 to 30 June 2007
write-down of inventories recognised in cost of sales 28 {1201) (1225)
Reversal of write-down recognised In cost of sales 28 943 997

Reversal of the write-down was made due to the sale of goods for resale subject to revaluatlon at pre-revaluation prices.

15. Cash and cash equivalents

Note At
30 June 2008 31 December 2007
Cash in hand 632 577
Cash at bank 47 195 86 609
Other cash 161 474
e A s i 2 maturky of up to 3 mants
Total cash and cash equivalents 33.1 3450 503 2812096

Other flnancial assets with a maturity of up to 3 months from the date of acqulsition incfude deposits In the amount of
PLN 2 918 976 thousand (as at 31 December 2007: PLN 2 638 137 thousand), debt securities in the amount of PLN 476 506
thousand {as at 31 December 2007: PLN 83 628 thousand) and Interest accrued on financlal assets in the amount of PLN 7 033
tho‘usand (as at 31 December 2007: PLN 2 671 thousand).

Components of cash and cash equivalents presented in the cash flow statement are the same as those presented in the balance
sheet.

16. Share capital

As at 30 June 2008, the Parent Entity's registered share capital amounted to PLN 2 000 000 thousand and was divided into
200 000 000 shares ("A" series), fully paid, with a nominal value of PLN 10 each. All shares are bearer shares. The Parent
Entity did not Issue preference shares. Each share glves right to one vote at the General Shareholders’ Meeting. The Company
does not have treasury shares. Subsidiarles and associated companies do not own shares in KGHM Polska Mledi S.A,

In the first half of 2008 and In the first half of 2007 there were no changes In the share capltal reglstered or in the number of
shares.

Ownership structure

At 30 June 2008, the only shareholder of the Company with shares representing at least 5% of the share capital and giving
right to the same number of votes at the General Shareholders’ Meeting was the State Treasury, which based on information
dated 16 May 2007 held 83 589 900 shares, with a total nominal value of PLN 835 899 000, which accounts for 41.79% of the
Company's share capital.

Other shareholders (including Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, deposit bank in a depositary receipt program) held
shares In the amount below 5% of the share capital i.e. total of 116 410 100 shares with a total nominal vaftue of PLN
1 164 101 000, which account for 58.21% of the Company’s share capital and glve the same number of vates at the General
Shareholders’ Meeting.

In the first half of 2008 there were no changes in significant blocks of shares.
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17. Other reserves

Revaluation reserve

Revaluation reserve

Note on available-for-sale on cash flow hedging TS:L::::"
financial assets financial instruments

At 1 January 2007 8 684 (439 845) (431 161)
Fair value gains on available-for-sale financial 13 844 . 13 844
assets
Amount transferred to profit or loss due to the .
settlement of available-for-sale financial assets {15 68%) (15 689)
Impact of effective cash flow hedging _
transactions entered into 34.19 78293 78 293
Amount transferred to profit or loss due to the _
settlement of hedging instruments 34.1.9 620 293 620 293
Deferred tax 22 281 (137 733) (137 452)
Total income/{expenses) recoghnised
directly in equity (1 564) 560 853 559 289
At 30 June 2007 7120 121 008 128 128
At 1 January 2007 8 684 (439 845) (431 161)
Fair value gains on available-for-sale financial 13 167 _ 13 167
assets
Amount transferred to profit or loss due to the _
settlement of available-for-sale financial assets (19 894) {19 834)
Impact of effective cash flow hedging _
transactions entered into 3419 131 830 131 830
Amount transferred to profit or loss due to the
settlement of hedging instruments 34.1.9 . 435533 435533
Deferred tax 22 1082 (117 499) (116 417)
Total Income/(expenses) recognised
directly in equity (5 645) 449 924 444 279
At 31 December 2007 3039 10 079 13118
At 1 December 2008 3039 10 079 13 118
Fair value llable-far-sale fi lal
a:lsre\t:; ue fosses on avallable-for-sale financla (2 073) B (2 073)
Impact of effectlve cash flow hedging _
ransactions 34.1.9 2 119 2119
Amount transferred to profit or loss due to the R
settlerment of hedging instruments 34.1.9 (4 214) {4 214)
Deferred tax 22 3985 (554) (159)
Total income/(expenses) recognised
directly in equity {1678) {2 649) (4 327)
At 30 June 2008 1 361 7 430 8 791

The revaluation reserve presented in other reserves, set in the amount of the fair value of hedging Instruments in the effective
pertion of the hedge and the re-measurement to fair value of available-for-sale financial assets, Is not subject to distribution.

Moreover, in the equity item: “Retained earnings”, based on the Code of Commercial Companies, joint stock companies in the
Group are required to create reserve capital against any eventual future or existing losses, to which no less than 8 percent of a
given financlal year's profit is to be transferred until the capital has been built up to no less than cne-third of the share capital.
The reserve capital created in this manner may not be employed otherwise than in covering the loss reported in the financial

statements.

At 30 June 2008, the amount of this statutory reserve capital in the Group is PLN 679 826 thousand, of which PLN 660 000

thousand is in respect of the Parent Entity.
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18. Transactions with minority shareholders

In the first half of 2008 ne transactions were carried out with minority shareholders.

In the first half of 2007 transactions with minority shareholders were as follows:

Type of transaction

For the perlod from 1 January 2007 to 30 June 2007

Liquidation of Energetyka Spotka Specjalnego
Przeznaczenla

Acquisition of shares of WM Labedy S.A.

Change of indirect shares in WMN Sp. z 0.0.

Adjustment to minority interest capital

Total

19. Trade and other payables

Non-current trade and other payables
Trade payables

Cther financial liabilities

Total non-current financial liabilities

Deferred income
Total non-current non-financial liabilities

Total non-current trade and other payables

Current trade and other payables
Trade payables

Payables due to unsettled derivative financia! instruments

Liabilities due to unpaid dividend for 2007
Other financial liabilities
Total current financial liabilities

Liabilities due to taxes and social secunity
Other non-financial liabllities

Special funds

Deferred income

Accruals

Total current non-financial liabilities
Total current trade and other payables

Goodwill/
ln(c:grsr:é Value of net vg?:;:e;ss:fatr:i Loss from  Transactions
from PSSO scauied over QPSS
disposal the cost of
acquisition)
50 (50} - - -
30936 30 598 338 - 338
- (872) - (872) 872
- - - (321) 321
30986 29 676 338 (1193) 1531
At
Note 30 June 2008 31 December 2007
8 990 9281
9751 144
331 18 741 9 425
12 756 15 337
12 756 15 337
31497 24 762
648 922 642 007
34.1.8 35 3304
1 800 000 -
117 936 204 586
331 2 566 893 849 897
308 343 330 608
77 883 79 267
64 570 56 212
29 077 7 647
391 800 322775
871 673 796 509
3 438 566 1 646 406
3470063 167t 168

Total nen-current and current trade and other payables

Trade payables are recognised In the balance sheet at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate, with the proviso that
current trade payables are not discounted. The carrying amount of payables approximates their fair value.

Accruals consist mainly of one-off remuneration paid after the approval of the annual financial statements in the amount of PLN
313 570 thousand (PLN 257 325 thousand at 31 December 2007} and settlement of unused annual leave In the amount of PLN
22 002 thousand (PLN 25 532 thousand at 31 December 2007).
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20. Borrowings and finance lease liabilities

Note At
30 June 2008 31 December 2007

Non-current borrowings and finance lease liabilities

Bank loans 40 012 132 440
Loans 11781 13781
Finance lease liabilities 17 963 16 688
Total non-current borrowings and finance lease liabllities 69 756 162 909
Current borrowings and finance lease liabilities

Bank loans 181 727 101 890
Loans 6 702 7722
Finance lease liabilities 6 736 3589
Total current borrowings and finance lease liabilities 195 165 113 201
Total borrowings and finance lease liabilities 33.1 264 921 276 110

20.1 Borrowings

Bank and other loans as at 30 June 2008

The value of the bank

and other loans at Of which payable in:

Bank loan  Interest balance sheet date
currency rate (in "000)
in foreign . 2009 2011- 2013 and
currency in PLN {current) 2009 2010 2012 beyond
EUR Variable 2 541 B8 624 1265 1326 1412 1316 3305
PLN Variable 221 596 182 162 9 609 5771 6 387 17 667
PLN Fixed 10 002 5 002 5000 - - -
Total bank and other {oans 240 222 188 429 15935 7 183 7 703 20972

Bank and other loans as at 31 December 2007

The value of the bank

and other loans at Of which payable in:

Bank loan Interest balance sheet date
currency rate {in ‘000) 2008
in foreign 2011- 2013 and
currency in PLN (current) 2009 2010 2012 beyond
EUR Variable 879 3149 774 2 146 229 - -
PLN Variable 237 842 100 996 107 811 5976 7042 16 017
PLN Fixed 14 B42 7 842 4 000 3000 - -
Total bank and other loans 255 B33 109 612 113 957 9 205 7 042 16 017

Most of the bank loans drawn by Group companies are bank loans with variable Interest rates. The majority of bank and other
loans denominated in PLN are based on the WIBOR 1M reference rate, plus a bank loan margin, depending on the
creditworthiness of the entity being financed, within a range of from 0.3% to 1%, with interest payable in monthly perlods.
Interest on bank loans denominated in EUR is mainly based on the EURIBOR 1M reference rate, plus a bank loan margin of
fram 0,65% to 1%.
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20. Borrowings and finance lease liabilities (continuation)

20.1 Borrowings (continuation)

The base interest rates applied in bank loan agreements entered into by entities of the Group at the balance sheet date were as
follows:

Ratio (%) At 30 June 2008 At 31 December 2007

WIBOR 1W 6.2000 5.3200
WIBOR 1M 6.2900 5.5200
WIBOR 3M 6.6500 5.68B00
EURIBOR 1M 4.4400 4.2900
EURIBOR 3M 4.9470 4.6800

The major item in borrowings Is the bank loan drawn by the subsidiary Telefonia Dialog S.A. in the amount of PLN 141 159

thousand at 30 June 2008 (PLN 141 081 thousand at 31 December 2007 respectively}). The bank loan agreement sets out the

additional covenants which must be met by the company over the term of the loan, including the following:

- ensuring maintenance of defined financial indicators at set levels during the period of loan term (Financial Debt to EBITDA
Ratio not higher than 2.50 : 1, EBITDA to Interest Ratio no lower than 3 :1, Equity not lower than PLN 900 000 thousand)

- the gbligation to ensure additional collateral on the bank loan, shauld the Financial Debt to EBITDA Ratio be higher than 2.0: 1

- the obligation to make payments to open current accounts maintained by the lending bank throughout the loan term, so as to
ensure that the annual inflow of funds to these accounts from those payments represents the equivalent of at least 50% of the
revenues of the company during this period.

Based on the contracts signed, the total value of overdraft facilities at 30 June 2008 amounted to PLN 104 500 thousand (at 31
December 2007 PLN 103 000 thousand and USD 10 000 thousand respectively), of which PLN 32 505 thousand was utilised at 30
June 2008 (at 31 December 2007 PLN 45 888 thousand). Repayment dates for the overdraft facilities used fall a half year after
the balance sheet date.

20.2 Finance lease liabilities

As at 30 June 2008, the carrying amount of the finance fease liabilities amounted to PLN 24 699 thousand (at 31 December
2007: PLN 20 277 thousand, respectively).

The most significant item is the commitment resulting from an agreement with the State Treasury. Based on this agreement
the State Treasury provides access to geological information for a fee. This informatian was acquired with the purpese of
preparing a licensing application to obtain a license for the extraction of ore from the Glogdw Glehoki - Przemystowy deposit.
This license was granted in November 2004, Payments to the State Treasury are being made in 10 equal instalments. The last
instalment will be settfed on 30 June 2014. Those non interest-bearing liabilities were recognised in the accounts of the Parent
Entity at a discounted amount. As the payments are in EUR, the liability is exposed to currency risk due to changes in foreign
exchange rates at the date of payment. The carrying amount of the liabilities resuiting from this agreement is PLN 14 983
thousand (EUR 4 467 thousand) (at 31 December 2007: PLN 15 909 thousand (EUR 4 441 thousand)), while the carrying
amount of the related intangible assets at the balance sheet date amounts to PLN 29 706 thousand (at 31 December 2007: PLN
30 029 thousand).

Finance lease liabilities as at 30 June 2008

2009 2013 and
(current) 2009 2010 2011-2012 beyond Total

Nominal value of minimum

lease payments 7 478 4 951 4 805 9 069 2482 28 785
Future finance costs due to

finance leases 742 730 702 1269 643 4 086
Present value of minimum

lease payments 6 736 4221 4103 7 800 1839 24 699
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20. Borrowings and finance lease liabilities {continuation)

20.2 Finance lease liabilities {continuation}

Finance lease liabilities as at 31 December 2007

2008 2013 and

(current) 2009 2010 20112012 ‘PO o Total
::‘;';:"lgy":‘:':t:f minimum 3 868 3 634 3583 6 861 5638 23 584
;‘r"g‘:‘rfqugggf costs due ta 279 344 413 1002 1269 3307
Present value of minimum
lease payments 3 589 3 290 3170 5 B59 4 369 20 277

21, Collateral for the repayment of liabilities

In order to guarantee repayment of bank and other loans drawn, the following collateral has been pledged:

proxy rights to all present and future bank accounts of the borrowers,
blockade to the total amount of PLN 200 thousand in the bank account of KGHM Ecoren S.A.,
ordinary mortgage on investment property up to PLN 25 000 thousand,
maximum mortgages to the total amount of PLN 31 105 thousand,
assignment of rights under insurance policy on investments,

contractual mortgages, maximum mortgages and collective mortgage for land,
blank promissory note with a declaration of rights thereunder,

statement on submitting to the enforcement regime,

collaterals and letters of camfort of Group companies,

registered pledge on gas dedusting installations for anode furnaces,
assignment of receivables up to PLN 61 600 thousand,

registered pledge and agreements for ownership transfer on inventories of finished products, semi-finished products,

goods for resale and materials of PLN 25 900 thousand,

assignment of rights under property Insurance agreement (assignment of rights under insurance policy against fire
and other accidents for PLN 15 600 thousand and an insurance policy against theft with breaking, entering and

robbery, PLN 150 thousand),

proxy rights for the Bank to discharge liabilities to the Bank from funds in the current account and other accounts

kept by the Bank

All of the bank and other loans drawn by the Group are covered by one or more of the collaterals listed above.

At the balance sheet date collateral was established for the following assets to guarantee repayment of liabilities or contingent

liabilities:
At
30 June 2008 31 December 2007

Property, plant and equipment, including: 107 414 96 791
»  Assets under construction (incl. those under a mortgage) - 35 409
. Buildings and constructions 68 419 29941
+  Motor vehicles! 9338 3626
. Technical equipment and machinery! 29 657 27 815
Inventories 29 367 27 434
Trade recelvables® 16 525 20 363
Other financial and non-financial receivables 236 -
Cash and cash equivalents 70 433 15 605
b e e e oo™

1) incl. those used based on a finance lease

2) incl. those under a pledge or assignment of receivables
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22. Deferred tax

Net deferred tax asset at the beginning of the period, of
which:

Deferred tax assets at the beginning of the period
Deferred tax liabilities at the beginning of the period
(Charged)/Credited to profit or loss

Decrease in equity

Net deferred tax asset at the end of the period, of which:
Deferred tax assets at the end of the period .

Deferred tax liabilities at the end of the period

Note

36
17

30 June 2008

At

31 December 2007

30 June 2007

290 702 361 930 361 930
320 506 388 468 388 468
29 804 26 538 26 538
{5 651) 45 189 15 457
(159) (116 417) (137 452)
284 892 250 702 239 935
319 174 320 506 267 641
34 282 29 804 27 706
48
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22, Deferred tax (continuation)

Deferred tax assets prior to offsetting

At 1 January
2007 based on

Credited/(Charged)
to profit or loss due
to a change in the balance

Increase/
(Decrease)

in equity due to
change in the

At 30 June 2007
based on

the rate of 19% of temporary differences bhalance of the rate of 19%

and tax loss temporary

differences
Exchange rate differences 16 887 {5919) - 10 968
Interest 13 180 - 193
Allowances for impairment of receivables 8 681 7043 - 15 724
Short-term accruals for wages 52 158 9 320 - 61 478
Employee benefits {holidays} 4 813 174 - 4 987
:;%vgﬁgrf?;cﬁﬁfgsmmlssmnlng of mines a7 245 15939 _ 103 184
Measurement of forward transactions 114 318 26 019 - 140 337
Re-measurement of hedging instruments 125 863 5343 (117 619) 13 587
Depreciation and amortisation 64 271 (5 401) - 58 B70
Liabitities due to future employee benefits 175 437 3122 - 178 559
Unpaid wages with surcharges 48 489 (15 958) - 3253
Other 100 417 (46 852) - 53 565
Total 798 592 {6 990) {117 619) 673 983

Increase/f

Credited/(Charged) (Decrease)
At 1 January to profit or loss due in equity due to At 31 December

2007 based on

to a change in the balance

change in the

2007 based on

the rate of 19% of temporary differences balance of the rate of 19%

and tax loss temporary

differences
Exchange rate differences 16 887 (13 092) - 3795
Interest 13 219 - 232
Allowances for impairment of receivables 8 681 10219 - 18 900
Short-term accruals for wages 52 1k58 5903 - 58 061
Employee benefits (holidays} 4 813 {463) - 4 350
g;%viﬁzrf?;cﬁﬁfgsmmlssmnlng of mines 87 245 17 385 _ 104 630
Measurement of forward transactions 114 318 (52 936) - 61 382
Re-measurement of hedging instruments 125 863 1453 (117 499) 9817
Depreciation and amortisation 64 271 40 323 - 104 594
Liabilities due to future employee benefits 175 437 12 857 - 188 294
Unpaid wages with surcharges 48 489 8 676 - 57 165
Other 100 417 (12 639) - B7 778
Total 798 592 17 905 {117 499) 698 998

Increase/

Credited/({Charged) (Decrease)
At 1 January to profit or loss due in equity due to At 30 June 2008

2008 based on

to a change in the balance

change in the

based on

the rate of 19% of temporary differences balance of the rate of 19%

' and tax loss temporary

differences
Exchange rate differences 3795 {989) - 2 806
Interest 232 (2) - 230
Allowances for impairment of receivables 18 900 (1731) - 17 169
Short-term accruals for wages 58 061 6042 - 64 103
Empiloyee benefits (holidays) 4 350 315 - 4 665
:;%v;stlﬁgrf?arcﬁﬁicg?ml55|on|ng of mines 104 630 (3 791) B 100 839
Measurement of forward transactions 61 382 232 - 61 614
Re-measurement of hedging instruments 9 817 (4 299) {119) 5399
Depreciation and amortisation 104 594 (9 133) - 95 461
Liabilities due to future employee benefits 188 294 5067 - 193 361
Unpaid wages with surcharges 57 165 (19 667) - 37 498
Other 87 778 28 998 - 116 776
Total 698 998 1042 (119) 699 921
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22, Deferred tax (continuation)

The amount of deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses in respect of which the Group did not recognise deferred
tax assets (due to the remote possibility of their belng settled in future years) amounts to PLN 25 110 thousand (at 31

December 2007: PLN 34 916 thousand).

Tax losses which may be settled In future periods by reducing taxable profit amount to PLN 15 378 thousand (at 31 December
2007: PLN 2 281 thousand). These losses expire as follows: PLN 6 017 thousand in 2008; PLN 2 650 thousand in 2009 (in
2007: PLN 1 124 thousand); PLN 2 730 thousand In 2010; PLN 3 790 thousand in 2011 {in 2007: PLN 768 thousand) and PLN

191 thousand in 2012 (in 2007: PLN 389 thousand).

The Group created deferred tax assets whose realisation depends on the future generation of taxable profit In the amount
exceeding gains arising from the reversal of taxable temporary differences In the amount of PLN 114 621 thousand (at 31
December 2007: PLN 7 284 thousand). The recognition of deferred tax assets was based on current, confirmed financial plans

and on the current activitles of the Group.

Deferred tax liabilities prior to offsetting

{Credited)/Charged (Inerease)/
to profit or loss
At 1 January 2007 due to a change in equity due At 30 June 2007
based on in the balance of to change based on
the rate of 19% temporary in the balance the rate of 19%
differences o’;;;: f::zg
Exchange rate differences 9223 (5 608} - 3615
Interest 878 729 - 1607
Measurement of forward transactions 46 458 8 398 - 54 855
Re-measurement of hedging
instruments 901 {901) 20114 20 114
Depreciation/amortisation 221 738 101 782 - 323520
Measurement of available-for-sale
financtal assets 1951 ) (281) 1670
Other 155 513 (126 847) - 28 666
Total 436 662 (22 447) 19 833 434 048
(Credited)/Charged (In;; ‘:f::;’e
At 1 January 2007 :::::Tczra::s: in equity due At 31 December
based on 9 to change 2007 based on

the rate of 19%

in the balance of

in the balance

the rate of 19%

temporary
differences o’;;;:r::zg
Exchange rate differences 9223 (7 537) - 1686
Interest 878 2 345 - 3223
Measurement of forward transactions 46 458 (36 902) - 9 556
Re-measurement of hedging -
instruments 901 (867) 34
Depreciationfamortisation 221738 110 441 - 332 179
Measurement of avallable-for-sale
financial assets 1951 . (1082} 869
Other 155 513 (94 764) - 60 749
Total 436 662 (27 284) {1 082) 408 296
(Credited)/Charged {Increase)/
At 1 January 2008 ;:e"t’:f;'c"h’a':sz in equity due At 30 June 2008
based on it the balance%f to change based on
the rate of 19% temporary in the balance the rate of 19%
differences M;;;:r:;ig
Exchange rate differences 1 686 5 - 1691
Interest 3223 {1973) - 1250
Measurement of forward transactlons 9 556 (3 423) - 6133
Be-measurement of hedging 34 5 435 474
instruments
Depreciation/amortisation 332179 5053 - 337 232
Measurement of available-for-sale
financial assets 869 ) (395) 474
Other 60 749 7 026 - 67 775
Total 408 296 6 693 40 415 029
Translation from the original Polish version 50




e Y edl AWV DL T T el M el Al TR MR W T FRIRDE 2T T

23. Employee benefits

as adopted by the Eurcpean Union
for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
(amounts in tables in thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated)

A general description of the employee benefit plans Is included In note 2, Main accounting policies, point 2.2.16.

Change in liabilities due to future employee benefits

Present value of obligations -
at 1 January 2007

Interest costs

Current service cost
Benefits paid

Actuarlal gains/{losses)

Present value of obligations -

at 30 June 2007

Past service cost unrecognised at the
balance sheet date

Carrying amount of liabllities -
at 30 June 2007

of which:
Carrying amount of non-current liabilities
Carrying amount of current liabilities

Present value of obligations -
at 1 January 2007

Interest costs
Current service cost
Past service cost
Benefits paid
Actuarial gains

Present value of obligations -

at 31 December 2007

Past service cost unrecognised at the
balance sheet date

Carrying amount of liabilities -
at 31 December 2007

of which:
Carrying amount of non-current liabilities
Carrying amount of current liabilities

Present value of obligations -
at 1 January 2008

Interest costs
Current service cost
Benefits paid
Actuarial gains

Present value of obligations -

at 30 June 2008

Past service cost unrecognised at the
batance sheet date

Carrying amount of liabilities -
at 30 June 2008

of which;
Carrying amount of non-current liabilities
Carrying amount of current liabilitles

Retirement

Other liabilities

TOTAL . L . due to
liabilities Jubilee awards an:edl:::ilt:;hty Coal equivalent employee
benefits
950 200 287 515 192 277 470 138 270
20 591 5629 4012 10 950 -
16 489 6 825 4770 4 894 -
(40 018) (9 464) {12 400) (18 154) -
10 B14 (9 348) 926 19 236 -
958 076 281 157 189 585 487 064 270
(11 804) - {11 804) - -
946 272 281 157 177 781 487 064 270
864 950 249 018 160 934 461 291 25
72 603 32 139 16 847 25773 245
TOTAL Retirement °the;|:':'t’:'t'°s
liabilities Jubilee awards a“gedr::?i::lty Coal equivalent employee
benefits
950 200 287 515 192 277 470 138 270
44 191 13 249 8935 22 007 -
39976 17 829 12 359 9 788 -
2 888 2052 836 - -
(80 271) (37 089) (19 519) (23 393) {270)
51 302 13 814 8952 28 536 -
1 008 286 297 370 203 840 507 076 -
(10 961) - (10 961) - -
997 325 297 370 192 879 507 076 -
919923 263 479 173 193 483 251 -
77 402 33891 19 686 23 825 -
Retirement Other liabilities
TOTAL A - due to
liabilities Jubilee awards an:edr:::ilz;hty Coal equivalent employee
benefits
1 008 286 297 370 203 840 507 076 -
25423 & 737 4 954 13732 -
17 396 7 053 5041 5302 -
(46 258) {10 568) (S 644) (26 046) -
29 245 693 4 501 24 051 -
1034 092 301 285 208 692 524 115 -
(10 118) - {10 118) - -
1023974 301 285 198 574 524 115 -
944 331 267 189 177 B65S 499 277 -
79 643 34 096 20 709 24 838 -
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for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
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23. Employee benefits (continuation)

Present value

At of employee benefits
30 June 2008 1034 092
31 December 2007 1 008 286
31 December 2006 950 200
31 December 2005 899 148
31 December 2004 785 397

Total costs recognised in the income statement due to future employee benefits

For the period

Total costs recognised in the income statement frotr: ;:::::gnggoa frotl: ;;_?:::?ogg‘”
Current service cost 17 396 16 489
Interest costs 25423 20 591
Actuarial gains 29 245 10 814
Past service cost 843 843
72 907 48 737

The change in actuarlal gains/losses is caused by a change in assumptions relating to the increase in the discount rate,
increases in coal prices and increases in wages.

For purposes of re-measuring the provision at the end of the current period, the Group assumed parameters based on available
forecasts of inflation, an analysis of increases in coal prices and in the lowest wage, and also based on the anticipated
profitability of highly-liquid securities.

Main actuarial assumptions: 2008 2009 2010 andzl?:ylond

- discount rate 6.80% 6.60% 6.00% 5.70%

- rate of increase in coal prices 0.00% 3.80% 3.80% 3.50%

- rate of increase in the lowest wage 0.00% 6.93% 4.80% 4.50%

- expected inflation 3.80% 3.80% 3.80% 3.50%

- future expected increase in wages 0.00% 4.80% 4.80% 4.50%
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for the peried from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
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24, Provisions for other liabilities and charges

Note

Provisions at 1 January 2007
Provislons recegnised

Changes arising from changes in
provisions after updating of
estimates

Changes in provisions arlsing from
approach of execution date of 32
liabilitles {unwinding of the

discount effect)

Utilisation of provisions

Release of provisions

Transfer to Mine Closure Fund

Cther

Provisions at 30 June 2007

of which:
Non-current provisions
Current provisions

Provisions at 1 January 2007
Provisions recognised

Changes arising from changes in
provisions after updating of
estimates

Changes in provisions arising from
approach of execution date of
llabilities {urrwinding of the
discount effect)

Utilisation of provisions

Release of provisions

Transfer to Mine Closure Fund
Other

Provisions at 31 December
2007

of which:

Non-current praovisions
Current provisions

Provisions at 1 January 2008
Provisions recognised

Changes arising from changes in
provisions after updating of
estimates

Changes in provisions arising from
approach of execution date of
liabilities (unwinding of the
discount effect)

Utilisation of provisions
Release of provisions
Transfer to Mine Closure Fund
Other

Provisions at 30 June 2008
of which:

Non-current provisions
Current provisions

32

point 2.2.15.

Decommissioning

Costs of scrapping Disputed issues

TOTAL costs of mines and property, plant and and court rg\:i':ia;ns
other facilities equipment proceedings P
571910 459 534 5 287 22 483 84 606
2 339 33 - 215 2 091
72 134 73583 - - (1449)
12 105 11 539 - - 566
(20 163) (1223) (40} (179) (18 721)
(1 854) - (54) (241) (1559)
(6 092) (6 092) - - .
(929) - - (32) (897)
629 450 537 374 5193 22 246 64 637
569 025 530 898 - - 38 127
60 425 6 476 5193 22 246 26 510
Decommissioning Costs of scrapping Disputed issues Other
TOTAL costs of mines and property, plant and and court rovisions
other facilities equipment proceedings P
571910 459 534 5 287 22 483 84 606
41 926 67 - 1142 40 717
81 383 82 848 - - (1 465)
26 303 24 922 226 - 1 155
(36 484) (3 840) (142} (217) (32 285)
{8 097) (226) (561} (3 765) (3 545)
(12 647) {12 647) - - -
2 289 - - (32) 2 321
666 583 550 658 4 810 19611 91 504
570 327 527 634 4 272 - 38 421
96 256 23 024 538 19 611 53 083
Decommissioning Costs of scrapping Disputed issues Other
TOTAL  costs of mines and property, plant and and court rovisions
other facilities equipment proceedings P
666 583 550 658 4 810 19 611 91 504
23924 33 600 21 580 1711
(35 439) {33 290) (22) - (2 127)
18 477 17 912 70 - 495
(26 401) (4 387) - (364) (21 650)
(2 482) (230) (38) (677) (1537)
(7 176) (7 176) - - -
(12 031) - - 13 681 (25 712)
625 455 523 520 5420 53 831 42 684
536 267 505 421 4 320 14 154 12 372
89 188 18 099 1100 39 677 30312
The Group recognises provisions for decommissioning costs of mines and cther facilities based on principles described In note 2,
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24. Provisions for other liabllities and charges {continuation)

The most significant item of provislons for other liabilities is the provislon for the costs of future decommissioning
(liquidation) of mines and other technological facilities with the carrying vaiue of PLN 523 520 thousand (as at 31
December 2007: PLN 550 658 thousand), created in accerdance with the methodelogy defined in the International Financial
Reporting Standards.

The decommissioning schedule and estimates of decommissioning costs have been worked on since the beginning of 2001 by
the subsidiary, KGHM Cuprum Sp. z 0.0. CBR. Revaluations of the baslc decommissioning costs criginaily calculated in 2001 are
made periodically based on the changes of price index for the construction-assembly industry, which are published by the Main
Statistical Office, taking into account movements in tanglble fixed assets. The exception to the above are mine shafts. In 2006,
costs of shafts liquidation were revalued due to completion of the document called “Study of the project of liquidation of the P-
III and P-IV mine shafts in the Polkowice Wschodnie Region and the project of excavation of deposits located in the safety
pillars of those shafts - Stage III. 1. The project of liquidation of the P-1II shaft, 2. The project of liquidation of the P-IV shaft”
prepared by Cuprum and securing positive opinions for those projects of the Commission for Water, Waste Management and
Mine Closure- Related Threats operating by the Main Mine Office — Resolution No. 2/2007 dated 6 September 2007. Detailed
information included in technical projects developed for the P-III and P-IV shafts in the Polkowice Wschodnie Region provided
the basis for verification of forecasts concerning costs of liquidation of other shafts in KGHM Polska Miedz S.A.

Subsequent revaluations have been made if significant economic events have occurred which could have an impact on the
amount of the provision. The 2007 revaluatlon related mainly to the decommissioning schedule and was due to adoption by the
Ministry of Natural Environment in lanuary 2007 certain of additions to the projects relating to copper ore deposits
management at KGHM Polska Miedz S.A., which were underlying mining activities of the Parent Entity. These amended projects
assume that ore excavation will continue until the year 2040.

The largest facility earmarked for decommissioning {restoration}, which at the same time accounts for the largest share in the
costs of decommissioning of all technologicat facilities, Is the “Ze!azny Most” tailings pond, together with the hydro-
transportation network and cubage hydro-technical facillties. The “Zelazny Most” tailings pond is a hydro-technlcal facility
created by way of a circumferential embankment of lowered area. At the same time, it serves as the central water management
facility. The area and type of this tallings pond requires {(apart from restoration activities carrled out on a regular basis in the
form of shaping of the slope of the reservoir using biolegical coat) several stages of site restoration and development. This is
also due to the main underlying assumption that the “Zelazny Most” tallings pond will be operational until the last working day
of mines and enrichment plants. During the final stage of operating this tailings pond, transfer to the method of centralised
waste dump from the currently used circumferential one would be required in order to fill in the reservoir and create the
coarse-grained fayer for restoration of the inside of the taillngs pond. After the “Zelazny Most” tallings pond has ceased being
operational, during the course of mine liquidation, the discharge of mine waters will be carried out excepting this tailings pond.
According to the current plan, preparatory works for the tailings pond liquidation and Its partial restoration will commence in
2025 and will tast until 2037. In 2038, the main stage of the tailings pond liquidation will commence and is expected to be
completed in 2047. In the meantime, i.e. from the year 2025 to 2040, pipelines and accompanying cubage hydro-technical
facilities will be decommissioned and the decommissioning will be carried out by way of dismantling, scrap recovery and
utilisation of concrete elements, which, after crumbling, will be used as feundation for hardening. As regards the surface of the
*Zelazny Most” tallings pond, applicaticn of the non-seil restoration method was adopted as possible and reasonable solutien. It
is planned that trees will be planted on the whole area of waste storage yard as it is done for protective greenery, after prior
preparation of the surface of the tailings pond. It is also assumed that selected types of grass and mixes thereof will be used for
land restoration purposes, together with mineral additives to imprave the ground, as well as special techniques of cultivation
and fertilisation. The above site restoratlon method Is comparable to those used in the EU countries, KGHM CUPRUM Sp. z c.0.
CBR, in cooperation with the Natural Science University in Wroctaw, are currently conducting research work in respect of this
issue. The decommissioning project assumes a 10-year monitoring period for the facility.

The Parent Entity's method of estimating the required decommissloning provision is based on the prudence concept. The
amount of the provision recognised in the balance sheet is the equivalent of the estimated costs of future decommissioning of
individual facilities discounted to their present value, The amount of the provision is revatued by the Parent Entity at the end of
each quarter by applying In the discounting model the ratios described in Note 3.2.

The balance of the decommissioning provision is adjusted for the amount transferred to the mine closure fund, which has been
created based on article 26¢ of the act dated 27 July 2001 amending the act — Geological and Mining Law, Journal of Laws No.
110, item 1190, and calculated in accordance with principles set forth in the Decree of the Minister of Economy dated 24 June
2002 concerning detailed principles for creation and functioning of mine closure funds, i.e. 3% of the amount of depreciation of
mines’ fixed assets for each year. Cash transfers made to the Mine Closure Fund are invested by the Parent Entity in secure
short-term securities or short-term deposits. Income from these Investments increases the Fund’s balance and the Parent Entity
does not charge any fee for this cash management. Due to restrictions imposed by the Geological and Mining Law, which states
that the Fund’s assets may only be utilised for mine closure purposes, the Parent Entity has himited control over the Fund’s
assets.

It is expected that decommissioning costs will be incurred by the year 2047. The provision was estimated based on the
currently used technology for decommissioning of mining facilities and using the current prices and the discount rate of 2.44%.
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(amounts in tables in thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated)

24. Provisions for other liabilities and charges (continuation}

Facilities with the highest share in the provision for decommissioning costs of mines and other facilities

Provision at Provision at
Division Facility 30 June 2008 31 December 2007
ZH *Zelazny Most” tailings pond 99 159 90 692
ZWR ZWR Rudna Ore Enrichment Plant 46 093 50 239
ZH Other waste storage areas 43 431 43 758
ZWR ZWR Polkowice Ore Enrichment Plant 38 346 41 517
ZGR Central part of Rudna Mine (shafts: RI, RII, RV) 36 499 39630
ZWR ZWR Lubin Ore Enrichment Plant 30 048 32 641
ZH Pipetines and technological facilities 24 792 26 145
ZGR Western part of Rudna Mine (shafts: RIIE, RIV, RX} 21 454 23 295
ZGPS Eastern part of Polkowice Mine (shafts: PIII, PIV) 19 703 20 615
ZGL R6 - Central {shafts: LI, LII) 16 875 18 262

Praovisions for disputed issues and court proceedings represent a less significant item of provisions. They are mainly

relating to;

- proceedings in a dispute congerning the payment of damages to BOBMARK INTERNATIONAL in the amount of PLN 11 839

thousand (at 31 December 2007; PLN 11 839 thousand),

- proceedings in a dispute concerning the payment of damages for breach of contract for delivery of equipment and services of

PLN 5 000 thousand,

- guestioning of the amount of social insurance premiums due to the control by Social Insurance Institution (ZUS) for prior
years in the amount of PLN 30 466 thousand (at 3t Decermnber 2007: PLN 16 625 thousand),

- asserting capyright in the amount of PLN 2 982 thousand for the use of an invention (at 31 December 2007: PLN 2 982

thousand).

Other provisions relate mainly to:

- property tax on underground mining facilities in the amount of PLN 11 664 thousand {at 31 December 2007: PLN 14 283
thousand),

- guarantee on the repayment of bank liabilities in the amount of PLN & 576 thousand (at 31 December 2007: PLN 7 786
thousand).

25. Non-current assets held for sale

At
30 June 2008 31 December 2007
Non-current assets held for sale
Property, ptant and equipment 550 184
550 184

Total non-current assets held for sale at 30 June 2008 in the amount of PLN 550 thousand represent property, ptant and
equipment classified as held for sale in the first half of 2008.
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26. Impairment losses

Impairment losses by asset class during the financial period from 1 January to 30 June 2008

Impairment loss

Impairment loss Impairment loss used

recognised reversed
Bulidings and constructions - 14 015 223
Technical equipment and machinery 12 410 - 4 881
Motor vehicles 44 - -
Other fixed assets 854 - -
Assets under construction 3349 166 94
Software - 411 40
Acquired concessions, patents, licenses 391 - -
Total 17 048 14 592 5238

Impairment losses by segment during the financial period from 1 January te 30 June 2008

n":\:faplg,r :tn:er::::;:l:r Te'esior:}:e';d I Other consT;ti:Lted
products amount
Impairment loss recognised - 17 048 - 17 048
Impairment loss reversed - 14 592 - 14 592
Impairment loss used 94 4941 203 5 238

Impairment losses by asset class during the financial period from 1 January to 30 June 2007

Impairment loss

L Impairment loss used
recognised

Bulldings and constructlons - 59
Technical equipment and machinery 7 2 050
Motor vehicles - 96
Assets under construction 19 19
Total 26 2224
Impairment losses by segment during the financial period from 1 January to 30 June 2007
nﬁ:raplz:‘ :tn:ef ;er:::l':lesr Telesceorr:i:er;d m Other con::I'i::iated
products amount

Impairment loss recognised 7 19 - 26
Impairment loss used 700 1428 96 2224

Impairment losses on property, ptant and equipment used In the manufacture of products or in the providing of services weare
recognised in the income statement as costs of sales. For other property, plant and equipment Impairment losses were
recognised in administrative expenses. Details on the principles of accounting for impairment losses applied by the Group are
described In point 2.2.10 of note 2.

Impairment losses recognised in the first half of 2008 relate to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets which wlil
not bring expected econemic benefits.
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Net revenues from the sale of products, goods for resale and materials (by type of activity)

For the period

from 1 January 2008
to 30 June 2008

from t January 2007
to 30 June 2007

- copper, precious metals, smelter by-products 6 018 650 5 B62 199
- energy 17 931 16 828
- services 532 413 410 285
- ::‘igig?hg:_achlnery, transport vehicles for mining 20 489 9173
- goods for resale 112 687 128 909
- wastes and materials 5016 5281
- other goods 43 583 35 224
Total 6 750 769 6 467 899

Net revenues from the sale of products, goods for resale and materials (by destination)

For the period

from 1 January 2008
to 30 June 2008

from 1 January 2007
to 30 June 2007

domestic 2599 316 2821 483
- copper, precious metals, smelter by-products 1896 029 2 247 310

- energy 17 931 16 828

- services 508 068 383 319

- ::Ilglgtgh:rachinery, transport vehicles for mining 19 717 8 954

- goods for resale 110 017 125 585

- wastes and materials 5016 5281

- other goods 42 538 34 206

export 4 151 453 3 646 416
- copper, precious metals, smelter by-products 4122 621 3 614 889

- services 24 345 26 966

- ;igigtghgachinery, transport vehictes for mining 772 219

- goods for resale and materials 2 670 3324

- other goods 1045 1018

Total 6 750 769 6 467 899
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28. Costs by type

Depreclation of property, plant and equipment and
amortisation of Intangible assets

Employee benefit costs

Materlals and energy consumption

External services

Taxes and charges

Advertising costs and representation expenses

Property and personal insurance

Research and development costs not capitalised in intanglble

assets
QOther costs, of which:

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets

Write-down of inventories

Allowance for Impairment of trade receivables

Reversal of Impairment of property, plant and equipment,

Intangible assets

Reversal of write-down of inventories

Reversal of allowance for impairment of trade receivables

Losses from the disposal of financial instruments
Other operating costs
Total costs by type
Cost of goods for resale and materials sold (+), of which:
Allowance for impairment of receivables

Reversal of allowance for impairment of recelvables

Change In Inventories of finished goods and work in progress

(+/-)
Cost of manufacturing products for internal use (-}

Total cost of sales, selling and administrative costs

29. Employee benefit costs

Remuneration

Costs of social security

Note

29

6,7

14
34.3.6

14
34.3.6

33.3

34.3.6
34.3.6

For the period

from 1 January 2008
to 30 June 2008

from 1 January 2007
to 30 June 2007

330 421 288 887
1492 702 1376 114
1747 550 1392232

BOS 175 627 054

182 157 160 408

27 992 35 503

9 364 9845

683 237

25 639 22 422

13 699 7
1201 1225
5131 7 170

(14 426) .
(943) (997)

{6 293) (15 019)
829 235

22 441 29 801

4 621 683 3912702
72 871 106 183
255 299

(231) (477)

30 866 2318 422
(210 397) (177 732)
4515 023 4079575

For the period

from 1 January 2008
to 30 June 2008

from 1 January 2007
to 30 June 2007

Costs of future benefits {provisions) due to retirement benefits, jubilee

awards and similar employee benefits

Employee benefit costs

1110728 1026 899

355 325 340 496

26 649 8719

1492702 1376114
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30. Other operating income

Income and galns from financial instruments classified under other

as adopted by the European Union
for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
{amounts in tables in thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated}

operating actlvities, resulting from:
- interest on financial instruments

- measurement and realisation of derivative instruments
- gains from the disposal of financial Instruments

- reversal of impairment losses on avallable-for-sale financial

assets

- reversal of allowance for impairment of financial receivables

Gains from the disposal of investment property
Gains from the disposal of perpetual usufruct of land
Galns from the disposal of intangible assets

Other interest

Dividends received

Reversal of Impairment losses on assets under construction

Reversal of allowance for impalrment of other non-financlal
recelvables

Government grants and other donations recelved
Release of unused provisions

Penalties and compensation received

Other operating income/gains

Total other operating income

31. Other operating costs

Costs and losses on financial instruments classified as cther
operating costs:

- measurement and realisation of derivative Instruments

- losses from the disposal of financlal Instruments

- interest on financial liabilities

- forelgn exchange losses

- allowances for impairment of financlal receivables
Decrease In the fair value of investment property

Losses from the sale of shares in subsidiarles

Allowances for impairment of other non-financial recelvables
Losses from the disposal of intaﬁgible assets

Losses on the sale of property, plant and equipment

Impairment lesses on assets under construction

Interest on overdue nen-financial liabllities (including State
budget llabilitles)

Donatlons granted

Provisions for liabilities

Penaltles and compensation paid
Other operating costs/losses
Total other operating costs

Note For the period
frem 1 January 2008 from 1 January 2007
to 30 June 2008 to 30 June 2007
33.3 289 487 1038 677
69 100 54 772
215977 967 894
4 303 15933
78 58
29 20
- 16 122
420 -
5 -
4 445 130
50 -
6 166 -
13 4 434 118
1136 1385
6729 3339
2903 4578
4 360 8 858
314 135 1073 207
Note For the period
from 1 January 2008 from 1 January 2007
to 30 June 2008 to 30 June 2007

333 534 362 1271 446
378 966 1220 289

1659 -

96 178

153 587 50 975

54 4

- 6036

- 872

13 170 11 363
- 809

1825 647

[ 3 349 19
455 4 509

7 649 6 605

25070 17 564

2 949 3200

10 424 11 902

586 253 1334 972
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32. Net finance costs

Interest expense:

- on bank and other loans

- due to finance leases

Net exchange gains on borrowings

Changes in the value of provisions due to unwinding
of discount

Other net finance costs

Total net finance costs

Note

333

333

24

For the period

from 1 January 2008
to 30 June 2008

from 1 January 2007
to 30 June 2007

7271 4336
6 895 4 193
376 143
{1101) (1 181)
18 477 12 105
65 (48)
24712 15 212
60
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{amounts In tables In thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated)

as adopted by the European Union
for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008

32. Financial instruments (continuation}

33.2 Fair value

Classes of financial instruments

Debt securities

Shares
Shares and participation units in
investment funds

Trade receivables {net)

Cash and cash equlvalents up to 3
months

Other financial assets (net)
Derivatives - Currency, of which:

Assets
Derivatives - Commodity contracts
{metals), of which:

Assets

Liabilltles
Trade payables
Bank and other loans
Other financial liabilitles

Note

10,11,15
10

10
13
15

10,11,13
12

12

19
20
19, 20

Important estimates and assumptlons.

At
30 June 2008 31 December 2007
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair Value amount Fair Value
33.1 33.1
539 134 539 134 130 725 130 725
33634 33634 33407 33407
108 587 108 587 10 665 10 665
1005 155 1 005 155 693 667 693 667
2971777 2971777 2 728 340 2728 340
160 424 160 424 79 177 79 177
380 380 178 178
380 380 178 178
24 142 24 142 97 417 97 417
24 203 24 203 114 839 114 839
{61} (61) (17 422) (17 422)
(657 912) (657 912) (651 288) (651 288)
(240 222) {240 222) (255 833) (255 833)
(1952 421) (1952 421) (228 311) (228 211)

classified as available-for-sale financlal assets. As a result they are disclosed in the balance sheet at cost less Impairment.

Translation from the original Polish version

The methods and assumptions used by the Group for measuring the fair values are presented in notes 2.2.5.4 Falr vaiue, 3

The Group is unable to rellably measure the falr value of shares held in companies which are not listed on actlve markets,

63




b9 UOCISIDA YSHOd [BUIBLIO 3y} WOl UONBISUE|

(szv gre) (€6Z 0Z9) [ 444 {6£0 SE) €65 by SrET 6LTET {se6t zsz) (sso])/uieB 1au jejoy
SIUSWINIISU| AIIRALIDP JO UONIeS||ead
(68z 0ZZ 1) (682 02T 1) It PUR JUBWAINSEIW U0 S3SS0T]
SJUIWNIISU| SA{IBALIDP JO UDJIRS| Rt
v68 £96 ¥68 £96 ot puUB JUSWIINSEIW UD Sue9
2 SIUBLWINJISU] {RDUBUY
869 ST 921 1Y €10 ¢T 1€ ‘DE ‘8T 10 fesodsip wody ($35501)/104d
s Suojjoesueg)
(€67 0Z9) (62 029) 6°T'tE Bu|Bpay 01 anp S3{es 0] JUAUASAIPY
viS ST 915 ST 8s 0€ ‘82 S30UBMO||R JUBLLIRdW] JO |RSIIADY
(ev L) (€Lv &) 1€ ‘8T saduemo||e Juaunjedw]
{(r6s 6v) =1 (s0z 0€) (655 81} {z68) 140 § (sasso})/sujeb abueyixa
85T 0S (ev1) (1€ +) Skg £S L6 e '1£ ‘ot {asuadxa)/auw0au] 15949301
6f Syl )0 =2dods ayr 150D pasjuowe 5501 40
SIUBWINJIISU] 40 N0 Sanyqel pue 18 painseau SIUIUNSIAUL 512558 joad ybnoayy anjea
jepueuy SJUIWNIISU| Buproyoey 03 anp sajlgel S3|qeAd33. Aqumew |eauBLY Sjes 1B} 38 PaIASEaW aj0N £00Z Sung 0f 03 £00Z
(230 Gu|BpaH s231qel| [elueuld |eloueul4 pue sueg é.u-n_wx -._E-w_n.m_.m>< SanIgel/s13sse Asenuer T wouy polsad ayy Jod
S31}|1G €| [ePUBLY 310 |e1zueuly
{zZs ST} rIZ v TL9 {21 11) {66t 18) £ST T {686 79T) (sso0|)/ujeb 19u |e30)
SIUSWINIISUL BAIJRALIDP JO UO|IBS[|es
{996 82E) (996 8LE) Te pue WALLBINSEAL U0 SISSOT
Slusuwinisu] SAIlBASpP JO uojesesad
LL6 STT LL6 STZ og pUR JUIWIINSEIW Uo SUeD
the i SIUBWNIISU |BIDURUY
5181 €6 T 952 99T 1€ ‘0€ ‘82 10 fesodsip wouy (535501)A0d
gy suQjpesuel]
riz v 4194 §TvE Bu|Bpay 03 anp sa|es o3 wswisn{py
T£99 £55 9 8L 0t ‘8T SIIUeMQ)| @ Juswaeduw) JO [esI3ASY
(ort 6) (oet 6) 1£ ‘8T sasuemoq|e Juawuredwr
(ogt ZST) 860 1 {ozv v) (501 6T (€) ZE 1€ (sass0(}/sueb abueysxy
EEL T9 (9:£) {166 9) 00T 69 ZE ‘1€ ‘0€ {asuadxa}/awoau| 159493U]
6€ SvI JO 9dods Byl 1503 pasjlowe
JO InC s3n|(|qes| pue 3B paJinseaw §50| 10 Jyoud
T ebteuy | Swswnasu Bupiole, 03 anp sapihge| ssigenaoas SR ety o(es uBno.u3 anieA ey aloN 8002 aunf OF 0} §O0T
= 59 Bl |elaueu| gRaueu| -
jeloL Buibpan Ige el 14 |2l 14 pue sueoT -01-plaH -105-31G€]1eAY e paJnseaw saygen Arenuer T woy popuad ay) 404

sarpqey |ejaueuy Jaylo

/s19s5e pejaueL4

SjUdWNIISU] [BDURU)) JO SalIobajed Ag pouad 3y) 10) Juawajels awodu) ayj ul pasiubodas sasso} pur Jyoud ‘s3s0d ‘BWwodUy Jo SWIY £ EEC

{p21e1s 9S|MIBI0 SS3IUN ‘NTd PUBSNOY] U] S9|QE) U] Sjunowe)

8002 2uUNC 0E 91 B00T AJenuer T woly pouad 243 1oy

uojun ueadorna ay) Aq paidope se
Sy4I Yim aduepsodde U] pazedaad s1UaWa1eI5 |R[JURUY) PRIRPHOSUOD JReRA-JIeH
dnoug 'S Zpal BXSIOd WHOM

(uonenunuol) sJuawINIIsu) |[epueuld ‘g€



as adopted by the European Union
for the perlod from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
{(amounts in tables In thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated)

33. Financial instruments {continuation)

33.4 Transfers not qualified for de-recognition

The Group has transferred receivables in a way which does not qualify for derecagnition as it has retained substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership of these assets. This relates to trade receivables sold in a factoring with recourse transaction entered
into between the Parent Entity and Bank Handlowy S.A. in Warsaw. In this type of factoring there is a risk that the debtor will
fail to make payment of the liabilities to the factor {bank). Should the debtor fail to settle his liabilltles, the Parent Entity is
obliged to pay the outstanding balance to the bank (the factor) while the Parent Entity simultanecusly has the right to demand
payment of these liabilities from the debtor.

As a result, at the balance sheet date receivables are still recognised in the amount of PLN 24 961 thousand (at 31 December
2007: PLN 29 610 thousand). Accordingly, the corresponding entry of a related liability has been recognised in an amount equal
to that of the retained receivables.

33.5 Situations concerning financlal Instruments which did not occur in the Group

The following business events and situations, which are required to be dlisclosed, did not occur in the Group in the periods
ended 30 June 2008 and 31 December 2007:

. as at balance sheet date, Group companies did not designate a flnancial instrument to be measured at falr value
through profit or loss {IFRS 7, par. 9, 10, 11},

- Group companles did not reclassify a financlal asset In a way which would result In a change of the methoed of
measurement (IFRS 7, par, 12),

. Group companies do not held any collateral established on elther category of assets which would fmprove crediting
terms {IFRS 7, par. 15},

. Group companies have not issued an instrument that contains both a liability and an equity component (IFRS 7, par.
17},

. Group cempanies did not breach any contractual provisions (IFRS 7, par. 18},

. Group companies invest assets accumulated in a separate bank account kept for the Mine Closure Fund, but do not
recelve any fee due to those fiduciary activities (IFRS 7, par. 20.c.i),

L] Group companies did not recognise any interest income on impaired financial assets (IFRS 7, par. 20.d),

. Group companies did not Identify any forecast transactlon for which hedge accounting had previously been used but
which is no longer expected to occur (IFRS 7, par. 23.b),

. Group companies did not make use of any hedging transactions which would subsequently result in the recognition of
a nen-financial asset or liabillty (IFRS 7, par. 23.e),

. Group companies did not use fair value hedges or hedges of net investments in foreign operations (IFRS 7, par. 24 a,
24.¢c),

. Group companles did not purchase any financial assets at a price different from their falr value (IFRS 7, par. 28),

. Group companies did not acquire any assets by taking possession of a collateral (IFRS 7, par. 38).

34. Financial risk management

Group companies are exposed to risk in each area of their activities. Understanding those risks and the principles
of their management allows the Group to better meet its objectives.

Financial risk management includes the processes of risk identification, measurement and determination of appropriate
metheds to deal with these risks,

The Group is predominantly exposed to the following classes of financial risk:
o Market risk:

. Risk of changes in commodity prices (Commodity Risk),
. Risk of changes in forelgn exchange rates (Currency Risk),
. Risk of changes in interest rates (Interest Rate Risk),

o  Liquidity risk,

o Credit risk.

An appropriate policy, organisational structure and procedures support the financial risk management process.
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as adopted by the Eurdpéan Union
for the perlod from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
(amounts in tables in thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated}

34. Financial risk management (continuation)

34.1 Market risk

34.1.1 Principles of market risk management

The Group has an actlve approach to managing its market risk exposure. The objectives of market risk management are:
. To limit fluctuations In profit before tax,
. To Increase the probabllity of meeting budget assumptions,
. To maintain a healthy financial condition, and

. To support the process of undertaking strateglc declsions relating to investing activity, with particular attentien to
sources of capital for this activity.

All the market risk management objectives should be consldered as a whole, while their realisation is dependant primarily upon
the internal situation and market conditions.

The Group applies an integrated approach to market risk management. This means a comprehensive approach to the whole
spectrum of Identified market risks, rather than to each of them individually, For example, hedging transactions on the
commodity market are related to contracts entered Into on the currency market, as hedging prices of metals directly Impacts
the probability of achieving planned revenues from sales, which in turn represent a hedged item for transactions dealt on the
currency market. As a result, the Group has significantly greater flexibility in building hedging strategies.

The Group applies a consistent and step-by-step approach to market risk management. Qver time consecutive hedging
strategles are Implemented, embracing an increasing share of production and sales revenues as well as an extended time
horlzon. Consequently, the Group Is hedged against unexpected plunges in both copper and silver prices as well as rapld
appreciation of the PLN versus the USD. Thanks to this approach, it is also possible to avoid engaging significant volumes or
notionals at a single price level.

The Group continuously monltors metal and currency markets, which are the basis for decisions on implementing hedging
strategies. The Parent Entlty applies hedge accounting to hedge the risk of changes of cash flows due to currency and
commadity risk.

34.1.2 Techniques for market rlsk management

The primary technique for market risk management |Is the use of hedging strategies involving derivative instruments. Apart
from this, natural hedging Is also used.

All of the potentlal hedging strategles and the selectlon of those preferred reflect the following factors: current and forecasted
market conditlons, the internal situation of the Group, suitability of instruments to be applied and the cost of hedging. In order
to mitigate market risk, derivative instruments are primarily used. The Group transacts only these derivative instruments for
which it has the ability to assess thelr value internally, using standard pricing models appropriate for a particular type of
derivative, and which can be traded without significant loss of value with a counterparty other than the one with whom the
transaction was inltlally entered Into. In evaluating the market value of a given instrument, the Group relies on information
obtained from particular market leading banks, brokers and information services.

It Is permitted to use the following types of instruments:

. Swaps,
. Forwards and futures,
. Options,

Structures combining the above instruments.

The instrurnents applied may be, therefore, elther of standard parameters (publicly traded instruments) or non-standardised
parameters (over-the-counter Instruments).

34.1.3 Hedge effectiveness requirement

Hedging transactions in the Group are entered Into only by the Parent Entity if there is an appropriate Instrument traded In a
liquld market with a quoted reference price. Prior to the transaction the Parent Entity is required te confirm and document the
exlstence of strong negative correlation between changes In the value of the reference instrument and changes in the value of
actually-hedged exposure. Hedge effectiveness Is subject to constant evaluation and monitoring.

34.1.4. Measurement of market risk

The Group quantifies and describes its market risk exposure using a consistent and comprehensive measure.

Market risk management Is supported by simulations (such as scenaric analysls, stress-tests, backtests) and calculated risk
measures. The risk measures being used are mainly based on mathematical and statistical modelling, which uses historical and
current market data concerning risk factors and takes into consideration the current expasure of the Group to market risk.

Since 2007 the Parent Entlty has been using "Earnings at Risk” as one of the risk measures employed In market risk
management, This measure indicates the lowest possible level of pre-tax profit for a selected level of confidence (for example,
with 95% confidence the pre-tax profit for a given period will be not lower than..). The EaR methodology enables the
calculation of pre-tax profit Incorporating the impact of changes in market prices of copper, silver and foreign exchange rates in
the context of budgeted resuits.
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as adopted by the European Union
for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
{amounts In tables in thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated)

34. Financial risk managemaent {continuation)
34.1 Market risk (continuation)

34.1.4. Measurement of market risk (continuation)

However, due to the fact that no single risk measure possesses the ability to completely reflect reality, mainly because of
underlylng assumptlons concerning market factors, it is customary to employ quantitative models merely as a tool supporting
the declsion making process and a scurce of additional information. Such models are not the only basis for decision making in
the market risk management process.

34.1.5 Restrictions on entering into hedglng transactions

Due to the risk of unexpected production cutback (for example because of “force majeure®) or fallure to achieve planned
forelgn currency revenues, which could lead to overhedging of actual market risk expasure, the Parent Entity has set a limit for
the volume of production or the amount of sales revenues for a given period that may be hedged, at a level of up to 80%. The
maximum time horizon within which the Parent Entity makes decisions concerning hedging of market risk is set up In
accordance with technical and economic planning process, and amounts to S years. However, It must be emphaslsed that
regardless of the togl used to measure market risks, the results of such measurement for long time horizons {especially above
2 years) may be subject to significant uncertainty, and therefore are treated as estimates,

34.1.6 Market risk exposure
34.1.6.1 Commodity risk

The Group Is exposed to the risk of changes in market prices of copper, silver and gold. The industry standard is that the price
formulas used in physical dellvery contracts are based on average monthly quotations from the Londen Metal Exchange for
copper and from the London Bullion Market for sliver and gold. The Group's commercial paolicy is to set the price base for
physical dellvery contracts as the average price of the month of dispatch (this is a typical price base, being in line with global
Industry standards). As a result the Group is exposed to the risk of decline In metals prices from the moment of entering into a
sale contract until the moment of setting the contractual average metal price.

In a sltuation where a non-standard formula Is used to set the sales price, the Group may enter into transactions {so-called
adjustment hedge transactions) which changes the price base agreed with the customer to the average price of the month of
dispatch. These transactions lead to a harmonlisation of the base price applied to physical sales of products, and therefore
harmonisation of the exposure to the risk of fluctuations in metals prices.

Due to the fact that the Group utilises In the production process materials purchased from external sources containing various
metals, part of the sales Is hedged naturally. Therefore, the analysis of the Group’s exposure to the market risk should
be performed on a net basis, i.e. by deducting the volume of metals contained in materials purchased from external sources
from the volume of sales.

Exposure of the Group to commedity risk is presented below:

For the period

from 1 January 2008 from 1 January 2007
to 30 June 2008 to 30 June 2007
Sales Purchases Sales Purchases
Copper {(*000
tonnes] 265 61 275 56
Silver [tonnes) 562 g 582 23

Sensitivity of the Group's flnanclal instruments to commaedity risk at the balance sheet date is presented in note
34.1.10 Sensltivity analysls of KGHM Polska MledZ S.A. Group exposure to market risk.

34.1.6.2 Currency risk

The Group is exposed to the risk of changes In currency rates, as It Is generally accepted on commoditles markets that physical
contracts are either concluded or deneminated in USD. The base (functional) currency for the Group however Is the PLN. As a
result, the Group receives the eguivalent In PLN or exchanges the USD it receives for PLN. Such exchanges lead to the risk
associated with fluctuations in the USD/PLN exchange rate during the period from the moment of entering into the trade
contract to the moment of determining the exchange rate. In a situation wherein foreign clients pay In local currency for the
copper or precious metals which they have Imported, the Group Is also exposed to fluctuations in the exchange rates of other
currencies, e.g.: EUR/PLN.

Moreover, the Group Is exposed to the risk of changes in currency rates due to the fact of drawing leans and Incurring other
liabllities (for example from the import of goods and services) which are denominated in currencies other than the USD.

Sensitlvity of the Group’s financial Instruments to the currency risk at the balance sheet date is presented In note 34.1.10
Sensitlvity analysis of KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. Group exposure to market risk.

Transiation from the original Polish version 67




Nk N Il U S B BN B h

as adopted by the Eurcpean Union
for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
(amounts in tables in thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated)

34. Financlal risk management (continuation)
34.1 Market risk {continuation}

34.1.6 Market risk exposure {continuation}

34.1.6.3 Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk due to:

- changes In the fair value of bank and cther loans drawn, bonds purchased and bank accounts for which iInterest is
calculated at fixed rates,

- changes in cash flow related to bank and other loans drawn, bonds purchased and bank accounts for which interest Is
calculated at variable rates.

As at 30 June 2008 the Group had llabilitles amounting to PLN 240 222 thousand due to bank and other loans (as at 31
December 2007: PLN 255 833 thousand) based on variable and fixed interest rates.

At the balance sheet date the Group was not a party to any transactions hedging interest rate risk.

34.1.7 Hedging exposure to market risk in the Parent Entity

In the first half of 2008 copper hedging strategles represented approx. 28% (in the first half of 2007: 35%) of the sales of this
metal realised by the Parent Entity. With respect to silver sales this figure amounted to approx. 33% (In the first half of 2007
10%). In the case of currency market, hedged revenues from sales represented approx. 0% (in the first half of 2007: 5%) of
total revenues from sales realised by the Parent Entity.

In the first half of 2008, the Parent Entity implemented copper price hedging strategies with a total volume of 60 thousand
tonnes and a time horlzon falling in the first half of 2009. The Parent Entity purchased put options. In addlition, during the
period the Parent Entity implemented adjustment hedge strategies with a total volume of 13 075 tonnes and a time horizon
falling in January 2008 and the period from March to December 2008. In the case of the silver market, during the analysed
period no strategies were Implemented to hedge the price of this metal. In the first half of 2008 on the silver market
adjustment hedge transactions were implemented for a total velume of 643 thousand troz and a time horizon falling in January
2008.

In the case of the forward currency market, in the first half of 2008 the Parent Entity did not imptement hedging strategies to
hedge the USD/PLN rate. During the analysed period no adjustment hedge transactions were entered inte on the currency
market.

The Parent Entity remains hedged for a portion of copper sales planned in the second half of 2008 (75 thousand t), and in the
first half of 2009 (60 thousand t), for a portion of silver sales planned in the second half of 2008 (6 million troz) and in 2009
{9.6 million troz). The Parent Entity has no open hedging transactions designated to hedge revenues from sales.

34.1.8 Impact of derivatives on the Group’s balance sheet

As at 30 June 2008, the fair value of open positions In derivative Instruments amounted to PLN 24 522 thousand, of which PLN
24 583 thousand relate to financial assets (derlvatives with positive fair value) and PLN 61 thousand relate to financlal liabilities
{derivatives with negative fair value).

Derivative instruments whose date of settlement was 2 July 2008 were measured at fair value and accounted for in trade and
other receivables as receivables due to unsettled derivative instruments, or In trade and other liabilities as liabilities due to
unsettled derivatlve instruments.

The fair value of these derivatives is as follows:
. PLN 517 thousand presented as receivables due to unsettled derivative instruments {Note 13),
. PLN 35 thousand presented as payables due to unsettled derivative instruments (Note 19).

Other information concerning derivatlves is presented in Note 12 Derivative financial instruments and in Note 33.2 Fair value.

34.1.9 Impact of derivatives on the Group's profit or loss and equity

In the first half of 2008, the result on derivative instruments amounted to PLN (158 775) thousand. The effective portion of the
change in the fair value of hedging instruments that was transferred from equity to sales for the period amounted to PLN 4 214
thousand. Cther cperating income and costs arising from derivative instruments armounted to PLN (155 934) thousand and
from the realisation of derivative instruments, PLN {7 055) thousand. Adjustment to other operating income and costs arising
from the measurement of derivative instruments results mainly from changes of the time value of options, which will be settled
in the future periods. Due to the hadge accounting principles applied, the change in the time value of options is not recognised
in the revaluation reserve.
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34. Financial risk management (continuation)

34,1 Market risk (continuation)

34.1.9 Impact of derivatives on the Group’s profit or loss and equity {continuation)

The impact of derivative instruments on profit or loss is presented below:

For the period
from 1 January 2008 to from 1 January 2007 to

30 June 2008 30 June 2007
Impact on sales 4 214 (620 293)
Impact on octher operating costs, of which: (162 989) (252 395)
Losses from realisation of derivative instruments (7 055) (3692)
Losses from measurement of derivative instruments (155 934) (248 703)
Total impact of derivative instruments on profit or loss: (158 775) (872 688)

The value recognised in other operating costs for the first half of 2008 due to the ineffective portion of cash flow hedges
amounted to PLN {168 365) thousand [in the first half of 2007: PLN {122 943) thousand], of which PLN (156 461) thousand is
a loss on the measurement of hedging instruments [in the first half of 2007: PLN (118 760) thousand], and PLN (11 904)
thousand is a loss on the realisation of the ineffective portlon of hedging Instruments [in the first half of 2007: PLN (4 183)
thousand].

The Parent Entity accounts for cash flow hedging instruments according to the principles presented in note 2.2.5.7 “Main
acceunting policies”. Those principles require recognition in equity of the effective portion of the change in the fair value of
hedging transactions during the period in which these transactions are designated as a hedge of future cash flows. The amounts
accumnulated in equity are subsequently transferred to profit or loss in the period in which the hedged transaction Is settled,

The effectiveness of hedging instruments during the period is evaluated and measured by comparing the changes In the
forward prices of hedged items with the changes In the prices of forward contracts or the changes in the intrinsic value of
options, as appropriate,

The tables below present the balances and movements in equity resulting from the transfer of effective portion of the gain or
loss from changes in the fair value of derivative instruments designated as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges:

AMOUNTS RECOGNISED IN EQUITY At

30 June 2008 31 December 2007
Revaluation reserve - commedity price risk hedging transactions
(copper and silver) - derivatives 1953 (964)
Revaluation reserve — currency risk hedging transactions - foreign 5 847 10 859
currency loans
Total revaluation reserve from hedging instruments in cash flow 7 800 9 895

hedges {excluding the deferred tax effect)

For the period

Gains or (losses) on hedging instruments in cash flow hedges

recognised directly in equity from 1 January from 1 January from 1 January
2008 to 30 2007 to 31 2007 to 30
June 2008 December 2007 June 2007

Cumulative gain or loss arising from changes in the fair value of
hedging instruments in cash flow hedges at the beginning of 9 895 (557 528) (557 528)
the period

Amounts recognised in equity in the reporting period in respect of
hedging transactions 2119 131 850 78 293
Amounts transferred from equity to the income statement (4 214) 435 533 620 293

Cumulative gain or loss arising from changes in the fair value of
hedging instruments in cash flow hedges at the end of 7 800 9 895 141 058
the period {excluding the deferred tax effect)
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34. Financial risk management {continuation)

34.1 Market risk {(continuation)

34.1.10 Sensitivity analysis of KGHM Polska Mied# S.A. Group exposure to market risk

The Group identifies the following major market risks to which it is exposed:
. Commeodity Risk,
. Currency Risk,
» Interest Rate Risk.

Currently the Group is mainly exposed to the risk of changes In copper and silver prices and changes in the USD/PLN and
EUR/PLN currency exchange rates.

For sensitivity analysis of commodity risk factors (copper and sliver) the mean reverting Schwartz model {the geometrical
Ornstein-Uhlenbeck process) Is used, while the Black-Scholes model (the geometrical Brown motion) is used for the USD/PLN
and EUR/PLN exchange rates. Quantlles from the model at the levels of 5% and 95% have been used as potential changes In a
half-year time herizon. Commodity models have been calibrated to historical prices adjusted for the effects of the PPI inflation
index In the USA, while currency models have been calibrated to the current structure of forward interest rates.

Potentlal changes in prices and currency rates have been presented in terms of percentages of the prices and currency rates
used in the fair value measurement of financial Instruments at the balance sheet date. Following is a sensitivity analysis for
each significant type of market risk to which the Group was exposed at the balance sheet date, showing what the impact would
be on the profit for the perlod and equity of potential changes In specific risk factors divided by classes of financlal assets and
financial llabllities.

In analysing the sensitivity of the item "“Derlvatlves ~ Currency” and “Derivatives — Commodity contracts” It should be noted
that the Parent Entlty holds a positlon in derlvative Instruments hedging future cash flows from the sale of copper and sliver. It
should also be noted that the Parent Entity Is exposed to risk In respect of the planned volume of copper and sliver sales from
Its own production, adjusted by Its position in hedging instruments.
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as adopted by the Eurépeén Union
for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
{amounts in tables In thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated)

34. Financial risk management (continuation)

34.2 Liquidity risk and capltal management

The Group is exposed to financial liquidity risk, where financial liquidity Is understood as the abllity to settle its liabilities within
glven timeframes. The fact that the activities are financed using external sources {loans, borrowings, buyer’'s credit) increases
the risk of losing liquidity In the future.

The Group must have permanent access to financial markets, and Is therefore exposed to the risk of losing the ability to acquire
new financing, as well as to reflnance its current debt. This risk Is primarily dependent on market conditions and on the
evaluation of the creditworthiness of the Group.

The Group decides about the choice of Investments and maturitles of those Investments, taking intc account the maturities of
its liabilities.

Due to positive cash flows from operating actlvities and the significant amount of cash balances In the first half of 2008, similar
to 2007, the Group barely used external socurces of financing.

Liquidity analysis for financial liabllities as at 30 June 2008

Contractual maturities from the balance sheet date

Upto 3 3-12 1-3 3-5 Over 5 Total (without Carrying
Financial liabilities months months years years years discounting) amount
Trade payables 648 371 567 7985 931 423 658 277 657 912
Loans, Including bank loans 61968 135214 30 832 9869 22992 260 875 240 222
Derivatives — Commodity _ . . - - - 61
contracts (metals)
Other financial liabilities 1919 675 5173 11 412 11349 10658 1958 267 1941514
Total financial liabllities by 5 535914 140954 s0229 22149 34073 2877 419

maturity

Liquidity analysis for financial liabilities as at 31 December 2007

Contractual maturities from the balance sheet date Total (without Carrying

Upto3 3-12 1-3 3-5 Over5 discounting) amount
Financial liabilities months months years years years
Trade payables 641 814 198 7 814 981 883 651 690 651 288
Loans, including bank loans 75 067 45061 130 433 8136 21421 280 118 255 833
Derivatives - Commodity . -
contracts (metals) - 964 B 964 17 422
Other financiai liabilities 207 121 4419 6 845 6971 5632 230 988 228 311
L";tal:r?t';a“““' Habilities by 924002 50642 145092 16088 27 936 1163 760

Financial liabilities arising from derivatives are thelr intrinsic values, excluding the effects of disccunting.

In the first half of 2008 the Group had overdraft facilities in the amount of PLN 104 500 thousand. At the end of June 2008
unused overdraft facilities amounted to PLN 71 995 thousand.

In 2007 the Group had averdraft facllitles in the amount of PLN 103 000 thousand and USD 10 000 thousand. At the end of
2007 unused overdraft facllities amounted te PLN 57 112 thousand and USD 10 000 thousand.

The Group manages its capital in order to maintain the capacity to continue its operations, including the realisation of planned
Investments, in a manner enabling it to generate returns for the shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders.

In accordance wlth market practice, the Group monitors its capltal, among others based on the equity ratio and the ratio of
Debt/EBITDA. The equity ratio is calculated as the relation of net tangible assets (equity less intangible assets) to total assets.

The ratio of Debt/EBITDA is calculated as the relation of borrowings and finance lease liabilities to EBITDA {operating profit plus
depreclationfamortisation).

In order to maintain financia! liquidity and the capacity to acquire external financing at a reasonable cost, the Group assumes
that the equity ratio shall be maintalned at a level of nat less than 0.5, and the ratio of Debt/EBITDA at a level of up to 2.0.
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34, Financial risk management {(continuation)

34.2 Liquidity risk and capital management (continuation)

The above ratios at 30 June 2008, 31 December 2007 and 30 June 2007 are presented below:

At

30 June 2008

31 December 2007

30 Yune 2007

Equlty 9 416 367 9 501 609 7 506 373
Less: intangible assets 118 047 119 231 127 457
Net tangible assets 9298 320 9382 378 7 378 916
Total assets 14 865 282 13 503 398 14 855 081
Equity ratio 0.63 0.69 0.50
Operating profit 1963 628 4 526 953 2 126 559
Plus: depreciation/amortisation 330 421 597 546 288 887
EBITDA 2 294 049 5124 499 2 415 446
Borrowlngs and finance lease liabilities 264 921 276 110 231 120
Ratio of Debt/EBITDA* 0.058 0.054 0.048

*for half-year periods, EBITDA is statistically annualised

Due to the low level of financial debt of the Group as at 30 June 2008, the ratio of Debt/EBITDA was at a safe level and
amounted to 0.058.

Meanwhile the equity ratio was above the assumed minimum level and amounted to 0.63 at 30 June 2008. The Iincrease in this
ratio at 30 June 2008 versus the level at 30 June 2007 results from the fact that net tangible assets increased by 26%, with the
relatively small change in the total assets value.

In 2008 and 2007 there were no external capital requirements Imposed on the Parent Entity.

34.3 Credit risk

Credit risk is defined as the risk that counterparties of the Group will not be able to meet their contractuat obligations. Exposure
to credit risk |s refated to three main areas:

. The creditworthiness of the customers with whom physical sale transactions are undertaken,

. The creditworthiness of the financial Institutions (banks/brokers) with whom, or through whom, hedging transactlons
are undertaken,

. The creditworthiness of the entities in which Investments are made, or whose securltles are purchased.

Financial instruments for which credit risk exposure with different characteristics from those mentioned above arises, are as
follows:

- Cash and cash equivalents,

. Derivative instruments,

. Trade receivables,

. Loans granted,

L] Debt securities and participatlon units In investment funds,

. Guaranties granted.

34.3.1 Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents

All entities with which deposit transactions are entered into operate In the financlal sector. These are mainly banks reglstered in
Poland or operating in Poland as branches of foreign banks, which belong to European and American financial institutions with
high credit ratings, appropriate level of equity and strong, stable market position. The maximum exposure of the Group to a
single bank in respect of cash and cash equivalents amounts to 17% as at 30 June 2008.

Given the above as well as the short-term nature of those investments, the credit risk associated with cash and cash
equivalents is estimated as low.
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34. Financial risk management {continuation)

34.3 Credit risk (continuation)

34.3.2 Credit risk related to derivative instruments

All entities with which derlvative transactions are entered into operate in the financial sector. These are financial institutions
{mainly banks), with the highest (92%) or medium (8%) credit ratings. They have appropriate level of eguity and strong,
stable market posltion. The maximum exposure of the Group to a single entity in respect of derivative instruments amounts to
20.3%.
Fair value of derivative Instruments hedging metal prices and foreign exchange rates at 30 June 2008 amounted to:

PLN 24 522 thousand (positive balance on the measurement of derlvative instruments), of which:

PLN 61 thousand represent financial liabllitles,

PLN 24 583 thousand represent financial assets.

Pue to geographlical and Institutional diversification of creditors and cooperation with financlal institutions having a high credit
rating, the Group is not materially exposed to credit risk due to derlvatives.

The Parent Entity has entered into framework agreements on the net settlement of hedging transactions in order to reduce cash
flows and the credit risk to the level of posltive fair value of hedging transactions with the glven counterparty.

34.3.3 Credit risk related to trade and other financial receivables

Companies of the Group have been cooperating for many years with a number of geographically diversifled clients. The vast
majority of sales goes to EU countries, including Poland.

Geographical concentration of credit risk of the Group for trade receivables arising from sales of copper and silver:

At
30 June 2008 31 December 2007
EU (excl. Other EU {excl. Other
Poland Poland) Countries Poland Poland) Countries
Trade recelvables from sales of copper g3 g, 31.36% 15.55% 55.6% 30.4% 14.0%

and silver

The Parent Entity makes the majority of its sales transactions based on prepayments. The Parent Entity monitors the
creditworthiness of all its customers on an on-going basis, In particular those to whom buyer’s credit has been granted. Buyer's
credit is only provided to proven, long-term customers, while sales of products to new customers are always 100% secured.
The Parent Entity has secured the majority of its receivables by promissory notes!, frozen funds on bank accounts, bank
guarantees and documentary collection. In addition, the majority of contracts where customers are provided with buyer’s credit
contain an ownership rights reservation clause confirmed by a date certain®,

The total value of the Group's trade receivables as at 30 June 2008 excluding the fair value of collaterals, in respect of which
the Group may be exposed to credit risk, amounts te PLN 1 055 155 thousand {at 31 December 2007: PLN 693 667 thousand
respectively). The increase in the level of receivables compared to the end of 2007 mainly results from increased sales in the
2nd quarter of 2008 compared to the 4th quarter of 2007.

The concentration of credit risk in the Parent Entity results from the fact that key clients are allowed extended terms of
payment. Consequently, at 30 June 2008 the balance of receivables of the Group from 7 of the Parent Entity’s largest clients,
calculated as a percentage of trade receivables at the balance sheet date, represents 58.8% of the balance of trade receivables
{at 31 December 2007: 51%). Despite this concentration of recelvables from key cllents (most of whom operate in the
European Union), the Parent Entity believes that, given the available historical data as well as long-lasting history of
cooperation, the level of credit risk Is low,

The following Group companies have significant trade receivables: DIALOG S.A. PLN 85 631 thousand, KGHM Polish Copper Ltd.
PLN 67 413 thousand, PeBeKa S.A. PLN 50 798 thousand, KGHM Metraco S5.A. PLN 49 434 thousand, Walcownia Metali
Niezelaznych spdtka z 0.0. PLN 17 034 thousand, POL-MIEDZ TRANS Sp. z 0.0. PLN 11 159 thousand.

! In order to speed up any potentlal collectlon of receivables, each promissory note Is accompanled by a notarial enforcement
declaration.

2 A trade contract clause officially certified by a notary means that the ownership of goods Is transferred to the buyer only upon
payment, regardless of their physical delivery.
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34. Financial risk management (continuation)
34.3. Credit rIsk (continuation)

34.3.3 Credit risk related to trade and other financial receivables (continuation)

These Group companies operate in various ecenomic sectors, such as transport, construction, trade, industrial production and
telecom services, and consequently there Is no concentration of credit risk in any sector. The companles of the Group, with the
exception of the Parent Entity, do not enter Into framework agreements of a net settlement in order to reduce exposure to
credit risk, although in situations where the given entity recognises both recelvables and liabilities with the same client, in
practice net settlernent is applied, as long as both partles accept such settlement. Due to the extensive volatility in the level of
net settlement on particular balance sheet days, it is difficult in practice to determine a representative amount of such
compensation.

The KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. Group believes that the maximum amount of exposure of the Group to credit risk at the balance
sheet date approximates the amount of the balance of trade receivables, without taking Into account the fair value of any
collateral. Nevertheless, the real risk that there will be no cash Inflow to the Group due to trade recelvables is low,

34.3.4 Credit risk related to loans granted

In accordance with data presented in note 13, Trade and cother receivables, the total amount of loans granted by Group
companies does not exceed 0.03 % of total loans and financlal receivables at 30 June 2008 (at 31 December 2007: 0.04%) and
is the maximum level of losses to which the Group Is exposed should a borrower fall to execute his liabilltles (excluding the Fair
value of llabilltles assumed). Due to the fact that the financial condition and financial results of Group entities are contlnuously
monitored, the Group believes that the level of credit risk is insignificant.

34.3.5 Credit risk related to investments in debt securities and participation units in investment funds

The Group invested Its free cash resources in corporate bonds Issued or guaranteed by companies granted an investment rating
by the respectable international rating agencies {Standard8&Poor’s, Moody’s, Fitch). The Group has also purchased participation
units in money market investment funds during the first half of 2008.

Given the above as well as the short-term nature of the Investments, the Group estimates that the level of credit risk for the
above investments is low.
34.3.6 Other Information related to credit risk

Aging analysis of financial assets overdue as at balance sheet date, for which no impalirment loss has been
recognised

At 30 June 2008
From1to 3 From 3to 6 From 6 top 12

value Up to 1 month months months months Over 1 year
Trade receivables 31999 29 366 1703 841 43 46
Other recelvables 638 127 50 456 - 5

At 31 December 2007
From 1to 3 From 3to 6 From 6 to 12

Value Up to 1 month months manths months Over 1 year
Trade recelvables 41 818 38 045 2949 481 46 297
Other receivables 231 132 70 21 3 5

The Group analyses receivables primarlly on an individual basis in terms of the Indication and recognition of impairment
allowance, Significant indicators are described in note 2.2.5.5.
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34. Financial risk management (continuation)
34.3 Credit risk {contlnuaticon)

34.3.6 Other information related to credit risk {continuation)

Changes in allowances for impairment of financial assets by asset classes are presented in the table below:

a) trade receivables (category: loans and financial receivables)

from 1 January

For the period

from 1 January

from 1 January

2007
t030 June 2008 t©31 pecember o030 June 2007
Impalrment allowance at the beginning of the period 56 167 67 322 67 322
Impalrment allowance recognised in proflt or loss 9 407 15 498 7 469
Impalrment allowance reversed through profit or loss (6 542) (18 663) (15 019)
Impalrment allowance on foreign exchange differences (923) 333 133
Impalrment allowance utllised during the pericd (5 182) (8 320) (1236)
Impalrment allowance on costs of legal proceedings 17 (3) 1
Impalrment allowance at the end of the period 52 944 56 167 58 670

b) other financial assets (category: loans and financial recelvables)

from 1 January

For the period

from 1 January

from 1 January

2007
30 ane 2008  t31December oo 3000

2007
Impairment allowance at the beginning of the period 3 685 3899 3899
Impalrment allowance recognised in profit or loss 33 436 4
Impairment allowance reversed through profit or loss (11) (529) (497)
Impairment allowance on foreign exchange differences - (3) 6
Impairment allowance utillsed during the period (B5) (132) (106)
Impairment allowance on costs of legal proceedings 6 14 1
Impairment allowance at the end of the period 3 628 3 685 3 307

c) debt securities {category: available-for-sale financial assets)

from 1 January

For the period

from 1 January

from 1 January

w30 z00n o3 Becemoer 4303007 o,
2007
Impairment allowance at the beginning of the period 549 518 518
Impairment allowance recognised in profit or loss - 131 -
Impatrment allowance reversed through profit or loss (78) {100) {58)
Impairment allowance at the end of the period 471 549 460

35. Share of profits/losses of associates accounted for using the equity method

from 1 January 2008

For the perlod

to 30 June 2008

from 1 January 2007
to 30 June 2007

Share of profits of associates

TOTAL

152 524 122 430
152 524 122 430
77
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36. Income tax

Income tax

Current income tax

Deferred income tax

Adjustments to current income tax from prior periods
Total

For the period

from 1 January 2008
to 30 June 2008

from 1 January 2007
to 30 June 2007

373 644 416 543
5651 (15 457)

(7 014) 7 050
372 281 408 136

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs in the following manner from the theoretical amount that would arlse if the
theoretical tax rate was applied, as a sum of profits before tax, multiplled by the income tax rate of the home country of each

company and then divided by profit before tax.

Profit before tax

Tax calculated using the domestic rates applicable to incomes In
individual countrles is 19.05% (half-year 2007: 19.21%)

Non-taxable income
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Utilisatlon of previously-unrecognised tax losses

Tax losses on which deferred tax assets were not recognised
Deductible temporary differences on which deferred tax assets were

not recognised
Adjustments to current income tax from prior periods

Income tax expense
the average income tax rate applled was 17.80%
(half-year 2007: 18.27%)

37. Earnings per share

Baslec earnings/diluted earnings

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Parent Entity
Weighted average number of ordInary shares ('000)
Basic/diluted earnings per share (PLN/share)

There are no dllutive potential ordinary shares.

38. Dividend paid and proposed for payment

For the period

from 1 January 2008
to 30 June 2008

from t January 2007
to 30 June 2007

2 091 440 2233777
398 416 429 203
(56 416) (158 826)

33 658 134 806
(481) (5 297)
3939 987

179 213
(7 014) 7 050
372 281 408 136

For the period

from 1 January 2008
to 30 June 2008

from 1 January 2007
1o 30 June 2007

1719 410
200 000
8.60

1 825 334
200 000
9.13

In accordance with Resolutlon No. 5/2008 of the Ordinary General Shareholders’ Meeting of KGHM Polska Mledz S.A. dated 26
June 2008 regarding the appropriation of Parent Entity profit for financial year 2007 and setting of the right to dividend date
and dividend payment date, the amount of PLN 1 BOO 000 thousand, representing PLN 9.00 per share, was allocated as a

shareholders dividend from profit for financlal year 2007.

The right to dividend date was set at 18 July 2008, and dividend payment date at 7 August 2008,

All Parent Entity shares are ordinary shares.
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39. Notes to the cash flow statement

Adjustments to profit for the period

Income tax from the Income statement
Depreclation/amortisation

Losses on sales of property, plant and equipment and intanglble assets

Galns on sales of available-for-sale financial assets and held-for-maturity
investments

Galns on sales and change in the fair value of investment property

Recognition/(reversal} of impalrment losses on property, plant and
equipment, intangtble assets and available-for-sale financial assets

Share of profits of associates accounted for using the equity methed
Interest and share in profits {dividends)
Exchange losses

Change in provisions

Change in derivative Instruments

Other adjustments

Changes in working capital:

Inventories

Trade and other recelvables

Trade and other payables
Adjustments to profit for the period

For the period

from 1 January 2008
to 30 June 2008

from 1 January 2007
to 30 June 2007

372 281 408 136
330 421 288 887
1820 1456
(422) (13 562)

- (10 086)

2378 (33)
(152 524) (122 430)
6 214 3763
1632 16 547

18 072 8 031
70 977 (101 019)
3660 7 276
(118 196) 2236
(388 873) (48 787)
74 565 142 882
222 005 583 297

Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Net carrying amount of sold property, plant and equipment and
Intangible assets and costs related to disposal

Losses on sales of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets

Change in recelvables due to sales

Capltalised gains from the dispesal of property, plant and equipment, and
intangible assets

Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

For the period

from 1 January 2008

to 30 June 2008

from 1 January 2007

to 30 June 2007

13 027 12 366
{1820) (1 456)
{1978) 102

{569) -

8 660 11012
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40. Related party transactions

As the Polish State Treasury has control over KGHM Polska Mied? S.A. and Is presumed to be de facto the "parent entity” of the
Company, the State Treasury Companies (see the list of Companies at 31 December 2007) meet the definition of related
entlties. Turnover and balances with these entitles have been reflected In the information presented In this note, in those items
respecting other related entities.

For the period
from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008

Sales of goods Other

Sales to related entities Sales of products for resale transactions
and materlals

- to associates 1398 105 10
- to other related entities* 27 542 20 125 6
Total sales to related entities 28 940 20 230 16

During the period from 1 January to 30 June 2008, no sales of property, plant and equipment, intanglble assets and investment
property to related entlitles of the Group were reported.

*State Treasury subsldiaries from which the KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. Group earned revenues (5 largest items) during the

period from 1 January to 30 June 2008:
1. Wojewddzkie Przedsleblorstwo Energetyki Cieplnej w Legnicy S.A. 12 649 }
2. Zaktady Chemiczne "POLICE” 5.A. 11 202 .
3. Fabryka Przewoddw Energetycznych S.A. 6 969
4, CENTROZEOM WROCLAW S.A, 6 899
5. Huta Bedzin S.A. 3603

Sales to the above-mentioned entitles represent around 87% of sales to the State Treasury subsldiaries. The remalning 13%
represent revenues earned from 63 entities - the remaining clients of the Group related to the State Treasury.

For the period
from 1 January 2007 to 30 June 2007

Sales of goods Other

Sales to related entities Sales of products for resale and transactions
materials

- to associates 1240 104 7

- to other related entitles 33 065 666 123

Total sales to related entitles 34 305 770 130

Transfation from the original Polish version 80



as adopted by the European Union
for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008

(amounts in tables in thousand PLN,

40. Related party transactions {continuation)

unless otherwise stated)

For the period

from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008

Purchases from related entlties Purchase of services

Purchase of goods
for resale
and materials

Purchase of property,
plant and equipment,
intangible assets,
Investment property

- from associates 19 810 7 643 19
- from other related entltles* 321 908 51 432 5629
Total purchases from related entities 341 718 59 075 5 648

*State Treasury subsidiaries from which the KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A.
from 1 January to 30 June 2008:

1. EnergiaPro GRUPA TAURON S.A.

2. Polskie Gérmictwo Naftowe | Gazownictwo S.A.
3. NITROERG S.A.

4. "Stomil-Poznan” S.A.

5. Zaktady Odziezowe "TARMILO” Sp. z 0.0.

Group made purchases {5 largest items) during the perlod

276 190
44 687
19 617

6 468

3725

Purchases from the above-mentloned entities represent around 97% of purchases from the State Treasury subsidiaries. The
remalning 3% represent purchases from 96 entities - the remaining clients of the Group related to the State Treasury.

For the period

from 1 January 2007 to 30 June 2007

Purchases from related entlties Purchase of services

Purchase of goods
for resale
and materlals

Purchase of property,
plant and equipment,
intangible assets,
investment property

- from associates 15 458 8423 -
- from other related entltles 298 913 53 006 2 858
Total purchases from related entities 314 371 61 429 2858

Remuneration of the Supervisory Board of the Parent Entity

Remuneration due to service in the Supervisory Board, wages and
other current employee benefits

Total

Remuneration of the Management Board of the Parent Entity

Wages and other current employee benefits

Benefits due to terminatien of the employment relationship
Post-employment benefits

Total

For the period

from 1 January 2008
to 30 June 2008

from 1 January 2007
to 30 June 2007

728

529

728

529

For the period

from 1 January 2008
to 30 June 2008

from 1 January 2007
to 30 June 2007

2255 2194
391 442

- 16

2 646 2 652

Due to the dismissal in the first half of 2008 of Members of the Management Board, the Company created a provislon in the
amount of PLN 1 849 thousand for compensation resulting from their dismissal. This compensation wlll be pald following the

dismissal period, l.e. In the second half of 2008.
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40. Related party transactions (continuation)

At
Trade receivables from related entities 30 June 2008 31 December 2007
- from assoclates 92 028 505
- from other related entities* 11 604 16 538
Total receivables from related entities 103 632 17 043

*State Treasury subsldiaries from whom the KGHM Polska MledZ S.A. Group at 30 June 2008 recognised recelvables due to
sates {5 largest items):

1. Zaktady Chemiczne "POLICE” S.A. 2 498
2. CENTROZEOM WROCLAW S.A, 2063
3. Wojewoddzkie Przedsiebiorstwo Energetyki Clepine] w Legnicy S.A. 1910
4. Huta “Bedzin” S.A. 798
5. Zaktady Gérniczo-Hutnicze "BOLESLAW" S.A. 597

Recelvables from the above-mentioned entities represent around 92% of recelvables from sales to the State Treasury
subsldiarles. The remaining 8% represent receivables from sales earned from 42 entltles - the remaining cllents of the Group
related to the State Treasury.

The amount of the allowance for impairment of recelvables from related entlties at the balance sheet date and the amount of
the allowance concerning related entities taken to profit or loss during the period is inslignificant from the point of view of the
consolidated financlal statements.

At
Trade payables towards related entities 30 June 2008 31 December 2007
- towards assoclates 5 880 10 463
- towards other related entities * 74 078 68 393
Total Habilities towards related entities 79 958 78 B56

*State Treasury subsidiaries towards which the KGHM Polska MledZ S.A. Group at 30 June 2008 recognised trade payables
{5 largest Items):

1. EnerglaPro GRUPA TAURON S_A. 57 684
2. NITROERG S.A. 4 262
3. Polskie Gornictwo Naftowe | Gazownictwo S.A. 1618
4, "Stomil-Poznan” S.A. 1457
5. KOFAMA Spéika z o.0. 1083

Liabllities towards the above-mentioned entities represent around 97% of liabllities due to purchases from the State Treasury
subsidlaries. The remaining 3% represent liabilities towards 54 entities - the remaining clients of the Group related to the State
Treasury.

In addition, entities of the KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A Group make with the State Treasury settlements in respect of various types
of taxes and charges. These transactions have been described In other notes of the financial statements.

At
30 June 2008 31 December 2007
Guarantees received: 4 4
- from other related entities 4 4
Guarantees granted to: 42 270
- other related entlties 42 270
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41. Off-balance sheet liabilities due to operating leases

Entities of the Group have entered into operating leases agreements related to the rental of offlce space, space serving radio
and cable networks, mining machinery, vehicles and medical and IT equipment.

Total value of future minimum payments At

30 June 2008 31 December 2007
Up to one year 19 493 17 056
From one to five years 34 594 34 891
Over five years 12 934 16 213
Total: 67 021 68 160

Lease payments recognised in profit or loss

For the period

from 1 January 2008
to 30 June 2008

from 1 January 2007
to 31 December 2007

Value of minimum lease payments 18 147 27 133
42. Contingent items and other off-balance sheet items
At

30 June 2008 31 December 2007
Contingent receivables 47 601 158 B16
- contested State Budget issues 36 320 146 054
- guarantees received 11 281 12 762
Cff-balance sheet receivables 25 195 25195
- Inventions, iImplementation of projects 25195 25195
Contingent liabilities 665 339 708 660
- guarantees granted 35238 30002
- premissory note liabilities 9 554 15501
- disputed issues, pending court proceedings 12 986 7 533
- contingent penalties 1682 383
- preventive measures in respect of mine-related damages 11 208 10 000
- agreement on the acceptance of the offer and conditional
transfer of shares in Polkomtel 5.A 594 671 841731
Off-balance sheet liabilities - disputed issues due to 69 176 55 588

implementation of projects and inventions

The value of contingent assets was determined based on estimates.

Information on execution of an agreement on the acceptance of the offer and conditlonal transfer of shares in
Polkomtel S.A.

On 10 March 2006, KGHM Polska Miedz S.A., PKN Qrlen S.A., PSE S.A. and Weglokoks S.A. as the purchasers, and TDC Mobile
International A/S as the seller, executed an “Agreement on the Acceptance of the Offer and Conditional Transfer of Shares in
Polkomtel S.A." (the “Agreement”}. The signing of the Agreement was preceded by signing the “Shareholders Agreement on the
Purchase of Shares in Polkemtel S.A. from TDC Mobile International A/S and Taking Joint Actions Aimed at Disposing of Al
Shares Held in Polkemtel S.A." between KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A., PKN Orlen S.A., PSE S.A. and Weglokoks S.A., as
shareholders in Polkomtel S.A.

As a result of a so-called Change of Ownership in relation to TDC Mobile International A/S, the other shareholders of Polkomtel
S.A. {including Vodafone Americas Inc.) have obtained, in accordance with §12.14 of the Statute of Polkomtel S.A., the right to
acquire a total of 4 019 780 shares held by TDC Mobile International A/S In Polkomtel S.A., In a proportion equal to the
percentage of the shares held by each shareholder in Polkomtel S.A., other than the shares held by TOC Maobile International
A/S. The purchase offer was delivered by TDC Mobile International A/S to the remaining shareholders on 8 February 2006. The
Agreement has been executed in result of the execution of the acquisition right of KGHM Polska Miedz S.A., PKN Orlen S.A.,
PSE S.A. and Weglokoks S.A. with respect to the shares referred to in the offer by TDC Mobile International A/S. There s a
dispute between Vodafone Americas Inc. and TDC Mobile International A/S connected with this offer and in connection with
such dispute the injunction of 24 February 2006 as described below has been instituted,

Pursuant to the Agreement, KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. may acquire 980 486 shares In Polkomtel S.A., representing
approximately 4.78% of the share capltal of Polkomtel S.A., for a purchase price not exceeding EUR 214.04 per share (the
equivalent of PLN 832.72 pursuant to fixing rates list No S0/A/NBP/2006 of 10 March 2006), and an aggregate purchase price
not exceeding EUR 209 863 223.44 (the equivalent of PLN 816 472 870.79). Upon KGHM Polska Miedi S.A., PKN Orlen S.A.,
PSE S.A. and Weglokoks S.A. acquiring the shares pursuant to the Agreement, tegether with already-held shares, the said
entitles wlll hold in aggregate more than 75% of the total number of shares of Polkomtel S.A.
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42. Contingent items and other off-balance sheet liabilities (continuation)

The parties agreed to vote at any General Meeting of the Polkomtel S.A. In favour of dividends distributed to the shareholders
as allowed under the applicable laws from the retained net profits for years preceding 2005, 100% of the net profit of Polkomtel
S.A. generated for years 2005 and 2006 and at least 50% of the net profit generated for any subsequent financial year. The
amount of dividend paid out to the seller reduced by the interest on the maximum purchase price may result in the reduction of
effective purchase price of shares.

The Agreement has been executed subject to the following condition precedent: the explry or cancellation with respect to the
shares covered by the Agreement of the injunction instituted by the District Court in Warsaw on 24 February 2006 or absence
of any other injunction Instituted by any other judiclary authority (or any other measure of a similar nature) prohibiting a
transfer of shares in Polkomtel S.A. covered by the Agreement by TDC Moblle International A/S.

Pursuant to the Agreement, KGHM Polska Miedz S.A., PKN Orlen S.A., PSE S.A. and Weglokoks S.A. as the purchasers have the
right not to purchase the shares of Polkomtet S.A. If by 10 March 2009 {or such other date as the parties may agree) the
abovementioned conditlon precedent is not fulfilled, or until that date other circumstances exist related to the disputes between
Vodafone Americas Inc. and TDC Mobile International A/S that may constitute an ghstacle for the purchase from TDC Mobile
International A/S of the shares covered by the Agreement, as a result of which the Agreement shall terminate as of that date.

On 10 March 2006, Vodafone Americas Inc. filed a claim with the International Court of Arbltration of the Federal Chamber of
Commerce in Vienna against six entities, naming TDC Mablle International A/S as the Principal Respondent, Polkomtel S.A, as
the First Auxillary Respondent and KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A., PKN ORLEN S.A., PSE S.A. and Weglokoks S.A. as further Auxiliary
Respondents. In the statement of its claims, Vodafone Americas Inc. has challenged, among others, the method of setting the
price by TDC International A/S in the offer addressed to the other shareholders of Polkomtel S.A.

On 28 March 2008 attorneys ad fitem of the Company received a copy of the partial verdict of the Court of Arbitration in Vienna
on the clairm of Vodafone Americas Inc, against Polkomtel S.A. and the other shareholders of Potkomtel S.A.

The Court ruled that the agreement dated 10 March 2006 on purchasing the remaining shares of Potkomtel S.A, (belonging to
TDC Mobile International A/S) by the Polish shareholders of Poikomtel S.A. is valld, and does not Infringe either on the statutes
of Polkemtel S.A, or on the shareholder agreements. The legal consequences of this verdict are currently being analysed, and
based on this analysis further steps may be taken in this matter.

Contested State Budget issues

Legal regulations related to VAT and corporate income tax for 2007 - apart from the manner used by the Parent Entity to settle
exchange rate differences using the balance sheet method - have not been significantly changed as compared to the prior year,
these changes may have resulted in significant changes in the Parent Entlty's tax policy.

Despite some stabillsatlon of court and administrative tax judgments, tax interpretations issued by the tax office - through
implemented duty of issuing individual interpretations regarding tax law problems by the Ministry of Finance, there are still
areas of uncertainty and disputes. Issues regarding qualification of tax costs and the determination of tax base are and still
may have caused the tax risk for entities pursuing economic activity.

Tax bodies, operating within their assigned spheres of competence, are authorised to conduct controls and to examine records
relating to business transactlons accounted for in financial accounts within a period of 5 years from the end of the fiscal year for
which a tax return was made and a financial result was calculated. This means in turn that, given the lack of consistent
interpretation, tax bodies may charge KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. with additional taxation as well as interest and penalties.

In the opinion of the Management Board of the Parent Entity, there are no existing clrcumstances which would indicate the
possibility of the arising of significant tax liabilities.

Contingent recelvables due to contested State Budget issues regarding income taxes and VAT amounted at the balance sheet
date to PLN 6 383 thousand, of which:

PLN 000
- Corporate Income tax for year 2000 360
- Corporate income tax for year 2001 2117
- Personal income tax for year 2001 . 290
- Personal income tax for year 2000 1702
- Corporate income tax (lumnp-sum) for year 2003 1914

Contingent recelvables regarding contested issues on property tax on underground mining facilitles amounts to PLN 2 454
thousand (as at 31 December 2007: PLN 119 628 thousand). Due to the review of a constitutional complaint by the
Constitutionat Tribuna!, filed on 14 July 2006 by KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A,, with respect to the property tax on underground
mining facilities and the buildings and equipment located within these facilities, the Constitutional Tribunal on 8 April 2008
Issued a Declsion in which it cancelled proceedings due to the Inadmissibllity of issuing a decree. The Company, disagreeing
with this declsion, on 26 May 2008 filed a complaint with the Constitutional Tribunal against this declsion. The basls for filing
this complaint was mainly the official position of the Minister of the State Treasury contalned in a letter dated 25 March 2008, in
which the State Treasury stated that it does not have a decisive Impact on KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. as understood by the act on
the transparency of financial relations between public bodies and public companles, which means that the Parent Entity is not in
the category of public entities.
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42. Contingent items and other off-balance sheet liabilities (continuation)

Therefore the Parent Entity is entitled, as is every other economlic entlty, to such rights as constitutional protection and the
right of access to proceedings before the Constitutional Tribunal.

The Parent Entity withdrew complaints from administrative courts respecting the property tax on underground mining facilities
for the years 2003-2007.

The decision of the Constitutional Tribunal does not have financial consequences for KGHM Polska Miedz S.A, due to the fact
that the Parent Entity continually regulates its liabilities respecting property tax due to decisions issued by tax bodies.

In companles of the Group, appeal proceedings were continued respecting controls carrled out in prior years.

POL-MIEDZ TRANS Sp. Z 0.0.

In 2007 the Legnica Branch of the Tax Office In Wroclaw conducted a tax control in the subsidiary POL-MIEDZ TRANS Sp. z 0.0.
respecting the payment of taxes In 2004. These proceedings concluded with the issuance of two decisions respecting the
levying of additional excise tax In the total amount of PLN 7 721 thousand.

The maln complaints invelve the acceptance of declarations from customers respecting the use of heatling cil ¢containing fictional
personal data, and sales of heating oil in wholesale amounts, suggesting they were to be used for commercial purposes.

On 20 December 2007 the company submitted an appeal of these decisions to the Customs Office in Wroctaw. The Directar of
the Customs Office In Wroctaw overturned the decision of a body of the first instance, and ordered the matter to be re-heard.
The Tax Control Office set the date by which a decision Is to be Issued as 17 September 2008.

Due to contested State budget Issues, contingent receivables in the subsidiary POL-MIEDZ TRANS Sp. z 0.0. amount to PLN
23 658 thousand, of which:

- Excise tax 22 579
- Fee for the right of perpetual usufruct 1079
DIALOG S.A.

DIALOG S.A. Is acting as a plaintiff In a variety of proceedings Involving prior years, whose subject is the exclusion from the
taxable base of the property tax on telecom lines, which In the oplnion of the company are not objects which are subject to this
tax. At 30 June 2008 the total value of the dispute is PLN 982 thousand.

Tax controls

In the first half of 2008 the Parent Entity did not underge any tax controls. Tax proceedings were however continued (including
In the form of appeals), which were Initiated in prior years.

As a result of proceedings, in June 2008 the Head of the Lower Silesia Tax Office Issued a decision to the Parent Entity on
setting the amount of the excess of output tax over Input tax for the month of December 2005, which the Parent Entity
appealed to a body of the second instance (contested amount: PLN 53 thousand).

As a result of controls carried out in the pericd 2006 - 2007 by the Head of the Wroclaw Tax Control Office, Legnica branch,
with respect to ,Accuracy of the declared tax bases and the correctness of the calculation and payment of taxation representing
State budget Income, as well as other recelvables due to the State Budget or State speclal funds for 2003.”, as at 30 June 2008
the Parent Entlty was charged with VAT in arrears in the amount of PLN 81 thousand {with additional llabllities). These liabliities
were regulated by the Parent Entity, but an appeal was filed with the Tax Chamber of the issued decision regarding VAT.

Meanwhlle, with respect to corporate income tax for 2003, the Director of the Tax Control Office Issued a decision charging the
Parent Entity with arrears In the amount of PLN 7 084 thousand. This decision - as a result of an appeal - was overturned by a
body of the second Instance and was ordered to be re-heard by a body of the first instance. Until now the Director of the Tax
Control Office has not issued another decision In this respect. Nonetheless It Is estimated that the amount in arrears will not
change, and will amount to PLN 7 084 thousand.

In the first half of 2008 audits were carried out in companies of the Group by the Tax Contrel Office, the Social Insurance Office
and the Customs Office. As a result of these audits there were no major discrepancies uncovered as respects state budget
liabllities.

Realisation of a contract with PGNiIG

Two contracts signed on 1 Decemnber 2003 between PGNIG S.A. and ,Energetyka” sp. z 0.0. for the supply of natural gas for the
co-generation of electricity and heat (with subsequent annexes) continue in force for both partles.

The subsidiary ,Energetyka” sp. z 0.0. has updated the program to modernise its power generation capacity, having arisen from
an evaluatlon of the needs for electricity and heat by the divislons of KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. taking into account current
production costs.

.Energetyka” sp. z 0.0. Is continuing negotiations with PGNIG S.A., with the particlpation of KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A., aimed at
adapting these contracts to the needs of KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. and ensuring the profltability of this project.

Taking into account the course of negotiations, the risk that PGNIG S.A. wlll make claims agalnst ,Energetyka” sp. z ¢.0.
respecting any contractual penalties is at the present time minimal.
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43. Employment structure

Average employment in the Group was as follows:

For the period

from 1 January 2008 from 1 January 2007

to 30 June 2008 to 31 December 2007
White-collar workers 8 639 8428
Blue-collar workers 19 587 19 264
Total: 28 226 27 692

44. Social assets and Social Fund liabilities

The net balance of the Soclal Fund at 30 June 2008 amounted to PLN 1 745 thousand - receivables from the Soclal Fund, and
at 31 December 2007 amounted to PLN 3 643 thousand - Soclal Fund liabllity. The Group has netted the assets of the Fund
with the llabilities towards the Fund.

The composition and nature of assets, liabllities and costs related to the Social Fund are presented in the table below.

At

Social assets and Social Fund liabilitles 30 June 2008 31 December 2007
Loans granted to employees 101 049 85 762
Other recelvables 1033 113
Cash and cash equivalents 71521 44 931
Soclal Fund liabilitles {171 858) {134 449)
Net balance 1 745 (3 643)
The balance Is settled in the following perlods after refunding.

Transfers made to the Social Fund during the financial period 94 137 111 076

45. Government grants

The balance of government grants recognised in deferred Income at 30 June 2008 |s PLN 1 831 thousand (at 31 December
2007: PLN 1 877 thousand), The funds are from the European Union funds, as well as from other funds. These are cash grants
recelved for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment, for the perfermance of development work, which result in
capitalised intanglble assets and for the subsidlsing of employee training.

The companies of the Group alse receive government grants from the Voivodeshlp Fund for Environmental Protection and Water
Management (Fundusz Ochrony Srodowiska | Gospodarkl Wodnej) In the form of preferential interest rates on loans, as well as
annulment of loans.

46. Subsequent events

Signing of a contract

On 7 August 2008 a contract was entered into between KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. and Wieland Werke AG for the sale of copper
cathodes in years 2009 - 2011,

The estimated value of this contract is from USD 369 727 thousand to USD 448 955 thousand, l.e. from PLN 775 503 thousand
to PLN 941 683 thousand, depending on the amount of tonnage under option, This amount was estimated based on the forecast
copper price (using a forward curve) and the Natlonal Bank of Poland exchange rate from 7 August 2008.

The total estimated value of contracts entered into between KGHM Polska Miedz S.A, and Wieland Werke AG over the last 12
months |s from PLN 1 087 061 thousand to PLN 1 278 007 thousand, depending on the amount of tonnage under option.

The highest-value contract signed during this period is the above-mentioned contract.

86
Translation from the original Polish version




as adopted by the European Union
for the period from 1 January 2008 to 20 June 2008
(amounts in tables In thousand PLN, unless otherwise stated)

46. Subsequent events {continuation)

Increase of capital in a subsidiary

On 12 August 2008 the Extraordinary General Shareholders’ Meeting of PeBeKa S.A. resolved to increase the company’s share
capital by PLN 18 715 thousand, through the Issuance of 306 804 registered shares having a face value of PLN 61.00 each,
which wlll be covered in cash by the sole shareholder, KGHM Polska Mledz S.A. The funds from this increase in share capital will
be allocated to the development of the company.

On 26 August 2008 the change in the share capital was registered in at the Regional Court for Wroclaw-Fabryczna in Wroclaw,
Section IX (Economic) of the National Court of Registration.

Sale of shares of MINOVA KSANTE Spotka z o0.0.

On 26 August 2008 the Parent Entity sold 13 500 shares of MINOVA KSANTE Spdika z 0.0. back to this company, representing
30% of the share capital of MINOVA KSANTE Spbéika z c.0. and granting the right to 30% of the votes at the General
Shareholders’ Meeting.

These shares were sold based on an agreement entered into between KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. and MINOVA KSANTE Spotka z
0.0, titled "Agreement for the buy-back of shares for the purpose of their retirement” dated 26 August 2008. The sale price for
these 13 500 shares, having a total nominal value of PLN 1 350 thousand, amounts to PLN 8 542 thousand (PLN 632.75 per
share). This amount is to be pald within two weeks of the Court reglstration of the decrease in the share capital of MINOVA
KSANTE Spétka z 0.0. due to the retirement of the shares acquired based on the above agreement. The shares sold were of a
long-term, equity investment nature, and thelr carrying amount was PLN 1 309 thousand.

Following this transaction KGHM Polska Mied $.A. no longer owns any of the share capital of MINOVA KSANTE Spétka z 0.0.

Court decision regarding payment of damages due to deterioration of water caused by the activitles of the Parent
Entity

At a trial dated 29 August 2008 the Regional Court in Legnica, Civil Sectlon dismissed the claim of Bobmark International Sp. z
0.0. In its entirety, judging it as cbviously unfounded. The decision is not legally binding., ({For details, see Report on the
activities of the Company, page 21).

Removal of the company Przedsiebiorstwo Eksploatacji Woéd Aquakonrad Spétka Akcyjna in bankruptcy from the
Register of Entrepreneurs

On 20 March 2008 the company Przedsleblorstwo Eksploatac]i Wéd Aquakonrad Spétka Akcyjna in bankruptcy was removed
from the Register of Entrepreneurs.

Payment to the capital of a subsidiary

On 17 September 2008 the Extraordinary Generat Shareholders' Meeting of KGHM CUPRUM sp. z 0.0.-CBR resolved to make a
payment to its capital in the amount of PLN 1 500 thousand, to be used for flnancing the first stage of exploratory work in the
Welsswasser region. This payment was executed two weeks from the date of the resolution of the General Shareholders'
Meeting. This is a refundable payrment, with the return of funds to be made by 31 December 2009.

Contingent agreement for the acquisition of shares

On 22 September 2008 Telefonla DIALOG S.A. (a subsidlary of KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A.) entered into a contingent agreement
with PKN Orlen S.A. for the acquisition of shares of Petrotel Sp. z 0.0. with its registered head office in Plock.

As a result of signing this agreement, Telefonia DIALOG S.A. will acquire 6 150 shares of Petrotel Sp. z 0.0., with a face value
of PLN 1 Q00 per share, and a total nominal value of PLN 6 150 thousand, representing 75% of the share capltal and the total
number of votes at the General Shareholders’ Meeting of Petrotel Sp. z 0.0. The purchase price for 75% of the shares of
Petrotel Sp. z 0.0. is PLN 32 411 thousand, i.e. PLN 5 270 per share.

Ownership of these shares will be transferred to Telefonia DIALOG S5.A. under condition that the remalning shareholders of
Petrotel Sp. z o.0. decline to make use of their pre-emption right to these shares, in accordance with § 13 of the Articles of
Assoclation of the company Petrotel Sp. z 0.0., and the full payment of the amount representing the purchase price for these
shares. The process of realising the pre-emption right to acquire these shares will be completed within approx. 3-4 weeks from
the date of signing the agreement.

Filing of a bankruptcy petition for the company Vivid.pl S.A.

On 24 September 2008 the Management Board of Vivid.pl S.A. {an indirect subsldiary of KGHM Polska Miedz S.A.) fited a
bankruptcy petition for the company Vivid.pl S.A. with the Regional Court for the City of Warsaw in Warsaw, Section X
{Economic) for bankruptcy and remediary proceedings.

100% of the shares of Vivid.pl S.A. are owned by Telefenia DIALOG S.A. (a subsidlary of KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A,), The net
carrying amount of these shares in the assets of Telefonia DIALOG S.A. amounts to PLN 4 279 thousand.

Declaration of bankruptcy of Vivid.pl S.A.

On 29 September 2008 Reglonal Court for the City of Warsaw In Warsaw, Sectton X (Economic) for bankruptcy and remediary
proceedings, Issued a ruling dated 29 September 2008 upon declaration of bankruptcy of the company Vivid.pl S.A. with Its
registered head office in Warsaw, The court appolnted a court commissioner - Regional Court Judge, Arkadiusz Zagrobelny, and
a recelver - Jacek Filiks.

The ruling on this bankruptcy wlill come Into legal force on 10 October 2008.
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46. Subsequent events (continuation)

Acquisition of shares by POL-MIEDZ TRANS sp. z 0.0. in a newly-created company

On 19 September 2008 the Regional Court for Wroclaw-Fahbryczna in Wroctaw, Section IX (Economic) of the Nationat Court
Register Issued a decitsion on entering the following company into the National Court Register - Reglster of Entrepreneurs: PMT
Linle Kolejowe sp. z 0.0. with its reglstered head office in Polkowice. The share capital of this newly-created entity amounts to
PLN 100 thousand and is divided intoc 100 shares of PLN 1 000 each.

POL-MIEDZ TRANS sp. z 0.0. {a subsidiary of KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A.) has acquired 99 shares In the newly-founded company
PMT Linie Kolejowe sp. z 0.0. These shares have a per-share face value of PLN 1000 and a total nominal value of PLN 99
thousand, represent 99% of the share capital of this company and grant the right to the same number of votes at the General
Shareholders’ Meeting. ) i

The carrylng amount of the shares of PMT Linie Kolejowe sp. z 6.0. In the accounts of POL-MIEDZ TRANS sp. z 0.0. is PLN 99
thousand.

The shares acquired by POL-MIEDZ TRANS sp. z o.0. for a price equal to thelr nominal value were entirely paid for in cash.

POL-MIEDZ TRANS sp. z 0.0. became the owner of 99% of the shares of PMT Linle Kolejowe sp, Z 0.0., with 1% of the shares of
PMT Linie Kolejowe sp. z 0.0. owned by Mercus PHP sp. z 0.0. (a subsidlary of KGHM Polska Miedz S.A.).

The founding of this company and its assumption of management over railway Infrastructure will enable PMT Linie Kolejowe sp.
z 0.0. to collect fees for providing access to thils Infrastructure to other carriers. The result of commencing operations by PMT
Linle Kolejowe sp. z 0.0, will be to Improve the effectiveness of the assets owned by POL-MIEDZ TRANS sp. z 0.0.
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as adopted by the European Union
for the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008
{amounts in tables In thousand PLN, uniess otherwise stated}

SIGNATURES
Signatures of all Members of the Management Board
DATE FIRST, LAST NAME POSITION SIGNATURE
277
7 October 2008 Mirostaw Krutin President
of the Management Board
/
. I Vice President
7 October 2008 Herbert Wirth of the Management Board g . M
£
4 /
- Vice President
7 October 2008 Maciej Tybura of the Management Boa

Signature of person responsible for company accounting

DATE FIRST, LAST NAME POSITION SIGNAIT\I.IRE
Chief Accountant of KGHM
. Executive Director
7 October 2008 Ludmita Mordylak of Accounting Services /
Center
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1. Basic information on the KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. Group
1.1, Structure of the Group

The Parent Entity of the Group is KGHM Polska Miedz S.A.

At 30 June 2008 KGHM Polska MiedZz S.A. owned, directly or indirectly, shares in 39 commercial law companies,
including in:

- 28 subsidiaries,

- 3 associates,

- 8 other companies,

During the first half of 2008 there were no changes carried out in the structure of the Group.

The equity investments of KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. in individual entities are shown in the diagram below.

Diagram 1. Equity investments of KGHM Poiska MiedZ S.A. at 30 June 2008
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* 14 July 2008 company name changed {currentty Zagiebie Lubin 5.A.)
** & September 2008 company name changed (cumently "Mercus Software™ sp. 2o )
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1.2, Activities of Group Companies

Three business segments have been identified in the activities of the Group:

- metals (copper, precious metals), other smelter products - extraction, processing,

comprising the activities of Group subsidiaries which are not

Segment 1 | .
production, trade and promotion;

Segrment 11 - telecommunications;

Segment 111 other sectors,

encompassed by segments I and IL.

The table below lists the activities of companies by segment.

Table 1. Activities of significant Group companies, by segment

Item Entity Type of activity
Segment I

1. |KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. metals ore mining; the production of non-ferrous and precious
metals and salt; the casting of light and non-ferrous metals;
waste management; holding management activities;
geological-exploratory activities, research and technical
analysis; professional rescue services; telecommunications and
IT services

2. |KGHM CONGO S.P.R.L copper and cobalt extraction

3. |Walcownia Metali Niezelaznych non-ferrous metals processing

spoika Z 0.0.

4, {KGHM Polish Copper Ltd. copper trading

5. |KGHM Kupferhandelsges.m.b.H. copper trading

6. |WM LABEDY" S.A. trading in coal, grinding mediums used in the production of
copper concentrate

7. |KGHM Metraco S.A. trading of metals, chemicals, copper scrap

Segment II

1. |DIALOG S.A. telecommunications services

2. |Vivid.pl. S.A. internet sales

3. |AVISTA MEDIA Sp. z 0.0. multimedia services

Segment III

1. [KGHM Ecoren 5.A. the production and sale of road-building materials and of
rhenium compounds

2. |PeBeKa S.A. construction of mines with infrastructure; building of roadway,
railway and subway tunnels, underground construction

3. |DFM ZANAM-LEGMET Sp. z 0.0. production of mining machinery and equipment, construction
machinery, machinery repairs

4. |,Energetyka” sp. z 0.0, generation, distribution and sale of electrical and heating
energy, water-sewage management

5. |POL-MIEDZ TRANS Sp. z 0.0. railway cargo transport, passenger and cargo road transport,
trade in fuels

6. |[PHP ,MERCUS” sp. z 0.0, trade in consumer goods, production of bundled electrical
cables
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7. [INTERFERIE S.A. tourism services, including holiday resorts, health spas and
hotels
~MCZ" S.A. medical services
KGHM CUPRUM sp. z 0.0. - CBR R&D activities
10. |CBJ) sp. z 0.0. research and chemical-physical analysis
11. |INOVA Spdlka z o.0. electrical engineering, attestation and expertise, certification
12. |KGHM LETIA S.A. technology transfer, promotion of scientific achievements, sale
and rental of property
13. |TUW-CUPRUM mutual insurance services for its members
14. |WFP Hefra SA production and sale of rust-proof, semi-silver-plated and silver-
plated table settings
15. |PCPM sp. z 0.0, promotion of copper products
16. |Zaglebie Lubin S.A. management of a football club, organisation of professional
sporting events
17. |PHU ,Lubinpex” Sp. z 0.0. food industry and catering services

Following is information on the activities of significant entities of the Group.

SEGMENT I

The most important entity in the Group is KGHM Polska MiedZz S.A. A description of the activities of the
Parent Entity in the first half of 2008 may be found in the KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. report published on 23
September 2008,

KGHM Polish Copper Ltd.

This company conducts sales of the products of KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. through the London Metal Exchange,
and is also involved in supplying smelting materials to KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. The activities of this company
are strongly dependent on conditions on the metals market.

KGHM Kupferhandelsges.m.b.H.

This company trades in the products of KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A., i.e. wire rod, cathodes and billets. The
company operates in central and southern Europe. Its main business is conducted in Austria.

KGHM Metraco S.A.

KGHM Metraco S.A. is one of the strategic commercial companies of KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. It is involved in
the supply of materials and raw materials which guarantee the uninterrupted operation of KGHM Polska Miedz?
S.A. divisions and companies of the Group, as well as external sales of by-products of the core business of
KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. The company concentrates primarily on wholesale business: finished goods from
copper, precious metals and chemicals, as well as waste, scrap and raw materials and semi-products.

SEGMENT II

DIALOG S.A.

DIALOG S.A. operates in three telecom segments:

- the fixed-line voice segment (traditional voice services provided directly or indirectly, intelligent network
services, additional VAS voice services, traffic transit);

- the fixed-line network data transmission segment (data transmission, communications leasing, and narrow
and broadband Internet access using ground lines and radio), and

- the pay-tv segment.

DIALOG S.A. is one of the most important alternative operators to TP S.A., apart from Netia and Exatel.
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Table 2. Market share of DIALOG S.A. in 2007 by segment

; Market segment / ratio * i

Fixed-line voice telephony - active fixed lines 4.65%
Fixed-line voice telephony - sales 3.64%
DLISP / data transmission in fixed-line networks - broadband household

. 2.47%
cennections and SOHO
DLISP / data transmission in fixed-line networks ~ sales 1.86%

Source: PMR Publications, 2007

* internal estimates by DIALOG S.A. based on PMR Publications, TP S.A., internal data; the data presented are estimates, any error in estimating
market share should not exceed +/- 0.5 percentage points

DIALOG S.A. is one of the largest alternative operators in Poland, the largest in terms of the number of active
ringing lines using its own infrastructure; third, after Netia and Exatel, in terms of sales.

In 2007, in terms of value, DIALOG $.A. held approx. 3.64% of the fixed-line voice telephony market. The
position of the company may be described as stable, despite a falling trend evident for years in the sector.

The position of DIALOG S.A. in the DLISP data transmission segment is somewhat weaker (approx. 1.86% of
the market in terms of sales), although a rising trend may be seen in the revenues generated by the company
from its Internet access and data transmission services. They also represent an increasingly important place in
the sales structure. This is in line with the directions of growth on the telecom market.

The estimated market share of DIALOG S.A. at 30 June 2008 in terms of numbers of active customers is as
follows:

- 17.1 % in the WLR market,

- 2.5 % in the BSA market.

In February 2008, internet tv services — IPTV (Dialog media) were added to the company’s product line.

Conditions in the sector

The value of the fixed-line voice telephony segment in Poland is experiencing a downward trend, while the
fixed-line data transmission segment is increasing.

DIALOG S.A. intends to compensate for the lost sales from voice services using its own infrastructure by
increasing sales from the Internet access and data transmission segment as well as from WLR. The
development of xDSL, VPN, BSA, WLR, MVNO, communications leasing and new multimedia offers (inciuding
IPTV) over the next several years will lead to a further dynamic increase in company sales from the growing
data transmission segment in fixed-line networks. In addition, DIALOG S.A. plans to acquire operators from the
ISP segment.

SEGMENT III

KGHM Ecoren S.A.

This company is primarily involved in the production and sale of road-building rmaterial, products recovered
from limestone (powder, coarse stone, key aggregate, sorbates), ammonium perrhenate and metallic rhenium,
and from slag granulate.

Road-building material

The road-building material offered by KGHM Ecoren S.A. is used in the production of mineral-asphalt mixtures
and for foundations. All of its products are designed for the road construction market. The company sells its
products in north-western Poland. Its share in the crushed material market (this group of products includes
material produced by the company) is estimated at around 2-3%. The customers of the company include the
largest road construction companies, such as Strabag, NCC and Skanska.

Metals and their chemical compounds - rhenium

The company is familiar with the production and sale of ammonium perrhenate and with the further
perspectives for metallic rhenium, Ammonium perrhenate is the company’s main product. Current production
capacity and the stable quality of the product enable its sale as a standard catalyser. This product is used and
purchased by companies which process It into metallic rhenium for superalloy producers. Superalloys are mainly
used in the aircraft industry (in the production of jet engines) and the petrochemical industry (in the production
of high octane benzine or catalytic converters). A potential sales market for ammonium perrhenate in Poland is
the petrochemical industry.
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Over the last several years there has been a significant increase in demand for this material by manufacturers
of high temperature alloys, which is directly related to the healthy condition of the air transport market, the
space industry and the military aircraft industry.

The company’s share in the global ammonium perrhenate production market is around 5 %.

Stag granulate
Sales of slag granulate are aimed at producers of abrasives. Due to the basic uses of this product, conditions in

this sector primarily depend on the situation in the ship-building industry (this product is used to clean ship
hulls and steel constructions).

PeBeKa S.A,

This company Is invelved in:

- mining construction - this involves work on mine tunnels and shafts (including drifts; the building of shafts
and foreshafts plus their outfitting);

- construction and engineering services — comprising general construction services, hydrotechnology,
engineering and specialty services (including the construction of industrial facilities, tunnels and metro
stations, and the construction and repair of pipelines).

PeBeKa S.A specialises in mine construction. It is the main supplier to KGHM of mine tunnel and shaft

construction services.

It also plays a significant role in work associated with accessing the new deposit (Glogdw Gteboki). With respect

to mine work it also provides services to the German company Deutsche Steinkohle AG.

With respect to construction and civil engineering, PeBeKa S.A. mainly operates on the local market (LGOM)

and in Warsaw in building the Warsaw Metro. The company has built some of the stations and tunnels for the

Warsaw Metro. Its contracts are carried out as part of a consortium with PRG Metro Spétka z 0.0. PeBeKa S.A.

is one of the leading contractors in Poland in the construction of underground tunnels (tunnel boring method,

blasting method).

PeBeKa S.A., in a consortium with HOCHTIEF Polska Sp. z 0.0. and HOCHTIEF Construction A.G., is building a

sports stadium on behalf of Zagtebie Lubin S.A.

ZANAM-LEGMET Sp. 2z o0.0.

This company is a producer of mining equipment, for use in methane-free, underground non-ferrous metals and
salt mining tunnels. Among the products produced by the company which determine its market position are
mining machinery (loaders, haulage rigs, drilling-roof bolting rigs, auxiliary machinery) as well as conveyor
belts. In addition, the company produces castings, construction elements built on the basis of submitted
documentation, and boilers.

The company fulfils a strategic role for the core business of KGHM Polska Miedz S.A., as a significant supplier
and servicer of mining machinery and equipment.

The company also sells its products on external markets, although here it has heavy competition from farge
domestic and foreign companies, such as SANDVICK {TAMROCK) from Finland, ATLAS COPCO/WAGNER from
Sweden, PAUS MACHINENFABRIK from Germany, MINE MASTER from Poland (together with GHH Fahrzeuge),
and BUMAR/FADROMA from Poland.

~Energetyka” sp. z 0.0.

The basic activities of the company are:

- the generation, distribution and sale of electricity,

- the generation, distribution and sale of heating energy, steam and hot water,

- the intake, purification and distribution of water, and

- the collection and treatment of waste.

LEnergetyka” sp. z 0.0. is the largest producer of electricity in the former Legnica voivodeship. It is produced in
conjunction with heat, all of which is supplied to KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. The company is one the largest
producers of heat in western Poland and the largest in the former Legnica voivodeship.

With respect to water-sewage management, the company primarily serves industrial customers on the local
market, and is the main supplier for the divisions of KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. and companies of the Group. It
also has a small share in the local market for individual customers.

~Energetyka” sp. z 0.0. operates in an attractive sector with significant growth potential. Its strong position on
the local market and the rescurces and know-how it possesses provide great opportunities for growth by
expanding into new fields. On the other hand, rationalisation of heat consumption by its customers requires the
modernisation of its production assets, and strict environmental standards force it to commence research into
renewable energy sources.

POL-MIEDZ TRANS Sp. z 0.0.

The company offers complex services in railway and road transport, and carries out wholesale and retail sales
of oil-based products,

POL-MIEDZ TRANS Sp. z 0.0. is among a group of entities which fulfil a strategic role for the core business of
KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. - it is the leading source of railway and road transport, and is a direct supplier of fuels
to the divisions.

Transiation from the original Polish version




The market share of the company in the Polish transport-spedition-logistics market is around 2.5%. The
company holds sixth place amongst private domestic railway carriers, in terms of carriage work measured in
tonnes per kilometre. It holds a 4.4 % share of this market.

The company intends to develop its railway transport capabilities, including an increased share in sales to the
external market.

PHP ,MERCUS" sp. z 0.0.

The activities of the company comprise three main sectors:

- material logistics - mainly on behaif of the divisions of KGHM Polska MiedZz S.A. and companies of the
Group,

- production - bundled electrical cables and high-pressure hydraulic lines, and

- wholesale and retail sales — department stores, warehouses.

The company fulfils a strategic role for KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. as the coordinator of supply to the core

business of materials and spare parts. It has a firm position as a producer and supplier of bundled electrical

cables for manufacturers of household electrical goods. Its main customers are ELECTROLUX, GENERAL

ELECTRIC and PATELEC ELPENA.

KGHM CUPRUM sp. z 0.0. - CBR

KGHM CUPRUM sp. z 0.0. - CBR is engaged in research and development work in the following secters: geology,
mining, the processing of minerals resources and environmental protection. its activities comprise every stage
of R&D work, from research to design, the evaluation of environmental impact, and feasibility analysis, to
supervision of its execution.

The company is a contractor for most R&D investment projects realised by KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. which are
involved with the core business. The company stores the technicatl (geological} and technological documentation
of KGHM Polska Miedz S.A.

KGHM CUPRUM sp. z 0.0. - CBR holds a renowned position amongst Peolish R&D institutions. The company is at
the second level in the classification of R&D institutions (after several years of being at the third tevel). This
success was the result of years of effort based on improving its qualifications, promoting its know-how, taking
actions both domestically and abroad, putting the results of its research to practical use, and obtaining patents,
certificates etc. The classification which it held improved access to state budget science funds.

KGHM CUPRUM sp. z 0.0. - CBR is one of the few institutions in Poland with extensive experience in the mining
and processing of copper ore. The company is expanding its activities into examining the possibilities of
carrying out research into the chemical and bicchemical processing of brown coal using underground coal
gasification (UCG).

CBJ sp. z 0.0.

CBJ sp. z o.0. operates in the analytical services sector, mainly to serve the needs of the mining and non-
ferrous metals smelting industries, with respect to research and physical-chemical analysis, mainly in the fields
of industrial and environmental research. In the first half of 2008 the company implemented 23 new research
methods.

The company is the main provider of industrial research and analysis for the core business of KGHM Polska
Miedz S.A.

1.3. Employment in the Group
The level and structure of employment in the KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. Group is presented below.

Table 3. Average employment by period

! Description 2007 I-v1 2007 I-vI 2008 Change *

7
White collar 8 428 8 383 8 639 j 102.5
Blue collar 19 264 19047 19587 | 101.7
Total employees 27 692 27 430 28 226 J 101.9

* 2007 = 100

The highest average level of employment in the first half of 2008, at 18 375 positions, was recorded by the
Parent Entity. Among the remaining Group companies the highest average number of employees in the first half
of 2008 was recorded by:

PeBeKa S.A.

POL - MIEDZ TRANS Sp. z 0.0.
ZANAM - LEGMET Sp. z o.0.
DIALOG S.A,

~Energetyka” sp. z 0.0.

1 695 positions,
1 450 positions,
1 058 positions,
968 positions,
810 positions.
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In the first half of 2008 average employment in the Group increased in compariscn to 2007 by 534 positions.
The largest increase in average employment, i.e. by 386 positions, was in the Parent Entity. This increase in
employment was mainly among underground miners, and was due to the need to ensure a proper level of
employment to carry out planned production.

1.4. Relations with the trade unions in the Group

KGHM Polska Miedz S.A,

On 27 February 2008 a side protocol was signed to the Collective Labour Agreement which increased basic
wage rates by PLN 150.

As negotiations on setting the wages increase index in the Parent Entity for 2008 did not conclude with the
reaching of an agreement with the trade unions, the wages increase index was set by the Management Board of
the Parent Entity as follows:

- average total wage 1.0%
- average wage excluding the annuail bonus 2.3%.

Other Group companies

In the first half of 2008 Group companies entered into agreements with the trade unions operating within the
given entities, mainly respecting:

- setting the wages increase index in 2008, and

- contributions to the Social Fund.

In the company ,MCZ" S.A., at the beginning of the year the trade unions carried out strike referendums. No
strikes however were initiated. Negotiations were held as a result of which it was determined that any strikes
will depend on the results of negotiations over the wages increase index for 2008. In January and July of 2008
basic wages were increased for the company’s employees. Negotiations on increasing the average wages
increase index in ,MCZ" S.A. for 2008 will be continued. Until then the representatives of the trade unions have
committed themselves not to organise protest actions.

In January 2008 a collective dispute was initiated by the trade unions active in INOVA Spétka z 0.0. The subject
of this dispute was the demand for higher wages and increased contributions to the Social Fund. For several
months the Management Board of the company engaged in negotiations on the amount of the wages increase
index. Finally, in August the Management Board of INOVA Spdtka z 0.0. signed an agreement with the
representatives of the trade unicns which concluded the collective dispute.

1.5. Parent Entity

KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. is registered at the Wroctaw Fabryczna Regional Court, Section IX (Economic) in the
National Court Register, entry no. KRS 23302. The shares of KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. are listed on the Stock
Exchange in Warsaw and, in the form of GDRs (Global Depositary Receipts), on the London Stock Exchange.
KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. has been conducting its business since 12 September 1991. The legal antecedent of
the Parent Entity was the State-owned enterprise, Kombinat Gaérniczo-Hutniczy Miedzi in Lubin, transformed
inte a State-owned, joint stock company in accordance with principles set forth in the law dated 13 July 1990
on the privatisation of State-owned enterprises.

1.5.1. Share capital and ownership structure of the Parent Entity

At 30 June 2008, the share capital of the Parent Entity amounted to PLN 2 billion and was divided into 200
million shares, series A, with a face value of PLN 10 each. All shares are bearer shares. KGHM Polska Miedz S.A.
has not issued preference shares. Each share gives the right to one vote at the General Shareholders’ Meeting.
In the first half of 2008 there was no change in share capital.

At 30 June 2008, the only shareholder of the Parent Entity holding at least 5% of the share capital and
simultaneously granting the right to the same number of votes at the General Shareholders’ Meeting was the
Polish State Treasury, which - based on an announcement dated 16 May 2007 - held 83 589 900 shares,
representing 41.79% of the share capital of the Parent Entity and the same number of votes at the General
Shareholders’ Meeting.

The remaining shareholders of KGHM Polska Mied? S.A. (including Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas,
depositary bank in the depositary receipts program) held shares representing less than 5% of the share capital
- a total of 116 410 100 shares, representing 58.21% of the share capital and the same number of votes at the
General Shareholders’ Meeting.
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1.5.2. Bodies of the Parent Entity

Supervisory Board

The composition of the 6th-term Supervisory Board of KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. during the period from
1 January 2008 to 13 February 2008 was as follows:

- Leszek Jakubdw Chairman
- Stanistaw Andrzej Potycz Deputy Chairman
- Anna Mank

Remigiusz Nowakowski
Marcin Slezak
Jerzy Zyzynski

as well as the following employee-elected members:

—  Jozef Czyczerski Secretary
- Leszek Hajdacki

- Ryszard Kurek

On 13 February 2008, Marcin Slezak submitted his resignation from membership on the Supervisory Board.

On 14 February 2008, the Extraordinary General Shareholders' Meeting dismissed the following people from the
Supervisory Board: Leszek Jakubdw, Anna Mank, Remigiusz Nowakowski, Stanistaw Andrzej Potycz and Jerzy
Zyzynski, and appointed the following people to the Supervisory Board: Marcin Dyl, Arkadiusz Kawecki, Jacek
Kuciriski, Marek Panfil, Marek Trawiriski and Marzenna Weresa.

At its meeting on 25 February 2008 the Supervisory Board appointed Marek Trawinski as Chairman of the
Supervisory Board, Jacek Kucinski as Vice Chairman, and Marek Panfil as Secretary.

Due to the completion of the 6th-term Supervisory Board, the Ordinary General Shareholders’ Meeting of KGHM
Polska MiedZ S.A. on 26 June 2008 appointed the following persons to the 7th-term Supervisory Board:

-~ Marcin Dy!

- Arkadiusz Kawecki

- Jacek Kucinski

Marek Panfil

Marek Trawinski

Marzenna Weresa

as well as the following employee-elected members:
- Jozef Czyczerski

- Leszek Hajdacki

— Ryszard Kurek

At its meeting on 21 July 2008 the Supervisory Board re-appointed the following persons to their respective
functions: Chairman - Marek Trawiriski, Deputy Chairman - Jacek Kucinski, and Secretary - Marek Panfil.

Management Board -

During the period from 1 January 2008 te 17 January 2008 the composition of the Management Board, and the
respective segregation of duties, was as follows:

- Krzysztof Skora President of the Management Board

— Ireneusz Reszczynski I Vice President of the Management Board (Sales)

— Marek Fusinski Vice President of the Management Board (Finance)

- Stanistaw Kot Vice President of the Management Board (Production)

— Dariusz Kaskéw Vice President of the Management Board (Development)

At its meeting on 17 January 2008, the Supervisory Board carried out the following changes in the composition

of the Management Board:

- it dismissed Krzysztof Skéra from the function of President of the Management Board

- it dismissed Dariusz Kaskdw from the function of Member of the Management Board

- it appointed I Vice President of the Management Board Ireneusz Reszczynski to fill the function of President
of the Management Board until the appointment of the President of the Management Board of KGHM Poiska
MiedZ S.A.

At its meeting on 17 April 2008 the Supervisory Board appointed Mirostaw Krutin as at 23 Aprit 2008 to the

position of President of the Management Board.

On 23 April 2008 the Supervisory Board carried out the following changes in the composition of the

Management Board:

- the following persons were dismissed from the Management Board: Ireneusz Reszczyriski, Marek Fusifiski
and Stanistaw Kot,

- the following persons were appointed to the Management Board: Herbert Wirth and Maciej Tybura.

In addition the Supervisory Board appointed Herbert Wirth as 1 Vice President of the Management Board.
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1.5.3. Remuneration in the Bodies of the Parent Entity

Information an remuneration in the bodies of KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. is provided in note na. 40 of the financial
statements for the first half of 2008.

2. Activities of the KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. Group in the first half of 2008
2.1. Equity investments

Equity investments in the Group

In the first half of 2008, two companies carried out increases of share capital in directly-related entities.

=  KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. acquired shares in the increased share capital of ,Energetyka” sp. z 0.0. in the
total amount of PLN 27 317 thousand, which were paid for in cash. The funds obtained were allocated
toward investments. The share capital of the company following the increase amounted to PLN 248 793
thousand. KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. owns 100 % of the company’s shares.
This increase in capital was registered by the court in June 2008,

= PHP ,MERCUS” sp. z 0.0. acquired shares in the increased share capital of PU ,Mercus Serwis” 5p. Z 0.0, in
the total amount of PLN 1 500 thousand, which were covered by a contribution in kind in the form of real
estate. The share capital of the company following the increase amounts to PLN 2 200 thousand. PHP
«MERCUS” sp. 2 0.0. owns 100 % of the shares of the company.
This increase in capital was registered by the court in March 2008.

Other equity investments

In the first half of 2008, KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. continued to invest in the AIG Emerging Europe Infrastructure
Fund. The fair value of the investment in this Fund in the accounts of KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. at 30 June 2008
was PLN 7 964 thousand.

In the first half of 2008, the Parent Entity received a total amount of PLN 151 thousand from the AIG Fund,
representing gains realised from the redemption of acquired shares. Simultaneously, KGHM Polska Miedz S.A.
paid a management fee of PLN 46 thousand,

2.2. Decreases of share capital

In April 2008 there was a court registered decrease in the share capital of DIALOG S.A. by PLN
1 469 850 thousand, i.e. from PLN 1 959 800 thousand to PLN 489 950 thousand, by a decrease in the face
value of all of the existing shares of the company from PLN 100.00 to PLN 25.00 per share.

The funds arising from this decrease in capital were allocated to cover the losses from prior years in the amount
of PLN 913 150 thousand, and to reserve capital in the amount of PLN 556 700 thousand.
KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. owns 100 % of the company’s shares.

2.3. Loans to Group companies

In April 2008 KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. granted loans to two Group companies:

- Zagiebie Lubin S.A. - a loan in the amount of PLN 7 000 thousand for partial payment of its obligations in
arrears towards Social Insurance Institution (ZUS). The loan will be repaid by 31 December 2010,

- KGHM CONGOQ S.P.R.L. - a Ipan in the amount of USD 25 thousand to cover investment expenditures. The
loan was repaid by 30 June 2008.

In January and April 2008 two annexes were signed to a loan agreement in the amount of USD 800
thousand, entered into with KGHM CONGO S.P.R.L. In June 2007. The repayment dates were prolonged for
individual loan instalments totalling USD 500 thousand. It was determined that the final loan instalment
would be paid by 15 October 2009,

In the first half of 2008, XGHM Ecoren S.A. granted a loan to WFP Hefra S.A. in the amount of PLN 2
889 thousand. The principal amount of loan liabilities by WFP Hefra S.A. towards KGHM Ecoren S.A. at 30 June
2008 was PLN 3 274 thousand (PLN 385 thousand - liabilities from 2007). The deadline for repayment is
31 October 2008.
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2.4. Payment of dividends to the Parent Entity

In the first half of 2008, as a result of distribution of profit for 2007, KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. received
dividends from the following entities:

- Polkomtel S.A. * PLN 182 859 thousand,
-  KGHM Ecoren 5.A. PLN 30 000 thousand,
- KGHM Metraco S.A. PLN 13 209 thousand,
- CBlsp.zo.0. PLN 2 000 thousand.

* total dividends for 2007 amount to PLN 244 764 thousand, of which: an interim payment of PLN 61 905 thousand paid in
Decemnber 2007, PLN 91 409 thousand in the first half of 2008, and PLN 91 450 thousand to be paid on 27 November 2008

In June 2008 the Extraordinary General Shareholders' Meeting of PTR S.A. distributed its profit for 2007, as a
result of which KGHM Polska Mied? S.A. was allocated a dividend of PLN 228 thousand. The dividend was paid in
August 2008.

2.5. Information on contracts of significance

In the first half of 2008, the following contracts of significance were entered into:

- 0On 30 January 2008 a contract was signed between KGHM Polska Miedz $S.A. and Tele-Fonika Kable S.A. for
the sale in 2008 of 8 mm copper wire rod, produced in a continuous-cast method under the standard PN-EN
1977:2000, and oxygen-free copper rod produced under the standard PN-EN 1977:2000. The estimated
value of the contract is from around USD 658 461 thousand (PLN 1 613 296 thousand) to around USD
844 362 thousand (PLN 2 068 771 thousand). This estimated value, depending on the amount of tonnage
under option, is based on the forecast copper price {using the forward curve from 29 January 2008} and on
the NBP exchange rate from 30 January 2008.

- On 19 March 2008 a contract was signed between KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. and Glencore International AG for
the sale of copper cathodes in the years 2008 - 2009. This estimated value, depending on the amount of
tonnage under option, varies from USD 413 201 thousand to USD 557 417 thousand, i.e. from PLN 927 223
thousand to PLN 1 250 844 thousand. This estimated value is based on the forecast copper price (using a
forward curve) and on the NBP exchange rate from 18 March 2008. The contract forsees contractual penalties
for late payments.

- 0On 18 March 2008 a contract was signed between KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. and KGHM Polish Copper Ltd. for
the sale of copper cathodes in 2008. This estimated value, depending on the amount of toennage under
option, varies from USD 245 048 thousand to USD 306 276 thousand, i.e. from PLN 552 828 thousand to PLN
690 959 thousand. This estimated value is based on the forecast copper price (using a forward curve) and on
the NBP exchange rate from 17 March 2008. The contract forsees contractual penalties for late payments.

2.6. Activities of major Group entities

Among the most important entities of the Group are:
-  KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. — the Parent Entity,

- Polkomtel S.A., in which KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. owns 19.61% of the share capital — consolidated using
the equity method, and

- DIALOG S.A. - a subsidiary in which KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. owns 100% of the share capital. The results
of this company have a direct impact on the consolidated financial statements of the KGHM Polska Miedz
S.A. Group.

KGHM Polska Miedz S.A.

The financfal results and description of activities of the Parent Entity for the first half of 2008 can be found in
the KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. report published on 23 September 2008.

Polkomtel S.A.

At 30 June 2008, the carrying amount of the shares of Polkomtel S.A. in the financial statements of KGHM
Polska MiedZ S.A. was PLN 437 250 thousand.
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The basic items of the company’s income statement are presented below:

Table 4. Financial results of Polkomtel S.A. ("000 PLN)

L 2007 1-VI 2007 I-VI 2008 Change * |
Sales 7799 020 3758796 4117 743 109.5
Operating profit 1771713 836 759 1011920 | 120.9
EBITDA 2 832 633 1366 033 ' 1602779 | 117.3
Profit for the perlod 1358 676 632924 - 773278 | 122.2

* I-vI 2007 = 100

Polkomtel S.A. earned a profit for the first half of 2008 higher than for the comparable prior pericd by PLN
140 354 thousand, i.e. by 22.2%. During this same period the company’s sales increased by PLN 358 947
thousand, i.e. by 9.5%. The higher sales are mainly due to the introduction of new, attractive services and to
an increase in the customer base. The total customer base increased in the first half of 2008 by 4.3%

On 25 March 2008 the Arbitration Tribunal in Vienna issued a so-called partial verdict on the claim filed on 10
March 2006 by Vodafone Americas Inc. with the International Court of Arbitration of the Federal Chamber of
Commerce in Vienna against six entities, naming TDC Mobile International A/S as the Principal Respondent,
Polkomtel S.A. as the First Auxiliary Respondent and KGHM Polska Mied? S.A., PKN ORLEN S.A., PSE S.A. and
Weglokoks S.A. as further Auxiliary Respondents. In the statement of its claims, Vodafone Americas Inc.
challenged, among others, the method of setting the price by TDC International A/S in the offer addressed to
the other shareholders. This verdict, which is favourable to KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. and the remaining
shareholders, confirms the validity of the contract dated 10 March 2006 between KGHM Polska Mied? S.A.,
PKMN ORLEN S.A., PSE S.A. and Weglokoks S.A. with TDC Mobile International A/S on the acceptance of the
offer and conditional transfer of shares in Polkomtel S.A. This agreement was described in detail in a current
report dated 10 March 2006 and in the consolidated annual report for 2007.

DIALOG S.A.

The KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. Group has prepared consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS
since 1 January 2005. DIALOG S.A. has maintained accounts and prepared financial statements in conformity
with IFRS since 1 January 2008. At the moment of transition of the Group to IFRS, a given level of significance
was assumed in making adjustments adapting the financial statements of subsidiaries to the principles of IFRS,
which vary from the level of significance assumed for the transition of the accounts of DIALOG S.A. to IFRS.
The effect of assuming other levels of significance caused a difference between the equity of DIALOG S.A. at 1
January 2008 and the equity of this company established for the consolidated financial statements of the KGHM
Polska Miedz S.A. Group in the amount of PLN 5 086 thousand.

Due to its low level of significance in the consclidated financial statements, this amount decreased the financial
result of the current pericd.

Table 5. Financial results of DIALOG S.A. ('000 PLN)

2007 I-VI 2007 I-VI 2008 Change *
Sales 7 496042 241793 278861 | 115.3
Operating profit/(loss) 17 152 27 331 | (14 964) | (54.7)
EBITDA 119 022 75483 ; 41 199 ] 54.6
Profit/(loss) for the period 63 372 24 303 1 (21 202) 1 {87.2)

* I-vI 2007 = 100

The result of the investments carried out in 2007 and the actions undertaken by DIALOG S.A. to gain customers
is that the customer base since 2007 has had a visible impact on the company’s revenues.

The strong competition from mobile phone operators means that the company is continuing to experience a fall
in voice service subscribers using the DIALOG S.A. network. At the end of the first half of 2008, the company
had 395.9 thousand ringing lines in its network. There is however dynamic growth in the base of customers to
whom DIALOG S.A. provides services based on the TP S5.A. network (so-called WLR). At the end of June 2008
the company had 131.3 thousand active WLR customers. In addition the company is expanding its base of
Internet customers, in particular with respect to broadband Internet access. At the end of June 2008 it had
124.5 thousand Internet subscribers, including 6.1 thousand BSA service users.
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In the first quarter of 2008 sales of a new service - Internet television - also began, which will be an additional
service to Internet customers.

The company expects that the dynamic increase in customers will lead to an increase in revenues in 2008, In
2008 DIALOG S.A. will continue the strategy aimed at increasing the number of its subscribers, both as
respects voice as well as internet services,

2.7. Research and development
The highest research and development expenditures in the Group in the first half of 2008 were incurred by the

Parent Entity, and amounted to PLN 594 thousand. They were financed primarily by the internal funds of KGHM
Polska MiedZ S.A.

Table 6. R&D expenditures in the Parent Entity (‘000 PLN)

. 2007 I-VI 2007 I-VI 2008 Change * J
Mining T a4 786 285, 363
Smelting 1662 1291 309 x2.4
Total 6076 915| 594/  65.0

* I-VI 2007 = 100

Research and development work is the core activity of KGHM CUPRUM sp. z 0.0. - CBR.

It is the contractor for most R&D investment projects realised by KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. In the first half of
2008, the company continued work on two projects within the Sector Operating Program financed by the
Ministry of Science and Higher Education, i.e.:

- .Scenarios for the technological development of the brown coal extraction and processing industry”, of
which KGHM CUPRUM sp. z ¢.0. - CBR is a consortium member,

- .Scenarios for the technological development of the copper cre and associated minerals industry in
Poland”, which is coordinated by KGHM CUPRUM sp. z 0.0. - CBR,

At the turn of 2007/2008 the following project was completed:,Research into the development of a balanced
method for utilising black shales, through the use of BIOSHALE biotechnology”, realised as part of the
6th Framework Program of the EU. The results of the BIOSHALE project will provide the most advanced
knowledge into the possibilities and limitations of bioleaching technology in terms of copper ore and its semi-
products, which could also be used to a limited degree to improve the operations of the existing facilities.

The Mining Office based in Freiberg has authorised KGHM CUPRUM sp. z 0.0. - CBR to conduct geological and
exploratory work into copper ore deposits within Saxony (the territory of Weisswasser to the border with
Poland) for a three-year period.

The following entities of the Group also carried out R&D work:

KGHM Ecoren S.A.
The major achievements of the company in terms of R&D include the following:

- the beginning of design work on an installation for the recovery of rhenium from washing acids of the
Gtogéw I smelter, and research into the adjustment of currently-owned technology for the recovery of
rhenium to the conditions prevailing in the Gtogow I smelter;

- the beginning of design work on an installation for the production of metallic rhenium from ammonium
perrhenate produced in KGHM Ecoren S.A.;

- the development, in cooperation with the Non-Ferrous Metals Institute in Gliwice, of verifiable assumptions
for the development of technology for the purification of nickel sulphate;

- commencement of the first stage of internal research on a project titled ,Laboratory research into the
leaching of slimes from the wet dedusting of throat gases for the recovery of rhenium” in the Minerals
Recovery section of KGHM Ecoren;

- the issuance in April 2008 of a patent for an invention titled ,Backfill mixture and a method for producing
mining backfill”;

- recognition for the company by the Polish Agency for Enterprise Development of the title
~Hydrometallurgical technology for the purification of crude nickel sulphate” during the eleventh edition of
the competition , Polish Product of the Future”

In addition, KGHM Ecoren S.A. is participating in the MATRANS project, whose aim is to design new products
with improved mechanical properties for the automotive and aerospace sectors.,
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INOVA Spéika z o.0.

In the first half of 2008, work was carried out on the project ,Research and development aimed at developing a
new range of transformer stations”. Technical documentation was developed for three prototype transformer
stations and one prototype station.

DIALOG S.A.
In the first half of 2008, the company carried cut development work on two projects:

- IPTV - interactive tv and video on demand,
- MVNO - mobile virtual network operators.

CBJ) sp. z 0.0.

The company worked on a project titled ,The development and creation of analytical models of waste and
converter slag”. The aim of this work is to maintain research capacity and development with respect to x-ray
fluorescence spectrometry.

2.8. Significant changes in organisation and management in the Group

KGHM Polska Miedz S.A.

Cn 24 April 2008 the Management Board of KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. resclved to change the organisational
structure of the Head Office. As a result the segregation of duties of the Members of the Management Board is
as follows:

- Mirostaw Krutin President of the Management Board
— Herbert Wirth 1 Vice President of the Management Board (Production)
- Maciej Tybura Vice President of the Management Board (Finance)

Other Group companies

In the first half of 2008, changes were carried out to the Management and Supervisory Boards of Group
companies, reducing the number of their members. This was aimed at limiting the number of members in the
bodies of the companies to the absolute minimum, while ensuring their proper functioning.

In addition, the following events occurred in the Group as respects organisation and management:

— in the companies ZANAM-LEGMET Sp. z 0.0. and ,Energetyka” sp. z ©.0. integrated IT systems of the
company Microsoft Dynamice AX were implemented,

- work was carried out in Group companies with respect to implementation of an information security
management system.

3. Financial position !

3.1, Scope and nature of the data presented

Periods covered by the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements presented cover:
* the current period from 1 January to 30 June 2008,
» the comparative period from 1 January to 30 June 2007.

Entities consolidated

KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. - as the Parent Entity of the Group, fully consolidated 25 subsidiaries, while 2
associates were accounted for using the equity method:

-  Polkomtel S.A.,
- MINOVA-KSANTE Spétka z 0.0,

Polkomtel S.A., in which KGHM Poiska Mied? S.A. owns a 19.61% interest is an associated entity which is
accounted for using the equity method. The determination of significant influence is based on the fact that, in
accordance with the shareholders agreement and the statutes of Polkomtel S.A., KGHM Polska Miedz S.A.,
through its representative on the Supervisory Board, has influence on resolutions related to the operating
strategy of Polkomte! S.A., which in turn affects its operating and financial policies.

Three subsidiaries were not consolidated:
. PCPM sp. z 0.0.,
. TUW-CUPRUM,
. «Mercus Software” sp. z 0.0.

Exemption of these entities from consolidation was possible due to their being immaterial.
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3.2. Balance sheet: assets

The structure of the assets of the KGHM Polska MiedZ S5.A. Group is dominated by the assets of the Parent
Entity.

Table 7. Consolidated balance sheet - Assets ('000 PLN)

31 December 30 June Structure Change * §

ASSETS 2007 2008 % !

1 2 3 4 5 ,
Non-current assets 7932257 | 8021312 54.0 101.1
Property, plant and equipment 6 614 352 6 744 233 ¢ 45.4 102.0
Intangible assets 119231 | 118 047 0.8 99.0
Investment property 16 517 | 16 517 0.1 100.0
Investments in associates 690 096 1 659 760 | 4.4 95.6
Deferred tax assets 320 506 319174 2.1 99.6
Available-for-sale financial assets 47 155 { 44 759 0.3 94.9
Held-to-maturity Investments 43 934 1 57 292 0.4 130.4
Derlvative financial instruments 33395 ! 8154 1 0.1 24.4
Trade and other recelvables 47 071 53376 0.4 113.4
Current assets 5570957 | 6843420 ' 46.0 122.3

i
Inventories 1744 495 1 862653 | 12.5 106.8
Trade and other receivables 925 367 I 1411 543 9.5 152.5
Current corporate tax receivables 7377 ; 1669 . 0.0 22 .6
Avallable-for-sale financial assets I 100 623 ¢ 0.7 X
Derivative flnancial Instruments 81 622 i 16 429 0.1 20.1
Cash and cash equivalents 2812095 | 3450503 ! 23.2 122.7
1

Non-current assets held for sale 184 I 550 . 0.0 298.9
TOTAL ASSETS 13 503 398 | 14 B65 282 100.0 110.1

* I-VI 2007 = 100

In the first half of 2008, total assets increased by 10 %, i.e. by PLN 1 361 884 thousand, due to an increase in
current assets mainly in the Parent Entity. The greatest change occurred in the following items:

- trade and other receivables, and
- cash and cash equivalents.

Current trade receivables increased by PLN 309 170 thousand, and their value at the end of the first half of
2008 amounted to PLN 1 047 237 thousand. Other current receivables were mainly in respect of taxation and
other titles and financial receivables, and amounted to PLN 364 306 thousand. They include the dividend due to
KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. from Polkomtel S.A. in the amount of PLN 91 450 thousand (the second instalment
being payable in Novernber 2008).

Cash and cash equivalents was the second largest item in assets, after property, plant and equipment. Their
value increased in comparison to the end of 2007 by 23 %, i.e. by PLN 638 407 thousand. This was mainly due
to the high prices on the copper market.

Property, plant and equipment was the largest item in assets. Their value during the first half of 2008 increased
by 2%, mainly due to investment expenditures incurred by the Parent Entity. Their value, versus the
comparable prior period, increased by 28 % and amounted to PLN 387 656 thousand. The most important
investment related to development was construction of the SW-4 shaft and tunnels to access the Glogow
Gleboki deposit.
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3.3. Balance sheet: equity and liabilities

Table 8. Consolidated balance sheet — Equity and fiabilities ("000 PLN)

i 31 December 30 June Structura Change * 1
i EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2007 2008 o !
|
; 1 2 3 a 5 |
EQUITY 9501609 | 9416367 . 63.3 99.1
Share capital 2 000 000 2000000 135 100.0
Other reserves 13118 g791 0.1 67.0
Retained earnings 7 440 870 7 360 280 49.5 98.%
Equity attributabie to shareholders of the Parent Entity 9453988 | 936907 | 63.0 99.1
Minority interest 47621 | 47 296 0.3 99,3
Non-current liabilities 1710 812 1 1616133 10.9 94.5
Trade and other payables 24 762 31 497 0.2 127.2
Borrowings and finance lease liabilities 162 909 69756 | 0.5 42.8
Derivative financial instruments 3 087 - , 2.0 X
Deferred tax liabilities 29 804 34282 ! 0.2 115.0
Liabilities due to employee benefits 919923 944 338 ¢ 6.4 102.7
Provisions for other liabilities and charges 570 327 536267 ! 3.6 94.0
Current labilities 2290977 ag31782 | 15.8 167.3
Trade and other payables 1 646 406 3438 566 . 231 208.9
Barrowings and finance lease liabilities 113 201 195 165 E 1.3 172.4
Current corporate tax liagilities 343 377 30159 0.2 8.8
Derivative financial instruments 14 335 61 E 0.0 0.4
Liabilities due to employee benefits 77 402 79643 0.5 102.9
Provisions for other liabilities and charges 96 256 85188 0.6 92.7
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4 001 789 1 5448 915 36.7 136.2
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 13503398 | 14865282 * 100.0 110.1

*I-vI 2007 = 100

In comparison to the end of 2007 the share of equity in the structure of equity and liabilities decreased by 7 %.
This was due to the approved but unpaid dividend for 2007 in the Parent Entity in the amount of PLN 1 800 000
thousand.

The value of equity at the end of the first half of 2008 did not significantly change, as the gains for the first half
of 2008, mainly generated by KGHM Polska Miedz S.A., were similar in amount to the dividend approved for
2007.

The approved but unpaid dividend for 2007 in the Parent Entity was also a factor in the increase in current
liabilities. These showed the greatest change. Their value increased by PLN 1 541 805 thousand, i.e. by 67 %.

The largest item in current liabilities is trade and other payables, whose main items are:

- liabilities due to the shareholders dividend - PLN 1 800 000 thousand,
- trade payables - PLN 648 922 thousand,
— liabilities due to accruals - PLN 391 800 thousand,

(including the provision for wages, paid after approval of the annual
financial statements in the amount of PLN 313 570 thousand)

- liabilities due to taxation and social security - PLN 308 343 thousand.

At the end of the first half of 2008, there was a decrease In long-term bank loans and a simultaneous increase
in short-term bank loans. This was mainly due to the reclassification of the bank loan to BIALOG S.A. in the
amount of PLN 100 000 thousand from non-current to current liabilities, in accordance with the repayment
schedule.
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3.4. Income statement

Table 9. Consolidated income statement (‘000 PLN)

for the period

for the period

-

INCOME STATEMENT from 01.01.2007 from 01.01.2008 Change * !
to 30.06.2007  to 30.06.2008 !
1 2 3 4 |
Sales 6 467 899 6 750 769 104.4
Costs of sales {3 639 149) (4 054 068) 111.4
Gross profit 2828 750 | 2 696 701 95.2
Selling costs (95 652) (113 216} 118.4
Administrative expenses {344 774) (347 739} 100.9
QOther operating income 1073 207 314 135 29.3
Other gperating costs {1334 972) {586 253} 43.9
Operating profit 2 126 559 1 963 628 92.3
Finance costs - net (15 212) {24 712) 162.5
Share in profits of associates 122 430 152 524 124.6
accounted for using the equity method
Profit before income tax 2233777 2 091 440 93.6
Income tax expense {408 136) {372 281} 91.2
Profit for the period 1 825 641 1719 159 94.2
attributable to:
shareholders of the Parent Entity 1825 334 1719410 94.2
minority interest 307 {251) (81.8)
Earnings per share attributable to
shareholders of the Parent Entity for the half-year period
{PLN per share)
- basic 92.13 8.60 94,2
- diluted 9.13 | 8.60 94.2

*I-vI 2007 = 100

During the analysed pericd the KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. Group increased its sales versus the comparable prior
period by PLN 282 870 thousand. Revenues increased from the sale of copper, precious metals and services.

Costs increased at a greater rate than revenues. Total costs of sales, selling costs and administrative expenses

increased by PLN 465 448 thousand.

The increase in costs and the strengthening of the Polish zloty were factors decreasing profit for the period

versus the comparable prior period. Profit for the period decreased by PLN 106 482 thousand.

The decrease in losses on hedging transactions had a positive impact on profit. In the first half of 2008, the
result on derivative instruments amounted to PLN (163 628) thousand, while in the first half of 2007 it

amounted to PLN (873 807) thousand.

Table 10. Structure of the profit for the period of the KGHM Polska MiedZ 5.A. Group ("000 PLN)

i Name of entity

Profit for the first |

: half of 2008 !
KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. | 1814690 E
subsidiaries ; (9 696} ‘
of which: | |
- KGHM ECOREN S.A. | 10 722
- KGHM Metraco S.A. 5 565 ‘
- DFM ZANAM-LEGMET Sp. z 0.0. ! 3947 ‘
- POL-MIEDZ TRANS Sp. z 0.0. i 2705
- CBJ sp. z 0.0. ! 2 080 ,
- PHP ,MERCUS" sp. z 0.0. ? 1 810 -
- PeBeKa S.A. § (13 539) ;
- DIALOG S.A. i {21 202} .
Associates - attributable to the Group ! 152 524 i
of which: |
Polkomtel S.A. 152 044 E
Consolidation adjustment (238 108) ]
Profit for the period attributable to 1719 410 I

shareholders of the Parent Entity
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3.5. Structure of Group sales
The largest share in Group sales is held by the main segment of activities which involve the extraction and

processing of copper and precious metals, the production of non-ferrous metals, trade and copper promotion.
The remaining segments, i.e. the IT segment and other sectors, have an insignificant share in revenues.

Diagram 2. Sales by segment in the first half of 2008

90% Copper and precious metals,
other smelter products

4%

Telecom and IT

Other -
services

3.6. Sales markets - geographical structure

The largest portion, i.e. 38% of revenues from the sale of products, goods for resale and services achieved by
the KGHM Pgiska Miedz S.A. Group, comes from the domestic market. The largest foreign recipient of the
products, goods for resale and services offered by the Group is Germany at 11 %, and China at 10%.

Diagram 3. Sales by market in the first half of 2008

Austria China

2% 10% Hungary

1%

France

Czech Republic
6%

7%

UK Other countries
20%
49,
German
119%

Poland
38%

In comparison to the sales structure in the comparable prior period, i.e. the first half of 2007, the following
were clearly significant:

- a decrease in sales on the Polish market from 44 % to Bé %, and on the German market from 17 % to 11 %,

— an increase in sales on the French market from 1 % to 6 %, and to the “other countries” group from 15 % to
20 %.
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3.7. Related party transactions

The value of transactions - sales and purchases - with related parties is presented below. State Treasury
companies, as related entities, were recognised in the item other entities.

Tahble 11. Sales to related parties ("000 PLN)

for the period from for the period from
Sales 1 January 2007 1 January 2008
to 30 June 2007 to 30 June 2008
to associates 1351 f 1513
to key management and supervisory personnel 18 36
to other related entities 33854 | 47 673
Total 35223 | 49 222

In the first half of 2008, among the State Treasury subsidiaries, the KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. Group earned
the largest revenues from sales from the entity Wojewddzkie Przedsiebiorstwo Energetyki Cieplnej in Legnica
{value PLN 12 649 thousand, share - 26% of total sales). These revenues were from sales of heating energy
by .Energetyka” sp. z 0.0.

Table 12, Purchases from related parties (‘000 FLN)

for the period from for the period from

Purchases 1 January 2007 1 January 2008

to 30 June 2007 to 30 June 2008
from assoclates 23 881 : 27 472 !
from other related entities 354 777 ! 378969 |
Total 378658 | 406 441 |

In the first half of 2008, among the State Treasury subsidiaries, the largest purchases by KGHM Polska
Miedz S.A. Group were from the entity EnergiaPro GRUPA TAURON S.A. (value PLN 276 190 thousand, share
- 68% of total purchases).

3.8. Financial ratios of the KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. Group

Basic ratios describing the economic activities of the Group are presented below:

Table 13. Financial ratios

r - ——— —_———— e e e _—

Dgmper tne 0N
1. Liquidity ratios ; i
- quick liquidity (multiple) 1.7 1.0 l 1.3 !
- current liquidity (multiple) 2.4 1.3 l 1.8
2. Profitability ratios |
- ROA - return on assets (% ) 29.1 12.4 ) 11.6
- ROE - return on equity (% ) 41.4 24.8 18.3 i
3. Equity and liabilities ratios ! |
- debt ratio (% ) 29.6 50.1 36.7 |
- durability of financing structure ratio (%) 83.0 61.1 ! 74.2
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The improvement in the liquidity ratios is due to the approval of a lower dividend for the shareholders of the
Parent Entity (PLN 1.8 billion for 2007 versus PLN 3.4 billion for 2006) given a comparable profit for the period.

The decrease in the equity profitability ratio (ROE) is due to an increase in reserve capital of KGHM Poiska
Miedz S.A. from the profit for 2007 in the amount of PLN 1 998 825 thousand. During the prior period the entire
profit for 2006 was allocated as a dividend.

The approval of a dividend which was lower than in the pricr period also led to a decrease in the debt ratio
through a change in the structure of equity and liabilities (an increase in equity and a decrease in liabilities).

3.9. Risk management

The KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. Group is exposed to the following types of financial risk:
- market risk,

- lhiquidity risk, and

-  credit risk.

The main goal of market risk management is to minimise variability in profit before taxation, increase the
probability of achieving budget plans, keep the companies in a good financial condition and support the process
of undertaking strategic decisions as respects investments, with due regard to the sources for financing such
investments.

The Group identifies the following main market risks to which it is exposed:
—  the commodity risk,

- the currency risk, and

- the interest rate risk.

The KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. Group actively manages that risk to which it is exposed. The main technique
applied in managing market risk is the use of hedging strategies with derivative instruments. Natural hedging is
also used.

Risk management in the Parent Entity

In the first half of 2008 copper price hedging strategies represented approx. 28% (in the first half of 2007 35%)
of sales of this metal realised by KGHM Polska Miedz $.A. In the case of silver they amounted to approx. 33% (in
the first half of 2007 10%). In the case of the currency market, the Parent Entity had no hedged revenues (in
the first half of 2007 5% of revenues from sales were hedged).

In the first half of 2008, the result on derivative instruments amounted to PLN (163 628) thousand (in the first

half of 2007, PLN (873 807) thousand), of which:

- revenues from sales were adjusted by PLN +4 214 thousand (being the amount transferred from revaluation
reserve to profit and loss in the financial period; in the first half of 2007, PLN (620 293} thousand),

— other operating income and costs due to the measurement of derivative instruments amounted to PLN
(156 136) thousand (in the first half of 2007, PLN (248 838) thousand), and due to the realisation of
derivative instruments, PLN (11 706) thousand (in the first half of 2007, PLN (4 676) thousand).

The adjustment of other operating income and costs due to the measurement of derivative instruments mainly
results from changes of the time value of options which are to be settled in future periods. Due to the hedge
accounting regulations applied by the Parent Entity, changes in the time value of options are not recognised in
the revaluation reserve,

In the first half of 2008 KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. implemented copper price hedging strategies (the purchase of
put options) of a total volume of 60 thousand tonnes and a maturity falling in the first half of 2009.
Additionally, during this period the Parent Entity implemented adjustment hedge transactions of a total volume
of 13 075 tonnes and a maturity falling in January 2008 and the period from March to December 2008.

In the case of the silver market, during the analysed period no strategies were implemented to hedge the price
of this metal. In the first half of 2008 adjustment hedge transactions were implemented on the silver market in
a total volume of 643 thousand troz and a time horizon falling in January 2008.

In the case of the forward currency market, in the first half of 2008 KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. did not enter into
strategies hedging the USD/PLN exchange rate, During the analysed period there were no adjustment hedge
transactions implemented on the currency market.

The Parent Entity remains hedged for a portion of copper sales planned in the second half of 2008 {75 thousand
t) and the first half of 2009 (60 thousand t), for a portion of silver sales planned in the second half of 2008
(6 million troz) and in 2009 (9.6 million troz). KGHM Polska Mied? S.A. does not hold hedged positions for
revenues from sales {currency market).

The Parent Entity continuously moniters the commaodity and currency markets, and these monitoring activities
are the basis for taking decisions on implementing hedging strategies.
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Risk management in the other companies of the KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A, Group

In the first half of 2008 KGHM Metraco S.A. entered into currency risk hedging transactions. Export sales
represent around 10% of the company’s sales. Due to the significant impact of exchange differences generated
by the settlement of operations on foreign markets at the level of financial income and costs, around 95% of
revenues from export sales were covered by hedging transactions. In order to hedge against exchange risk,
KGHM Metraco S.A. made use of derivative instruments In the form of forward contracts.

KGHM Polish Copper Ltd., due to the nature of its activities — copper trading - is exposed to the risk of changes
in metals prices and the risk of changes in exchange rates. The company uses natural hedging. In situations
where natural hedging is not used, adjustment hedge transactions are used instead. Their scope, scale and
structure depend on the internal situation of the company, current and forecast market conditions and the
instruments applied, as well as their implementation costs. The following types of hedging instruments are used
by the company: swaps, forwards, futures, and structures derived from these instruments.

KGHM Ecoren S.A. is exposed to currency risk due to its export sales of ammonium perrhenate. The company
hedges itself against negative fluctuations in currency rates by entering into hedging transactions.

The remaining companies of the Group possess internally-developed operating procedures for reducing
exposure to certain types of market risk, in particular credit risk and liquidity risk. Adherence to these
procedures in the process of selecting suppliers and clients, seeking external sources of financing and
depositing free cash resources ensures these companies of minimalisation of risk in decision taking related to
their business activities.

3.10. Forecast financial situation of the Group

Forecasts of the Group results are not prepared. The projected results of the Parent Entity are prepared and
published. On 27 March 2008 information on the approval by the Supervisory Board of KGHM Polska Mied: S.A.
of the budget of the company for 2008 was published in a current report.

The approved Budget assumes the achievement in 2008 of revenues from sales of PLN 11 193 million and a
profit for the period of PLN 2 904 million.

Important assumptions of the forecast:

Macroeconomic factors:

- average annual electrolytic copper price of 7 100 USD/t,

- average annual metallic silver price of 15.00 USD/troz (482 USD/kg),
- average annual exchange rate of 2.50 PLN/USD.

Internal factors:

- electrolytic copper production of 512 thousand t, including 94 thousand t from external copper-bearing
materials,

- metallic silver production of 1 110 ¢,

- total unit cost of electrolytic copper production of 12 455 PLN/t,

- capital expenditures of PLN 1 637 million.

In the first half of 2008 KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. earned revenues from sales of PLN 6 031 million and a profit
for the period of PLN 1 815 million, meaning an achievement of the planned resuits respectively of 54% and
62%. The financial results after the first half of 2008 are consistent with the approved Budget for 2008.

Taking into consideration the current situation on financial markets, KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. is verifying the
macroeconomic budget assumptions for the fourth quarter of 2008. The adjustment takes inte account the
deterioration in copper prices and the weakening of the Polish zloty versus the USD in this period.

The subsidiaries follow unified principles for budgeting and planning. The structure of annual budgets and five
year plans is based on separate centers of responsibility. The plans of entities are evaluated based on their
conformance with the Strategy of the Parent Entity and Group, from which in turn arise basic questions
associated with the directions of equity investment, the development of specific areas of activities and with the
dividend policy. A significant role in Group planning is played by the effective management of cash flow, the
optimal financing of current activities, risk management and controlling costs.

Execution of these plans is continuously monitored by the supervisory boards of these entities as well as by the
equity supervision unit of the Parent Entity. The KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. Group also applies unified reporting
principles. The specific financial and economic condition of Group entities is evaluated on a quarterly basis, with
monthly monitoring.

Planning and budgeting in Group entities is supported by the integrated IT systems which have been
implemented in these companies.
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4, Subsequent events

Commercial contract

On 7 August 2008 a contract was signed between KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. and Wieland Werke AG for the sale
of copper cathodes in years 2009-2011.

The estimated value of this contract, depending on the amount of tonnage under option, is from USD
369 727 thousand to USD 448 955 thousand, i.e. from 775 503 thousand to PLN 941 683 thousand. This
amount was estimated based on the forecast copper price (using a forward curve) and the National Bank of
Poland exchange rate from 7 August 2008.

Increase of share capital in subsidiary

0On 12 August 2008 the Extracrdinary General Shareholders’ Meeting of PeBeKa S.A. resolved to increase the
share capital of the company by PLN 18 715 thousand, through the issuance of 306 804 registered shares with
a face value of PLN 61.00 each, covered in cash by the sole shareholder, i.e. KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. The funds
from this increase in share capital will be allocated to company development. This increase in capital was court
registered on 26 August 2008.

Sale of shares of MINOVA-KSANTE Spétka z 0.0.

On 26 August 2008 KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. sold to MINOVA-KSANTE Spétka z 0.0. 13 500 shares of this
company, representing 30% of the share capital of MINOVA KSANTE Spétka z 0.0. and granting the right to
30% of the votes at the General Shareholders’ Meeting.

These shares were scld based on an agreement entered into between KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. and MINOVA
KSANTE Spdtka z 0.0. titled “Agreement for the buy-back of shares for the purpose of their retirement” dated
26 August 2008. The sale price for these 13 500 shares, having a total nominal value of PLN 1 350 thousand,
amounts to PLN 8 542 thousand (PLN 632.75 per share). This amount is to be paid within two weeks of the
Court registration of the decrease in the share capital of MINOVA KSANTE Spélka z 0.0. due to the retirement of
the shares acquired based on the above agreement.

Following this transaction KGHM Polska MiedZ S.A. no longer owns any of the share capital of MINOVA-KSANTE
Spétka z 0.0.

Court decision regarding payment of damages due to deterioration of water caused by the activities
of the Parent Entity

At a trial dated 29 August 2008 the Regicnal Court in Legnica, Civil Section dismissed the claim of Bobmark
International Sp. z 0.0. in its entirety, judging it as obviously unfounded. The decision is not legally binding.
(For details, see Report on the activities of KGHM Polska Miedz S.A., page 21).

Removal of the company Przedsiebiorstwo Eksploatacii Wod AQUAKONRAD Spolka Akcyjna in
bankruptcy from the Register of Entrepreneurs

On 20 March 2008 the company Przedsiebiorstwo Eksploatacji wéd AQUAKONRAD Spdtka Akcyjna in
bankruptcy was removed from the Register of Entrepreneurs.

Payment to the capital of a subsidiary

On 17 September 2008 the Extraordinary General Sharehclders' Meeting of KGHM CUPRUM sp. z 0.0.-CBR
resolved to make a payment to its capital in the amount of PLN 1 500 thousand, to be used for financing the
first stage of exploratory work in the Weisswasser region. This payment was executed two weeks from the date
of the resolution of the General Shareholders' Meeting. This is a refundable payment, with the return of funds
to be made by 31 December 2009.

Contingent agreement for the acquisition of shares

On 22 September 2008 Telefonia DIALOG S.A. entered into a contingent agreement with PKN Orlen S.A. for the
acquisition of shares of Petrotel Sp. z 0.0. with its registered head office in Plock.

As a result of signing this agreement, Telefonia DIALOG S.A. will acquire 6 150 shares of Petrotel Sp. z 0.0.,
with a face value of PLN 1 QQQ per share, and a total nominal value of PLN 6 150 thousand, representing 75%
of the share capital and the total number of votes at the General Shareholders’ Meeting of Petrotel Sp. z o.0.
The purchase price for 75% of the shares of Petrotel Sp. z 0.0. is PLN 32 411 thousand, i.e. PLN 5 270 per
share.

Ownership of these shares will be transferred to Telefonia DIALOG S.A. under condition that the remaining
shareholders of Petrotel Sp. z 0.0. decline to make use of their pre-emption right to these shares, in accordance
with § 13 of the Articles of Association of the company Petrotel Sp. z 0.0., and the full payment of the amount
representing the purchase price for these shares. The process of realising the pre-emption right to acquire
these shares will be completed within approx. 3-4 weeks from the date of signing the agreement.
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Filing of a bankruptcy petition for the company Vivid.pl S.A.

On 24 September 2008 the Management Board of Vivid.pl S.A. filed a bankruptcy petition for the company
Vivid.pl 5.A. with the Regional Court for the City of Warsaw in Warsaw, Section X (Economic) for bankruptcy
and remediary proceedings.

100% of the shares of Vivid.pl S.A. are owned by Telefonia DIALOG S.A. The net carrying amount of these
shares in the assets of Telefania DIALOG S.A. amounts to PLN 4 279 thousand.

Declaration of bankruptcy of Vivid.p! S.A.

On 29 September 2008 Regional Court for the City of Warsaw in Warsaw, Section X (Econcmic) for bankruptcy
and remediary proceedings, issued a ruling dated 29 September 2008 upon declaration of bankruptcy of the
company Vivid.pt S.A. with its registered head office in Warsaw. The court appointed a court commissioner -
Regional Court Judge, Arkadiusz Zagrobelny, and a receiver - Jacek Filiks.

The ruling on this bankruptcy will come into fegal force on 10 Qctober 2008.

Acquisition of shares by POL-MIEDZ TRANS sp. z 0.0. in a newly-created company

Cn 19 September 2008 the Regional Court for Wroclaw-Fabryczna in Wroctaw, Section IX (Economic) of the
National Court Register issued a decision on entering the following company into the National Court Register -
Register of Entrepreneurs: PMT Linie Kolejowe sp. z 0.0. with its registered head office in Polkowice. The share
capital of this newly-created entity amounts to PLN 100 thousand and is divided into 100 shares of PLN 1 000
each.

POL-MIEDZ TRANS Sp. z 0.0. has acquired 99 shares in the newly-founded company PMT Linie Kolejowe sp. z
0.0. These shares have a per-share face value of PLN 1000 and a total nominal value of PLN 99 thousand,
represent 99% of the share capital of this company and grant the right to the same number of votes at the
General Shareholders’ Meeting.

The shares were entirely paid for in cash for a price equal to their nominal value.

1% of the shares of the newly-created entity is owned by PHP ,MERCUS" sp. z 0.0.

The founding of this company and its assumption of management over railway infrastructure will enable it to
collect fees for providing access to this infrastructure to other carriers. The result of commencing operations by
PMT Linie Kolejowe sp. z o.0. will be to improve the effectiveness of the assets owned by POL-MIEDZ TRANS
Sp. z 0.0.

5. Annexes
5.1. Methodology for calculation of ratios used in this report

profit for the period
ROE = x 100

equity

profit for the period
ROA = x 100

total assets

current assets - inventories
Quick liguidity=

current liabilities

current assets

Current liquigity=
current liabilities
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total liabilities

debt ratio = x 100
equity and liabilities
durability of financing _ equity + non-current liabilities 100
structure -
equity and liabilities
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